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RAISING SPIRITS,
ELEVATING SUCCESS

The most respected Liquor Company in
Nepal in terms of products, service, profit
and sharsholder value.
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ETEATEGIC U ROSKT

Oneofthe core strengthe bf HDL is thefact
thit it has slvays mamtained elentless
commitment wien it comes to adherence
o vitrious mational und intenations)
manuifactunng operational and

statutory and regulatory regurernents:
The Company bat in place a compstent
and dedicated team of internal &5 well

as extermal ouditnes This team not only
minutely observes and serutinizes HDLs
each and every business transactions bt
alsp ensures utmost fimancial discipline
and transparency in thess oparations: The
Company's mamufactoring plant produces
a range of high quality producisas per the
requirements demmreated by the Exise
Act, Begolations, Gatidelines fiquor Act.
and Buies and Reguintionsand underihe
supervision of the Excics Inepector: In
addition to this. HDL has inplace strimgent
and ecdified intemal control mechanizms
in each of the functional aress throughout
the orgenization

& key driver of HDL's growth and
dustainability lies n itz team of dedimted.
competent, vibrmntand enthusisste s f
members who hare put theirrelentless
efforts to further enhance HOL's scalabiliny
and afficiency in all of its himctionn) areas
inclading but hiot limited to manapemant.
apemations, production, finands and
imestment brand mansgement, salas
and distritirtion to mome afew The
Company’s well defined and yigarous
mnmn resources managernent policy and
otildelines have empowersd itto ohboard
and retain a teams of efficient and capable
staff members In addition to this, HBL has
in place a system of comtimious taining
and capacty enhancement of {ts staff

memibersacross dll organizational levels
to enhiance their technleal and non-
technical kills to enablethem to stayon
top af their game in the sver-tompetitive
and dynamis liguor lmjlﬁn'jnfﬂif
COUTITY.

HDL hias always placed utmost

emphasit on cantinuous produc
HInTvaLen, auttmation, state-of-the-ar
manuinctoring practices and procedures
and most important of all compamatively
higher standards of corpotata
sovemmance and business ethics Thishas
empowered the Compaiy to command

a higher customer confidence for it
unime biend of high-gquality spirits and
they have played a pivotal role in further
strenigthening and enfancing its maret
leadar=hip with more tharl 70 pereent
mzrkes share inthe Nepalese beverages
industry.

Apart from manufachuring prodics as
demanded by the market the company
has equally-pricritized creation and
strengthening of its brand equity aswell
as its price leadership and at the same
time, also been abie to sucressilly

be the first choice of 15 diverse setef
custormerds and suppliers: It has slso besn
able to maintam an ineompromised
foos an anboanding kirger number of
newer customers as result ofits vaned
product categories and distinet, customer
oriented and effective market exponsion
initintives.

implemented by HDL sire sxpected
to enahle the Company to genernte



higher sharehibléers value and establish
itsedf 3= a responsible corporate citizen
contrbuting back to the socety through
impactful corporate sovial respansibility
initiatives especially in the areas of a green
and sustainable sconomy, envirgEmetal
corservation, health and socinl wellbolng
and basie livellhgod services to the
comimunities and individimls of the
CONLMATY,

A OLALITY PRODUCT OF
FUAALAYAN DIRTILLERY
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AN OVERVIEW

Himilayan Bistillery Ltd, (HDL) is a
dominant and revered name inthe
Nepalese manufacturing industry that
has been delivering exemplary products
and performance sach year. This has
been possible only because of the
Company's high priority and investiment
in areas of research and development,
manufacturing and operations, finance
and investment and marketing and
branding of its international guality
alcoholic beverages while strictly abiding.
by the principles of fair competition,
higher stendards of corporate governance
and business ethics and abgve allan
uncompromised finsncial acconntability
and transparency.




VISION

T be the miost respeci=d liguor
company in Mepal i tetms of profit

MISSION

Rasearch, develop, manufacture and
market guality alenholic products
profitably in a responsible manner
throogh eontinuooes mprovetsent

and shasholds=valus !
x ?
@a" STRATEGIC DIRECTION
HDLaims to achieve of exstng brands
above 75% market 10 ensure HOL i
share Inths SEQIIETE, conimmes prodicing ¢
guidedbythe following  thehrands of first {
strategies: choiceol consumers |
and maintsin price i
= Eemain competitive leadershup. and {
with o balameced = Ensmure oyr efforts
pﬂrtfu]in- il:l a imde in Cmsumers '
= Build on the ¢ Eq‘L‘I:IIj EEEmiEnts. {
Our Code of
Objectives Conduct
HOLsabpctives bavebeen HOL e rnferiond adbmsnrm 1o
Highlighted = follives 1t s rfrmet sod enprelwmeive
™ Alum“ﬁh:hﬂmh Code of Comdury arid this 16 b o
peoductln bty bt bry ol its staff andsappliors
I.hm.'lg,h.l:::::;:'liim A This Cuide dernarraies (e mjpiping
. sl 11 uwpﬂhln behavior stnndasds for
. ' samployees stskoholdens: am)
DPRER AL marked. 1n aadlifbanto s i akso
® Comply with cxiding L s i pilizn s evsnaillent behivbisal
Al 1o ayocale approact frrall of lisstal members
fer anhunting {lw hudinedy 0 vt thasy e eorpowversd withy the
onviimment it s=t ol yibhdelines Lo meintiin
B Ensime brutspanel e further endiapoe HOLS goocwill:
opiratinns ard Apart from this | alsoaims @
iy et fostatr hoalthy Drofessioonal wotlang
A ] sty aborad retaticnshipewithin theromnany
N0 andl sweninally create s respectfin]
R withs e sabectinng prattloes sk hrnse ot - fros (incliding
b eingipye sexual armssnmnt) workplacs &5
eaperonee lhirough 1 el blrerse it apuenibedss HTL
CoEis erploy. lisives 1 stevre urit rmed wlied i
danebiprasmt sod @ atrong. cxnees tv Ui pyesHsaton of Sy
feenis o henlil sl safey, truafur o eobevor o -cdmplisiee
and Witk e Codle of Cintiuel ard deds
B lncreise pofilabillly arml fur) e Pk frn mych - eeded
shiitie yaliiee tlerbnlimary aetiops apd eeprece e
rifeanities g well = dbelplinsEry
L Ve D 00 e e ey of
l=rmuination of ampleyment

Operational

Highlights
‘Himeatayan Distillory
Lyt (HDL baids
alynificenl wdyEness
et EsvE
pitan Bt urieg and
dlistillntio Facilities),
wibuctialion It o prodece
oo el sreynanlngd
Al Bovierins
T distillatien Eant,
et fgnnand Loy B ATEEN
(USa), hasa capacity
af 38 HIPD sred can
produce & p=llion |jj=s
of Exlra Mefilzl Aloohol
(ERA - Additiomally. HDL
has revenily [eeud
frr 3 bt ey - ol ghe Ml
‘Pl Plant o redues
reliance on expunsive
Ermrpacerts oF BARIE Spriis

Thie cninpany ezl
phtiroug duslbly ekl
Eaboraiimes rellect fmgily
stopdlact copmriltment (o
auality pimd conhiilency
atives (ks produc) rangs

Buq&lgghaﬂu:ﬁﬂ

and professionaliom:
@ COREVALUES

= Focis on LN
cosiDmer INtEgTity,
b= L s L ) teammwwori and

= Commatted to COMpEHlvEness.
stringent guality = Fosteran
central: atmosphere

= Biligent of openness,
InnE e, miatvation: ang
and creative respect foreach
achieving our other.
goals Workwath

poset by the ovrmrme
slywlonn, HOL g s
stk ek il beres
Vo e s ey oS
productinncraniie
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Financial Overview (5 vears)

Sl WL TN
PARTICIILARS IOTS-I0 F0I0-38 Zr-73 0= HIE3d
Saizs{CEsec) G040 BAZAT2 81685 70557 L L
et Snlas 2A0LEZE JEHRAEE A,050.120 270 20E14%7
OGS 1365 1ATATE 1572365 1201550 FREE0R
Gross Profiy L2450s3 2730945 ZAES TS 17e%,963 i)
Tnrfirest Bgmnsss S3E52 HLAGE L5574 FAgES PROOGS
ER{TDA oI A3 ARG ASTLEEL Pt AE3u
M O persiing: Jracmmes F5 TRA5E 2330 10208 536
Blenreiatiam 440 630 5100 S En GLABE ES ]
EBIT 57351 1425351 LA e HOEEag A97ax
Firmncinl Bxparsas A0ZAE 17225 2157 4 510 1344
ERT AITONE TADRI2S 1419735 AT AIEOTT
Tax 160177 ‘BRETIE 362,794 1335 131029
et Prafit ABEHT 1041397 1055940 o] SEaME
Stmre Capriis] STEAEE: eI 1SIET75 2T 56T AR
Hon-Current Somywmas 1955 b g . - -
Hon-Curren: Lease Fayshios - = 2125 Lia3 Aas
Delerran Tis Listilties TYET FEH 33305 Do HI? zaas]
Progerty, Plant =t Equipment ] E13FEE 447484 dsEntr 64 25
Capital Warkin Hrgress - - - 35 I asi
Frtangihle Avcrm g as] E&7 1006 10960
RiZhTin the asEe . . na7r L& 11635
OitHér Non-Current Assets 32071 22431 20003 A8 AZTIS
Imvestirient FOO0T 5,000 101100 01100 fiiin
Dieferred Tox Assets - - . - -
imventory A26305: 554 207337 AT3E2A AMISS
Arcount Hermyahles ST ST743 150553 LUGETTT G
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12137 {11 LOBA 422 452591 123h202
Other 8ank Balonces . - 51847 TEASE Lo
Oher Charrems sty 3463 jnate) 1) HT R 10a{E2 101 58]
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Tomal Assets o 199518 2309658 3102 368 3EE9308 SEI7E2
Tatal Caipital & Linhllitizs 1998518 23065 3192369 3EE0.30E 3EIEIEI
Capitsl Emmicyed 14404784 2O0EDTE LELEID I ISTR04 335416
Ket Worth LIR2ASE 2004555 LB 3354804 3355018
Croes Profir Momin Sk B a1 a0 S,
Dmevsting Freil Magin e 5 365 e B%
Nt imatic Margm s 2= 2% 2% e
Diiwidtend Py Shore {C3sh} = o 10 15 5
Diiden Per Share Bonusd 50 Ta el 1G 15
Doy Der Sharm [nzsrim) - - - - -
Shars Price Per Share End ol £7) 150 s53r 40 2348 1364
Earming Per Shore a1 120 0 x "
Price Earmieg fatn 20 45 ) FE) 101
Net Weirth Perdhiare ar) 21 my 138 Vi
Ratvtrrs sy Eigerity “3T% o7, I 20% T
vty on Capital Empioyed AT T S0 I 15%
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Operational Overview (s years)

2019-20

= Growth affected
due 1o COVID-19
panit e guring
The peak seasai

= 345 decrease i
sales guantiy. 24%
dErTEAsE 1IN PEVETILE
And 13% decrease 1n
met it

= Distrimited cash
draend ol 50%: and
50% bomss shares
matniEning Hil%
dyidend for the
SECON CONISETHTIVE
YEAL

2020-21

= L millliin casos of
Ceilbden Oale (G0
sald for the 24 e
inaficeal year

= Stavied contmet
bittiing of GO In
another company

m 140 Oresth in the
agjes of Black Dak

m launchedn
premim brand
in 40 VP zegment
Bluae Cigh

= Ervedie grosvth by
4%

= Nes profit growth by
10%%

m [Hetwbted caly
chividend ol 2%%: and
15K banue shares
malntaining 100%
dhividend lor thind
vear ina

2021-22

w I mniliiomn cases
of Golden Oak
(G0) sold for
e 37 Ume i a
hscal year

» 3% Growth
in the sates of
Hlack Calr

» 5% Growrhiin
thesales of Blue
e

= EEyee
enowiit by 10%

w Netprofit
growtit by 1459%

= eiribated
cashidividend
af 0% and 60%
bonus shares

2022-23

™ mﬁnﬂl.lﬂ!{l
new closire
imported from
Ukraine jn
HE0ml Products
af Oak Series
and new botile
i Rlack oak
50 mlioadd
grEminmness
“Hest presentad
Nk pal
Annunl Reports
HI22% in
manifactiring
category by
ICAN,

s Distribuizd [inal
ca=h dividend
af 15% and
busnus sl of
10%

e

[T Fok i Tad, J
=k dihE LI

2023-24

= Eoanciecd A new
product Siver
Cakin40 Up
Vodka sepment
in the month of
PevEmber 2073

= impact of
continued
SCONOIMNIC
slovedown
in Met sales
revene with a
cerrense of 20%
than Last Year,
thus decreasing
PAT by 45%

= Gold Award in
“Best presented
Mationnk Aol
Beports 20235 n
manufacturing
category by
TCAN.

= Distriited fnal
cashdividend of
5% and bonus
stinre of 15%

ANNUOAL KERQRET 21225
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Financial Highlights (5 years)
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MACRO-ECONOMIC
OUTLOOK: A

COMPARATIVE INSIGHT

OF THE YEAR 2023-24

This higher inflation in the domestic economy can be.
attritarted tovarious national end (nermational factors
namely the unpredicmhility of global fusl prices, distuprions
in the supply chain. and the angoing and often unfavorable
impacts of the Global Geo-political instability: Inthe review
period of 2023-24, there have beon slisht imprevements in
tha ligmdity condition of the Nepaiese economy as compared
o the previous year However, the country's financial sector
iz not free from the moyrind of effects resuiting from the
tightened banking policies as well as the slow economic
TECOVETY,

IntherevieWwperiod onecan seeongoing financial
transitions in the domestic economy. althotgh the morger
of Nepalese comuroercial banks progressed Ina positive light
in the cormesponding period, the businesses GpeTating 1n
the cauntry had 1o feel strained os a result of the operational
dmllmgnsmmdbynﬂngmrmmﬂmtmnpnmzﬁsm

a country has remained nphmmhnvdw:h can be attributed
ta its growing young popelation, which Holds promésing
potential for fong-torm growth of the country.

In the year 202324, the alcohol industry of Nepal also
witnessed some shifts in the geerall consnmer heharior,
Similar to the previous year, Qusomers continued to
priositize the purchase of essential commindities oy thisir
fivelihood as compared to gremium purchases A< 3 resultof
this. the llquorindustry, particularly the premitm segment
of lighoss. was affected since constiimars continoed toshift
towards amore affordables, fast-moving brand so that thay:
can manage both their need for aleoholic beverages without

15 STMALATAN EITTALET LT

A= o Macropdannmic and
Financlal Report of Nepal Rastra
Banh (NER) lie OOF withessedd
;gmwﬂ:m "mwhﬂaﬂm

> 44%

Inthe FE207324,

perind alen had broader imparts across several imdustriss
Specifically. the autornobile sector witnessed some traces

of recovery bur stili had rounderzo a 40% deciine o overal]
sales for the year On the other hand, Nepaf's logistics sectar,
which suffered a 70% drop fast year rebounded sltightly in the
carrespoending period, though its recovery stood a cnly 30%.

In rontmastto sevoral sther ndustrie:. Nepal's tolacon
mdustry experienced 2 meager loss of % in t< prentium
stgmatt when its overall regular rrarket grew by 10%. In
moimest. the Nepalese noodie ndusiny experienced an
cverall decline of 10%. primaniy in the premium segment,
which shrunk by 12%, while the economy segment grew

by 15% Similariy, in the personal care. sector the country
inereased lts overmll revenue despite tedivead sales volumes
but increased reventie due to higher prices for cssemtial
producte

Business Review
of HDL for the year
2023-24

The overall liguor industry of Nepal mcluding Himalayan
Distillery, had to undorgo several challonging global and local
economic conditions inthe pear 2623 However, it is to be
noted that despite the shorT-term sethacks resultng from the
national and international economic crises, they also brought
with them different opportunities for strategic adaptation.
Abidinig by thisfact, HBL cominonsly refined lis business
aprrnaches which enabled it to leverage markst trends for
sustainable growth.

& the beginming of the review perjod, HDL's initinl growth
pojections for the lquor marketindicated serowthof 55



tor the first quarter, with expectations rising 1o 6% for e
second quarter-As sucha growth of 5-6% goowth in the Uguar
marketwas projected for the first haif of the review period.
Althensgh these mumbers are comparatively Jower than e
preceding fiscal year. they act as crucial benchmarks for

HEL e=nabling it to effectively adjost to the coTrent economic
environrnent and seize sierging cpportunities to chartera
path of sostainability and growth.

Somme of the major trends which have affocted HILS overall
business performance in the review paricd have been
highlighted balow

EXTEMDED ECONUMIC CRISIS
= Causp

In the review pariod, the ongoing slobal economic instability,
fucted by the Russia- Ukrnine war, led to flucruaring fuel and
gas prices which further impacted the statos of mflation
inNepal inaddition o this. the Government of Nepal

also MpDsed TMpaTT resrictnns, resricied operaians

of conperative organizations. and all these unfavorable
eonnomies challenges forther faled to the ever rising
permanant mipration of Nepalaze youths.

w Imipart on the industoy;

The eronomic challenges of the year 2029-24led forising
cases of default payments and diffimnlties in collectineg funds
for the entire iguorindustryand HOL was no exception
thiz Az surh, the liquldity issies affected both theretail and
whalesale sortors. which ultimately drevre the consurners
tiapt for more budgst-friendly alternatives suich'as 70

UP brands and bomensnde spirits. This shift iInconsunsr
behavior eventually led 1o 8% of consumers trading down
from premium products to mare atfordab e offerings, making
itharmder for high-end brands to retsin their svlsting rearhet
share

STRICT RAMETH SORME

= C3usp

The Nepaless banking sector continued toface challengis
from the high fovels of non-performing assets (WPAL slow
fumd motation, and a prolonged gqoidity crmeh doe o
elevated loan interest mtes. All of these factors adversely
lguot eertor. making it challenging for companics to sequrs
fumding and maintain lqmding for bisiness growth

= iminact onthe Tndustry

HOLs meatlersand distnbutors akso focused on fast-mioving
brands often cutting margins o stay competioe i the
market This aggressive prce-cutting becsme 3 common
indusiry practize, especially in the economy segment in
susmin the cash flow In the reviewW perisd. an-premise

consumption of nicoholic drinks also dropped sienuficantly,
as consinmers neduced thelr spendmg on non-essental items
and favored essential purchases for their lyelinood. The
eomomie cneemns of individual eonsumers ighly sabdoued
festivities throughout the year and as a result afthis the
e mdusiry witnessed decline fnhigh- end liquar saies:

NEW COMPETITION

wCaLRe:

In the review period, the economic downtum of the
Nepalese economy also led many companies totake rishs
try diversifying into e segreents of the llonor marls
Degpite tough economie amd markst eondifiones, a total of
12 gew brands were introduced In the yoar 2073 Inwhich
the core focts was towards affordable catecories to e th
comparatively highly price-ssnsitive CONSUNIETS.

= impact on the Industry;

New product launehies across the whisky and vodhs
categuries created increased competition for esmblished
brmnds, including Himaloyan Gistillery in the cormesponding
paricd. Overall 12 new produtts Were lawnched by
competitors during the vear. [n the whiskycamonry, brande
lile= Royal Blue {40 UP), Imparial Blue, Grey Woil, and AM5
Himalayas made their market entry. Similarly, brands such
a5 f&48 fye Vodlm, Yeti Vodke and Bermies & Blue (40

UE) entered the vodka segment. Inaddition to this, lecally
prduced rums such 3= Karda Bum and Maksto Qumy, alzo
gamed popularty = consumess ught lormore afferdable
altermnatives.

These new brands, especially inthe economy segment,
have captured sisnificant consumer attention especially
the consumers whio are highly price-conscious. This shift
in consumer mindset and purchasing behavior has driven
=strong sales for economy brends, while preminm offerings
have srrugnled 1o maintmin their markershame
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OEFORATE COVERRANDE

HDL'= gverarching approach towards
corpamate govemance has not anly assisted
it 1 guarantes l[awiuland ethical spemtions
buir also in upholding its market credibilitg,
financidl stability, and lang-term prosperity,
all while champloning respansible usiness
practices in the dynamic alishalic beverage
industry of Nepal.

Governance 2%
Policies

Himalayun Distillery Limited (HDLY's commitment
to robust and responsible povernance s distinetly
evirlent 1 1ts seres of essential policy documents
govermng diverse facets of its gverall operations:

TheCompany's Procurement Manual clearty
demarraies stringent procedures for acquinmg
goods and services for the Compamy whils h.i,g]il}_.
emphasizing tmnsparency and cost-effectiveness
in tha1ts procurenient Processes N0 muaiter what
thescale of procuremerit ik

Similarly, there isin place a well defined HR and
Administration Manal that efficiently establishes
Faur pod congistent prociices for human respurmes;
managerment and administrative fimetions ood
hins enablad HDL to creats a conduicive work
emviroimment for isvalusd saff membars

HDL has in place a robust [T Manum] with utmost
emphasis ondota security, access controls,

ond network management which has enabled

the srganization to enswre the ritegrity of
mformation and complances with national and
international Jegal pamamsters In the context ofan, |
increasingly digital landscape.

HELs imtermal CSR Guideline lns helped the
comparsyto reinfores its dadication 1o contribute
back to the socisty via several well thought
corpomte swial eaponsihility inititnres while
suiding HOLs efforts in the areas meluding

but notbmited to sustamability, commumity
engagement. end sthical business practices.

Az awhole all of these povernance policies have
provided the Company with a comprehenzive ,
fmmework that hos empowered it tomaimtain | ¢
ethica!, rransparent, and responsinle operations:
and are in close alignment with HDL's N
commitmment to excallanse and corporate social
responsibilliy
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OEFORATE COVERRANDE

Profile of Directors

Akhileshwar Prasad Singh

CHAIRPERSON

M. Singh's temtre with the
company began in 2006 when

he became 3 Board member.

His progression led to s
appointment as Chair in 2017, a
position he retoined after being
selected o the AGM held In 2022
asthe Chairpersan Natably, his
background mcludes serving as

a former Zomal Commissioner
and artve irvalremenst as a docial
includeswalushle sperience
coliaborating with governmental
and non-governmental entitiss
emphasiring the enhancament of
governance sthurtures

Narendra Kumar Basnyat
D TON

Mr Bsstiyat was instromantal

to HDL Baard as the Tormer
Chairperson ond hashad a
|ongstanding affiliationwith the
company for over two decades His
diverse biusiness engagements
Includs Founding Chafrperson

of the Nepal USA Chamber of

Commeree & Industries znd kolding

the pasition of Former Chairat the
Bank of KEathmandu His sxtensive
ExpETIENCE exteruls to seTving &5 A
Tormer Member of the Exectiftee
Committes of the Federation of
Nepall Chambers of Commerce
and Industries {TNCC), Frestdent
of the Confederation of Nepalese
Industries (CNI), Furthermmiors,
he has contritted as the Former
Executive Director of the Economis
Libemlization Project, 4 venture

Shanher Raj Pandey

DIRECTON

Mr Pandey has been lrithe

HDL board since 2009, He isa
development professiondl with
wide experiznce in both the public
and private sector of the economy
especially in areas of commence

& indiistries. haalth, energy,

and economic development He

iz alsn associated with several
not-for- profit orpanizatibns

that are working in the fisld of
education and mental health. He
Is a groduate of Xavier University
and Georgstown University and
was also a Humphrey Fellow at
Américan Unversity in 1957-98.

<
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Santoo Shrestha

DIRECTOIN

Mr. Shresthia hias been in the HDL
board sines 2009 Heholds a
Barhelor's degree in Internintional
Business Management [rom
University of Maryiand He s alsa
tha former Director of Kinmar Rank
Lt Heisalso the Viee-Chairperson
af Rosebud School. Joint Manazing
Director Seorya Holdings Pt Lid.
and Directar of Yetl Originals Pvt
L

Yanghila (Sherpa) Ruit
ENRECTON

I

e Fait foined the HDL boand in
theyear 2020, Sheis a tourism
entrepreneurwho has woh varions
awarnds and accoladeas for her
contribution Sheis the former
State Mimister of the Government
of Mepal (2005/06) and Parlisment
Member (2001-2007). She liag

alsn been the {armer President

of the Federation of Woman
Enitrepreneurs of Nepal [FWEAN)
and Trekling Agents Association
of Mepal (FAAN). Sheis a recipient
of the Abratam Conservotion
Award from the World WildLife
Fund (WWT) anil the Priyadarshani
Awrard a8 Oumstanding Wanman
Entreprenenr of Nepal (1999) from
the Fedarntion of Internatiomal
Women Entrepreneurs {2000).

Prakash Mani Ghimire

DIRECTORINDEDENDENT,

Mr. Ghimire has besn serving asan
mdependent dirertor at HDL since
2011 He has extensive experience
mvarious Agri-based businasses.
Heisalep the former General
Manpeerof Bhributi Pulp & Paper
Netia] Liisted
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Progress Through Unity

Fespected Shareholders, Honorable Guests, Journalists,
Friends fiom Security forces, and our dear s1afi members

[ am immensely delighted and grateful to be able to
welcome you all 1o today’s 24th Annual General Meeting of

Himalayan Distillery Limited

s the Chairperson of the Boord of
Directors, Twould lile to extend my
sincers appreciation to eaach one of you
present here for graciously accepting
our imntatign and for blessing us with
your valuable time by attending this
remarimble gathering

Likie amyother business organization

in Hepal HOL had its fair share of falr
share of challenges and achisvemsnts
throughout its several years of operations,
Yot omidst sl those uncerminties and
disruptione your unwavering support and
goodwill hasenabled us o overceme all
thesze tests and trials of time and carve gur
unigue cath of sustainability. rowth and
FUCCESS

In the review pariod of 2023-24 _the
economic environment of the country
posed significant challenges for our
brEiness. We faced a siovwddown inoveral!
domestic econumic activities, steep

inclinatiomin prices of petrolewm
products; rising costs of vatious row
materiald. spike In rates of secise duties,
imitenseand often unhealthy marlet
competition and a steady dediine in
disposable mrome of our consumeTs
and all of these Botors jointy and
adversely affected ourisiness growth
and revenle streaims. We are sure tat
wewill contimue cing many such
chiallenges in the coming days as well Yet
we are confident that your nnwarering
guidonos snd noompromised sHpport
shill eontinue to be indispensable for
HDLU'sgrowth, surress. and stistaimability
and we are confident to rersive Yo
cooperstion in the days to come.

In past fewyears, additions! contingent
varinbiet includine but not limited to
the orerarching effecis of COVID-19
pandemic and the dengue omthreak,
along with several global seopolitical
uncertainties. fnlemating el prices.

ANNILLRERORT in=Ss 3



OEFORATE CONVESNANDE

and disruptions inthe row matadal
supply chain, have created further
clallenges {or the Company. Ik addition
to this, inreasing foreign exchangs
=Eies, tmnsportation costs, and alirming
prices of imported row maternals and
packaging hiove diven up HDL s overall
produrtion and operational mrerheads.
Furthermore. the annual incremenis

In exrise dirties on liquor prodocts
tmposed by the Government of Nepal

hmve pressured oor procduct prices leading:

to price adjustments that cotnelds with
comtimuously declining purchasing
capacity of our mnsumers Thismismmtch
s dearly evident in the decline of cur
annunl business transactions,

To address these challenges and

ensure sustaimable growth, HDL has
developed and implemented ssveral
strategicinitiatives Some of such major
interventions have been highlighted as
foliows:

= Establishment of a Malt Spirit
Production Unit to diversify and
enhance production mpacity

= Conversion of orain slides cenemted
during spirit production into dry cakes

for sale, promoting efficiency and
environmental sustainability.

= Avrymtion of plant opetations to
enhinre prodictivity and quality of
spirits production and reduction
aoveral| production costs.

Once these projects are completed and
fully operational we anticipate a notable
reduction in pur aggregate production
overheads as well as enhancement
mquality along with an overail
improvemerit in carenvironmental
sustainability practices We are also
aimed at firther upgrading our produc
guality and for this, we hare initisted
SN metumation Processes af our
factory site [n additon tocthis: 2w have
ales acguired land outsige our factory
to develop maturation fmdlidesunder
high Himalsyan tempemtures and Tam
delighted tolet you know that we have
already made significant progresses in
this fromt.

HOL's continued resilience and growth
has besn possible only becauss af our
estesmed shareholders, distributors,
wholesalers, retailers, consumers,
management team, staff members, and



Arious evernmerit nd regulatory bodisx:
We remain sxtremely thanlful and deeply
grateful to all of you for your imvalimhle
contritritinns and unwaverng support for
the Company and we look forward to your
continned cooperation m the daysahead

Aswe navigate throish the myriad

af challenges esulting from Intense
competition. maint@ining and further
expandine cur sales and distritution
channels Temains as purtop priority. 1
have slready shared withiyvou all thit we
are adopting new technologiEs to produrs
high-quality spirite, malt spirits, and
reluted by-products tn effectively address
thess challenges.

Forthis fiseal year, we have proposed 2 5%
rash dividend (inclusies of dividend )
and a 15% honus share from the company's
profits for ourvalushle sharehalders

‘We are confident that your valuahle
ingizhisand unmatched goidance will
halp empower us to shape the futire
direction of Himalyyari Distillery Lmited
! weold algo like 1o scpress my sncere
gratiturte to the Office of the Company
Registar, Nepal Secunties Board, Nepal

Stock Dxchange. Departmentof Industry,
inland Reverue Deparmment, inland
Eerenues0Offices Labor and Employment
Office, as well as various financial
mstitutions and resulatory bodles for
theirimvaluable support and guidance
throughout these vears.

A= conclude, T =xt=nd my heardelt
thanksto HDLs mansgement team,
employees, workers, shareholders, and
well-wishers for thewr dedication; hard
work. and contribution to the Companys
sureess. 1 hope for your continued st
armd suppart as we move forward

Onre again, | warmly welcome all
sharehalders to this 24th Anmum| General
Mesting and invite you o engagsin
meaningful dizcussions and approve the
proposals Ested In'ioday’s agenda for the
sirress and sustainahle growth of our
COHNpADR

Thank yot

Chairpersan, Beard of Directars

ANNUOAL KERQRET 21225
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Business Innovation

Re-Engineered

HDL faced one of its most challenging period in the Hscal
y.ea_} 2080/81 It had to undergo through adverse impacts
of both global and local economic downturns which led

to & reduction inconsumer spending, leaving an indelible
adverse impact on the company's sales. -

Bear Valued Sharehalders,

| feel deeply honored and privilegad to
b= ableto address you onfeagmin in this
mesting where we look back to another
vear flled with remarkable achievements.
Cur jowrney has been marked with
anmmched growth, resilience and
inmoation throughout these years and |
am happy ta be tharing with eurvalued
shareholders thay we hove beenableto
COntinue our exemplary performance in
the fiscal year 2080/81 aswell The year
2080/ was marked with undeninble
adversities, HOL stood siendfastin

its commnment o delivervalue to lis
stakehplders. mamain its leadershipin
the ever-competitive alcohol industry of
Wepal. and while doing sll this, chartera
sustaingble path for the futume.

1 weould fike to ke this oppornmity (o
ghape with you an in-depth overview
of our perfermance inthe FY 208081

along with the key action points thal we
uriertook o overtome the myriad of
challenges that cameour way along with
our future plans, and most importantly,
OUT UNWEYETINE COMmmitment 10 create
and deliver long-t=rm valee for our dear
shareholders

PERFORMANCE REVIEW: FY 2080/81

HDL fared ok of its most challenging
perind in the fiscal year 2080/81 It had to
urkiergs throughadverse impacts of both
globaland local economic downturms
whichi led o a reduction in cofdmmmer
spending, leaving an indsiibis adver=e
tmpact on the company’s sales Our
Sales Bevenue dectme by 30 percent as
compared (o tie preceding fiscal yoar
amdt stood atan amonnt of Bs. 208 crooes
while our Profit after Tax wimassed a
decline af 45 percent in comparison to
L=t jlenr;mdsh:lmd at an amount of fs.
H:B0 crores.

ARMAL RERDRT 21225 3.5



OEFORATE CONVESNANDE

AT oD o =rT  Despite
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noteworthy that HDL darnonstiated its
orpanirational resiliene by successfully
nunntaining its profitability and efficently
managing its costs Thisresilience =
alto the result of the company's robust
operational strategies and undoubtedly,
theundeterred commitrnent and
dadication of entire HDL tsam.

In addition to this, HDL contimied o
benefit from its zevo-leverape financinl
model and a cash balance of more than
NPE 2 billion s on 3tst Asadh 2081,
ensuring financial srability as well ak =
capacity o Invest in fumre growth of the
COmpany,

STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS

FOR LONG-TERM GROWTH

Despite operating in avery challenging
emvironment, HDL waz sbleto double
down o it sirniegic nvestments witch
were aimedat rinforcing its market
ieadership as well as carving the path
ahead {or sustainable returns. Some of the
majol stratagic investments done by the
comparny are highlighted below:

1. Malt Distillation Unit

HDL took 2 proactive approach by
imvesting in astate-of-the-art Malt
Distillation Unitasa recognition of

the imtermational trend of alcohal
menufaruring onmpanies shifting
twards preminm produrts. This strategic
initiative aims to prodice malt spirits that
will also be mamred mthe Everest Region,
levmraging theunigue climatic conditions

to cteate a premium prodoct with
umaratched character and premimminess.

This investment i al=s 5 part of the
company's broader vision to position
HDL asa renowned global name in the
category of pramium aged spirits. HDL
plans o ainch the first batches of this
premium prodiict in the coming years
We are confident thar the bnmeh of this
premium product will empower the
company o significantly enhance 15
prodict partiolio aswell as its overall
brand equity:

2 Technological Advancements in
TDistillation

The Company has alsa invested in
cutting-edge distillation automatlon
technolbaizs with the interton of
ENFUNNE ronsisEncy and maniammng
its murket leadership in Extra Neutral
Alcohol (ENA) production. These
uperades hasalss enabled the company
tomeet the growing demand for =
prodict offerings whileensuring the
highest qualitystandards

3 Sustainahle Practices with DDGS Dryer
HDL s commitnent o sustaimsliny
hiisbesn clearly demonstiated
through is investment in the dryer
sy=tem for Distillers Drjed Gi=ins with
Solubles |DDGS). This initative not anly
eliminates the nead for maditonal wet
sludge disposal but also reduces the
anvironmeaital impact of ite production
process eventually contribating toa
clean=r and gresner eEEyEeTL

4. Renewable Energy Initintives
The Companyis proactively explonng
coldr energy solutions to address



the demands of ite internal power
consumption with plans to s=ll amy surphies
energy genemmted from thess Initiatives to
the nutional grid Aspart of this initiative,
HEL is closely evahmting the feasibility of
agrivedtaics; whichis o mechamism that
combines renewablaenergy production
with agricultiral activities and also
enahles affireEncy marmmization of [and
use efficiency.

FRODUCT PORTFOLIC EXPANSION
Inthe Fy2020/81 HDL contitigad

its commitmient to diversifying and
strengthening its product portfolin to
effectively address the ever-evolving
preferences of its diverse customer base:

1 New Product Lines

1t ls dalightful news that HDL's Oalk Sarjes,
featuring the promising Silver Cal, has
alrepdy gained tracionin the markst
However, the company belleves inthe
need o continuotsly ourture this product
line for theupcoming 2-3 vears through
{nnovative marketing snd consumer
ergigement strategies and Initistves so
thiat Silver Chik is able to unlock its fll
potential

2. Premium and Deluxe Categaries

HODL hns plans to launch rew products
inthe category of whisky, vodl=, rum,

gin. ligueurs, and ready-to-doink {RTD)
beverages to fill the existing gaps m the
premianm and deluxe segmentsin the
mark=t. HDL belizves that thess categories
hald = t potemitial and as such it
is committed to creating offermgs that
resonate with its demanding consimers:

3. Stmategic Partnerships
The Company e also explaring potentisl

partnerships with vadous mnitinatiorl
compames 50 that it is ahle to bring
internationally recognized products to
Nepal This strategic callaborstion s also
expected to further strensthen HOL's
market position and thereby enabie it

to offer 2 broader range of premium
offerings to sit the unlquaneeds of its
diverse customerz

EXPLORING NEW BUSINESS VENTURES
HDL has not only been expanding its
core gperations; but it is alee exploring
suttahle and profimble opportumities
inadjacent mdusines 5o that it = ahl=

1o further diversify its evisting revenie

SITEams:

L. Fisheries Project

HDL | also ventiring into the fisheries
businsss with the help of a subsidiary,
where it plans o utilize Bz wmeant landto
prodice and supply fresh, mgh-gquality
fish to the market This project isalso

an effective representation ef HDLs
Inrigvative diversifiestion strategy while
ta the same time addressing the demands
of the lomal market and enhancing

its comtributions (o the Mepalese
agricultirs] scenario

2. Merger and Acquisitions

The Company I= alo stringently

evaluating possibiiities of potential
mergersand acquisitions of Distillery
o further soimify its product portfolio;
increass its marqet share, and thersby,
achizve economies of scale.

3. Investment Plan

Inthe future, HDL aims to createa
platform for stmtegic imvestmenis in the
high-growth sectors through optimum

ANNUOAL KERQRET 21225

7



OEFORATE CONVESNANDE

utilizntion of ite mailable resourres sb
that it 15 able o ensiire medmum retums
fitsvaltz=d shawholders. Thisingmtiveis
in closallgnmant with HDL's long-term.
yision to achieve sustamable srowth and
volue cremtion. As such_ ivis evaluoting
warioits options for the bast investment
oppartunities for the Company.

MARKETING CHALTENGES AND
CHEATIVE SOLUTIONS

The Nepalese alcohol industry has
always faced the wrath of the country’s
restrictive advertising palicies for liguor
products and this one factar has always
remained as g persistent challenge

for alechol mamifactanne industries.
Though HDL's direct communication with
consumiers has been offected by these
lirmitatibns. its teams are continuously and
rigormousty developing wivious mnovative
yet compilant marksting sirategles to
enhance brand yisthility and engagement
of its series of product oferings aswell as
the gvemll corpotate brand.

The Comparty has besn able to establlish
meaningful conmections with its diverse
set of censumers through msximum
levernging of different digital platforms,
expenents! marketing. and creative
storyt=lling.

CPERATIONAL EXECE] [ ENCE AND DIGTTAL
THANSFORMATION
To support the Companys growth
ambitions HOL is confimionsly enimncing
itc operational capabilities with the halp of
amuore efficient ERP system, This systen
will also a=sist HOL o further sireamline
it processes, improve IS rEnspurency,;
and epahle data-driven decision-making

All thic will ultiveately helpthe company
tt ensure that |t remains agile and
competitiva Inthe dynamic marke
lendscape

COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE SOTTAL
RESPONSIBILITY (CSE)

HDL i fully aware of its roles and
respurnsibilities az a responsible
ToOrpoTaE citizen and a5 a result ofthis,
it has always prioritized siving back to
the commumnity. The Company’s CSE
initintives are spread scrosea myriad

of areas ineluding but ot limited to
education, healthcare snvironmental
development HOL stromely abides by the
fact that o strong and prosperous sooety
Iz eszentinl for sustainable business
crowth and Has been Implementing

wmrioes C5R initiatiees throughout the

woumry for the same.

EMPLOYEE VAUTE AND RECOGNITION
HDL iswell avare of the fact that e troe
strength lesin Its team of conmpetent
and dedirated employs=s 1t has plir= =
utmost emphasis onfostering a culture of
inciusivity, moovation, and collsbomtion
in the organization: At the same time, 1t
hiisalen placed recognition ahd reward
of employes contributions as an integral
component of s mrevalues andasa
result of this the Company has been
contirmously frest in the growth and

el being of its empioyees.

FY 20BL/BZ- A PROMISING START

It fills mewith immense pride and
pleasure to share with you all that HDL
has been able tp register double-digie



orowth in both Sales Revenue and Profit
afterTax In the first guarter of T¥Y 2081/82
This remarkmhle achiswement i a strong
testument 1o the resilience of HOLS
innovetive and robust strategies and

the dedication and hamlwork of its s
members:

THE HDAD AHFAD

Aswe look to the future, pur roadmap

isclear. Cur path looks very promising

with some of the major sirategies that we

belirrm will assist usto deliverekemplary

performanias in tha days Lo 'come as well

= PFreminm Prolur Teadership weplan
o compleie the Malt THstifiation Unit
ardd lwomeh world -class aged spinits
under the HBL barmner

= Diversification!weaimto further
min Ewer and promisng areas sirhas
fisheries, agrivoltaics, rensvahble ensrgy
el

= Fortiolio Expansion: we are geared up to
introduce new products in the premiom
ardd deluse cateparies so that we areto
capture untapped markst potential and
reap bensfits and value for gurcompany
ard our sEakehalders.

= Spstaimmbility:wie oim to Peduce gur
carbon fobtprint through development
and iImplememtztion of renewable
energy initiatives and sustainable
pEtices.

= Global Presence we are ready to further
expiore viable sxport opportunities
for finished goods and surplus ENA to
establish a global footprint of HDL

DL is ondeterred and steadfast inits
commitment to transparency, complinnee,

and governance; ensuring that every
decision we make aligns with itsvalees
and the interests of {t= stabehalders

As ] denw toacloge, | would Hes to

teiterate the fact to pur dear shareholders
that HDES journey isa shared suocess
story-All of our achisvements are

based on the strong Findston of

your trust, suppart, and beliafin o
vision. The joumey shead will require

14 fo navigaie through a series of
unchartered chollenges and seize
berieficial opportunities 1 assure you that
In the days to come, HDL will contime

to pricritize your interests, deliver
exceptional returmns, and bulld s legsoy of
excellence as a successful, dependable
and susminable organization:;

We are confidentt thit we shall not anly
b= able to ovel the patly akéaad that is
filled with promises and dreams. and
together with yourundoubted trust and
unwavering support we shall hbeable to
mukee HDL 0ot just a notional market
leadar butales a global namiethat
resonates with guality, lnnovation, and
sustaimability

| onice ngain express my heartfelt
apprecizbon 1o each one of you foryour
continued support and confidence and
l amn eonfident that HOL will fontimia
TECEIVITE JRID TSt and assstance to
achieve n=v milestonss and cr=at=
lasting valee for senerations 1o come,

Niraj Subedi
Chief Deecutive Officer
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MOEFIRATE CONVESNANDE

Profile of Management Team m—————————

Prabin Pant

CHIZF INTERNAL AU

Mr Pant, an MBA graduste, hoy
recently taken on the mle of Chisf
nternal Auditat HDL Beforethis,
ke spent ste prarswith an FTMCG
EGroup, whese hewns mvotal in
mvestmarnt manassement and
financial contrale With 17 yearsof
exparience in the banking cector.
beginning at Standard Chartersd
Bank and advincing through
wnous commercial banks in
significant reles, he bring=a
wealth of expertise in financial
mANAgement and ompliance

Niraj Subedi

Er SABCUTUIVE GREILER

Mr: Subadiwas appointed the Chief
Exeanive Officer of HBL m July 2023
Heisa Chartered Acooonimnt with o
Masters degree in Econgmics Heis
alsn Law Graduate from Nepal Law
Campus along with a certification
a=a Centified Financial Manager
fromthe Cenire for Fimmeial
Maomagement in Tratia. With over

1% years of sxt=nsive sxpeTiencein
Fimanee and Operatlons ir the liguor
|ndustry, hepossesses a desp and
broad Imowledge based in financial
plarming and analysis, supply chain
mansgement and market trends,
along with o deepunderstanding of
the production processes specific
toalceholic bevernoes, His tenure
has been maried by 2 steadfas:
commmitmEnt 1o internatinmm| qualine
stardamis, corpoTate governanTe, ad

conbimous intovation.

Amul Ghimira

ENIDR TEE NI AL MNEANAGER

Mr: Ghirnires 3 B. Tech
Gradoate in Food Science and
Technology. aiso hoids degrees
m Physics and an MEA With
over 2 decade of exiensive
expenence in manufacturing
mriuding Fermentation,
Cuality assumnee RED, Project
Mansgement, and Operation
Manigement in State-of-the
art Distillery amd Brewery,
heslso has an Intermational
Diplarna in Erewing tachnology
from Seibe] Instituie of
Technology, USA & Domens
Alsidemie, Germany along
witha Diploma in Brewing
from Institute of Brewing and
Distiiling from London. UK



Netra Prasad Timsina Nabin Upadhyaya

AL B LOMPLIANCE MaNALEH FACTORNY MANAGER

Mr Timsinaholds s Mr Upadhyaya has been
bachelor's degree and has servingas the Tactory

mare than two decades of Manager at HEL for the past
maltable experience inthe fouryears Heholdsan MBA
coumiTy s legal landerape, degres and brings orer 17

along with fen years as years of diverse profes=ional

& COTnpany SerrstEry i ENPECISNCE ACT0ss VATIOUE

tha liguor industry. He arganizations Additionally,
specializes in industrial |sies he Has complated tmining

and regulations andhasa in Food SafetyAveaneness |
strong command of both {Smndnrd=in Menufacuiring)
nntional and intermational m the United Kingdom and
environmental laws: possesses extensive inowledee

of proeduction processes,
regulatary complinnee, and
quality contrg] spedific to te
Vepuong srutnstry, (0] 4

O
jeavan Panday

Sudesh Pouds]

ME AR i i A0
SR B el

Hed el gt L

Mr Poudel has recently joined Mr: Fanday, fn professional

HDL asa Brand Manager He FCCA pnd MBA gpradvate,
holds a bachelors degres bas been with HDL Ior the
and has over 21 yearsaf past four years He has
diverse experience inthe over a decade of extensive
marketing field across warious - EXQPETIENOE I VAo
organizations Hebrings Companies across the

in wealth ofexperience In manufarinmg and seTvice
trode marketing ol srals zartnrs, demonstating

in ehannel munagement, his expertise and insights
promotions. customer | financid] planning.
msights. and [MstEring retailer budgating project planming
relatlotichipsts drive cales and and redource managemant.
markst presence He is playing o pivoma] role

inDperation and vanous
Projects.
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OEFIRATE CONESNANDE

Profile of Management Team m————————

O

Bajeey Humar Yaday

SCHNCAL HESSARTH L

§ B P3N A s

Mr. ¥adavjoined HDL e reazarch
and application departmentin
July 2023, hiolding a maister’s
degres in Fermentation tnd
=Alcohol Technology from
Kanpur; Indea 15 7023 he also
completed a fellowshipin
Fermentaticn Technelogy. With
overten yoirs of experiente
a= anAleobol Technologist,
he specalizes nprodure
development across various
lipuor sectors demonstting
sxpertise in fermentation.

pProcessss.

Anjali Shrestha

HUMAN RESOURCE MANACGE]

M= Shrestha has beenat the
helm of the Human BEesource
Blepartmentat HOL for the past
four years She earned her MBA
from Kathmando Tniversity,
spemaliving in Himan
Eespurre Mzmapement, With
gverseven years of substantil
sxpenence in the HR field he
brings a wealth of expertise and
kniowledge toher position.

]
e

M= Shrestha. an MBA graduate,
i='alsn a semi-gualified
Chartered Accountant She
hbz recently joined HDE and

iz leading daily managerial
fimnnee in the company as well
as providing strategic iInputs
on financial planning. She

has extensive =xperience of
over adem@de in arconnting,
mmanufaciuring aswell as
serviceindusities



ﬂmar Maharjan
U5 &SNS CHALN M3 NASGEH
Mr Maharjan'a Chartered
Arveountant with a bachalor's
degres in sooponts and finance,
leads the MIS & Supply Chain
department at HOL amiebe
fas held since january 2024
With over five years of diverse
Expant:w in MIE reparting,
[iman-iz} planning: anabysis, and
audit he lererages his expertise
and imowiedge to stpport data-
driven menapemeit reporting.
sirategic decisinfi- making.
and afficient suppily chain
coordination

'S
Dt

o

Nilounj Ghimire

T T hi LAY

Mr Ehimire has over 18 years
of progressive sxperisncein
procuremeEnt Across various
sectorg including develbprment
and manufacturing: He

158 trained Procurement
professional with certifications
in ethics and an introductory
CIFITSE QI PIoCIEment

from UNTPA He posseses
extenEie Imowledee n vendor
negohiation =mhetion,
materinls manegemenl. and

supply chain manasement

Shrida Shah

[} LN ] _ _‘___': : =

Mg Shiah has recentiy joined
HEL asa Brand Manager.
She holds a mosters degres
and hasover adecade

af diverse experienee

in the development and
manufarining sectors With
expertize in public relatinns
event mansgement, and

brand m.ar]\_-ﬂtr.nu she playe
z =y rate In developing
strategic and tartical plans
for all our brands

D

Nishza Niraula

Me Nirnula holds o Mastar's
Degreen Law and has
bren with HOL for the past
three years: Shaaleo catves
asa Bpam Mermber at the
MNepal Institute of Company
Secretanes (NICS) arvd
hassipnificant experience
inthe nnmanitarian and
development seriors
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OEFORATE CONVESNANDE

Corporate
Governance
Overview

Himaloyan Distillery Limited (HDL)g
COMMItMENT t corparate socml
resporsibility (CSR) has been exemplified
thiough s povernance framework which
heavily emphasizes=thical susminabls,
and community-centric practices The
Company's intense foous on responsible
shareholder relations, sustainability, fair
employee relations; and sctive community
engapement shed light on Its dedication
mot anly to profit generation and Ananetal
growith but also 1o the well-being of the
overall environment and socety, HBLS
integrated approach s ciose alignment
with [ts CSR prineiples: showeasing HDL's
efforts to minimize its ervimonmental
impait support local commimities, and
promsts Tesponsible practices within the
aleohalic beverage industry. A= amesult
HDL s govermancs structine isinextrocably
tinked with it CSE initintives. reflecting

a hollstic approath to businsss that goes
beyond profits and prioritizes roadsr
‘sacial and envimnmental implications of
#1s opemtions

Business ethics,
compliance, and
anti-corruption
measures

Himalayan Distillery Limited (HDLYs
rommitment to corporate social
responsibility (CSR) has been examplifisd
thirough its governance framework wihich
heavily emphasizes ethical. sustaimable,
and community-centric practices. The
Company's intense foris on responsible
shareholier relations, sustainability, o
employes relations, and active cofmmonity
engagement shed light on its dedlston
niot only to profit gesemtion and financial
growth butalss to the well-being of the
aversell environment and society, HOLS
imtegrated approach has dose alionment
with its CSR principles. showeasing HDL's
efforis w mimimize ts environmeirtal
impact support lowal communities and
promats responsible practices within the
airoholic beverage industry, As o result,
HDLs governance structure 15 inextricably
linked with its CSR initiatives; teflacting

a holistde appraarch to tasiness that poes
beyond profits and prisritizes broadss

its pperations

. B
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OEFIRATE CONESNANDE

Annual compliance repert related to corporate governance

iPursEnt o the Govermmee Guidelines of Lisied Body Corporpte, 2074 G0
Adidress Tmm inchoding Website irars=. Birgam Metropolitan Gy, Ward MNo.2i, Spaninmts Farss, leison Office Latitpor
Metiopnlian Oy, Ward No. 05, |zt [=lemir
mml’m'nuﬂ's"_‘ﬁnihr? LTI
Fiscal year of presemerion ol report 200, 0E1 (3023 003d)

1 Detailsrelating Board of Directors:

a) Name of the Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Date of Appointment: Mr. Akhileshwor Prasad Singh. date
jamary 26 202 A D

bl Details regarding the share stmoture of the organization {prometer, ordinary public and othersh Lack-in period of the
Company has been completed Thersfore. all the shares have been listed by canverting into ordinary share-

) Detnils relating Board of Directar

1 M Al s tmvor Prassd Car=rs| Puhli 10Ea0 frsimry 12 fersirary 12 Anpoin=t by the Carmemal
Singi, Sartail 023 AL 023 AL Meeing through ssction

1 . Norsrzirs Kormsr Gemsra| Fubiic 17F35 sy 12 iy 12 Appainted B the Gensrs]
Ba=nymt. (=hipoer itsrd Wl itsrd Wl Meeting throuzh elecion
Metromditen Clty
Ward Ko 01 Hirmondale

3 Mr Sh=nker B Fendey,  Gensral Pubie V6 EmErylR ErmrETy 12, Anpoirized by the Geners]
Ot Beresnwar, dsthrmendy MoEAan pitsr 2 Wul Meeting throuzh elecion

4 M. S=mine Shrestis iwer=ral Puhlis e Tanimry 12 Tamiary 12 Appoine=d by the Cemal
EMC-11 Thapsihai JOIFAD JOIFAD Meening tfoouph sisction

L1 M= YenpEiz (Sherma) Cerara| fuhtic 1o BErmnETy 12 Ty 1 Anpointed Brthe Gensrz]
[aasr, AME -0, Rewa! MoEan MoEan Meeting throuzh lecion

e M Pralmss Mam Chimirs, Independant Tty 35, Tty 5, Prrsamit i rile 6 (8} of the
falipor Meoopoiitan P lire X Wl P lived Wl Artictes ol Associstion
iy 03, Puichink o tha £UTIREY,

d) Mesting of Boand of Directors

LETE AND MITMAER OF HEETINTGSR
OFTHE BOART OF DIRFTTINEY
COSEVEEED THEIRES: THIE FEEHID

1 SepiEmberS 2023 & pETSOns Yes Ne Adsgust 79 2002

. Norember 26, 2027 & pETRONE Ye= No Nvember 87072
3 December 3, 173 & EETE0nE fes Mo November 24, 0F
4 IAmee=ry 10 IO A pEm=Enm s N Mevemit=r 25 2003
! March 11, 2024 & peTRoTE Ye= He [ErmEmry 11 2032

& flarch T2 J028 & pETEONE TeE No Anr 4, 3033

7 Mgy 10 2008 EPuipria] os Mo My Ia 203

B Dy 2 FOTA S pEEnes s N My 25 M3

0 fubyr L 2024 & oo b Ne July 72023

10 fuby 7. 3024 A persims TeE Ho

18 [uby X2 Hl24 & EETS0TE Tos Mo

The mesting of the Board of Directors conwvened this yearwas not adjourned doe to lack of the goomm:



) Other details relating meeting of Board of Dmectors

Whether the director and altermste director attended
the meeting of the board of directors (if not, disclose the
reason along with the date of the mesting))

1 Gn September 5, 2023 Directar Yangkila Sherpa Fuit
s out of the Villey and could nor attend the mesting
2 OnJanuary 10,2024 Director Narendm Humar
Basnyat could net attend the meeting Held on Birgung
du 1o iealth prichlem and Director Yanghila Sherpa
Huit weremit of the country,

3 (n May 10, 2024 and May 29, 2024 Director Yangkila
Sherpa Bult was out of the country and could not attend
the mesting and Mr Santoo Shrestha and Yongkils
Sherpa Ruitcound not attend the meeting doted Tuly7,
2024 due topersonal household problam.

Hiving kept a sepanste record of the directors present
at the meeting of the board of directors, the agenda
discussed and the detnils of the resolution (minute)
hept ihthat regard:

Separate record of mirte has are kept

Themuonmum sap betwesn two consscutive mestings
of the Board of Direciors;

Fidays

The date of the ammml general mesting regarding the
determination of the meeting allowance of the board of
directors:

Jarmmry 10, 2024 4 T (Frd Annus] Genera) Mesting)

Epard of Directors per mesting allowanc= B

Re. 2500000 for chalrpersan
Bs 2000000 for member

Total meeting allowancs of Board of Directors Account
Committee snd Other Cominities for the fiscal year
207372074

Re 155500000

2. Details relating conduct of Directors and other:

‘Whether there is a code of conduet of the relevant organization

regarding the conduct of the director or not

The rode of conduct preseribed bytha
prevailing law has been followed Sepamte
cade of condurted hos not been formulated.

1f tiiere s miope than one director of 3 same famlly, the relevant demmis:  None

Cetails related to annual training snd refresher program of directors

&N SUMECTDATT
s, Eo4an

ETANLEDF
PANTHTFATETY IHEECTORS

1 Laws muies poficiss, dicectives 1) M. Aknile=twor Prasad Smgh
2} Mr Merendra Humar Sssoyart

related 1o hody corporats
povenmance, |ntemal Contral | VM Shanker faj Tandey
Systen Wots tespomatitities A) Mr Sawtng Shossths

of Brssml ol [Hertors thstars
being pracricsd i Repal.

) Mr Prasash Mang Ohirire
&) M Famphils (2 el Pt

PLACE OF
CONDUCT OF TRAINTRC

Limison (Hies,
{ermlnidiel Lalitpur

Advpoate Medhab Regmi

ARNNUMLRERORT in=5s 53



OEFORATE CONVESNANDE

Whether each dirertor has/hias not provided the information of the following in Frovided
writing within 15 days of being appainted or nominated to the post of director and

detmils of the same i ot

I he or anymember of his same family has entered intoor s about toenter Intoany None
bind of agresment with the organization, the details thereof,

Detalls of shares or debentures held by im/‘her or any member of his/her family in Mo

the body corporate or the main or subsidiory company of the organizaton,

¥ ha'ker is the basic shareholder aor dtrerctor of suy other body eorpormate. the detalls Nao
thereof,

Hany member of his/her family is worldng as an efficer or employee in the Mot done
orgamization, the details thereof,

1f the director hasworked asa director, salary officer, memitive officer or employes Not done
of 1 listed argani=tion having the sime abjectives, the detalls thersof.

Hany action has been taken agoinst the directar by regulatory bodies and other Mo information has been
bodies, the cetails thereof: found

3. Details reparding the organization's risk management and internal check system: The function of internal control

system has been carried out vin Board of Directors and Internal Andit Committes.

a) Whether any cormmitt=ehas been formed for skt mamagement ornot. reasen therssf Formed.

b) Information about risk management committes A three-member committes has been formed under the
coordination of indepandent divector Mr. Frakashmam Ghimire. divector Mr Santoo Shrestha, and the chief
execdtive offleer of the company atid the cormnmittee has been analyring risk and parforming works for minimizing

them.

(i} Strurture of the comrmittes (name and designation of the coordinator and member}

Mr PI‘E]‘I;EIEI-I'IMBJ]IE—!‘HIEJI‘E Coerdinator
Mr Santon Shrestha Membear
Chief Cvetutive Officer Member

(it} Mos of mesting of the committes One
(it} Summarized detalis of functions of the Committes are prescribed as under,

i (a) Thiscommittee shall mainky wke mioaccount the company's physical property sk business strtege risk,
legal govermnance risk, hurman resdurce risk technology relatad risk and financial planning and

implementation related risk and shall work to salve and minimize it

(8) To determine company's risk management palicy. make a nel management plan, approving it and perform

and caused to perfonm its periodic evatustion, revisw and assessmeant.

{c} Tastudy the palicy directives and sugeestions received from the regulatary body, to oive orto pive the angwer
or information to be submitted on behalf of the company in view of its implementation or need

() Todeveing and implemient policizs and procedures related to richk managsment process, Sevelopment of risk
control or mitipation structures ant operational methods, pericdlmllyermleate assess and review the same.



e} Toadopt and cmesed to adopt contingency fund mobilization methods for risk management.
(f) Toidentfy, evaluate, supernse review, conirol, set boundaries, prepare reports, tokie appropriate IMIMEIVEs
manage the mmin fsk areas, and 1o frame and caused @ frame policies and procores in such regard os per

RECESSITY.

(g} To wark with a plan to prevent and minimize the impact of mpldly developing informatlon technology and

cyber securiiy rishs

{h) Toprepare the company’s governance methods and palicies related to risk management, formulate a risk
management planand submit 1t for the approval of the board of directors if necessary and implementit

(2} Whether there Is an mtesnal check procedure or nol: The company’s humén resources manual and fmancial
anif accoumting elated manuals procoremient mannals have been adapted and works has besn done accordingly,
amd in addition independent internal muditors have been appointed and they shallindependently condust audits
and prepare 2 report; and the repoct shall be discussed in the audit committes and submitted to the board of
directors for discussionand the mansgement shall ac according to the direction of the board of directors

(3] If ary committes has been formed not formead for the internal contml system, the reasan thereolb Mo sepamate
commiti=s has been farmed

{4) Details relating internal control system committes; Mo separate committee is formed, The repart p{EpE.{EihEﬂlE
independent mternal auditor appomied by the Goard of Directors after guarterly examinanon of the transactions
and intemal contmo| systemis disoussed i the Aondit Committes and then distussed by the Boord of Directors:

(5) Whether there is Financial Administration by-laws or net- Yes
4. Details relating notice and information flow,

{2} Detalle of nivtice and irformation published by the nstitution:

HINFECT LI ] ILETE OF MIILIEH
hoticeof Ammmus] Ceneral Meting Motipnat e daniy newapaper imbimhed nn Decomber 182073 A D ot Eantrour Nestonad Daily,
! (Mamper] Liecamber 16 2093 A 1 at Arthis Abhivan Netiom| Datly snd
Company's website slun
Hntire of Extrs Orlinsry Denssi bt ben c=lipd
Heeting
Armiial Report Mot e dakiy newmpaper Fubimhed nn December 18 ond 1%, 3093 A O {(Aomdesd Fimnoat
(M=rstipr) Report (2002003 K I ) e Kt Madored Dy, Arthi
Abhiyan hatirns Daily respectivedy and in Company's website
sl
Cuartery regart MNatimnaljevsl daniy newsTaper [Artinia Mow 3R 2025 A 0 — First guarsr
Altid=n} Feh 11 200 A — Sxcvmd guisities
My 03 2034 A D — Third qusrter
Ang W, 2023 A& 0 — Foorth quarter
ublistend in wehsites tnn st te pubSortion kastesn sobmitted
1o SEBON ami NEFSE
Pric==snritive notice thet sffed Tremigh the ketter i capmpany
oo smckprics Dherising of thw Bespd of Directors
dated December 2 2003 A D relasmg
Cash dividend snd Sonlis share
alprsnen upsn due fscelyear X9 0H0
At hes hesrttplosted on the
sarne daytrmt = Decemer 3 2363
AN ardinforme m S =urites Soard
ol Nepal and Nepal Stock Exchanms
Limnited
Ammmuiai detaits A Gersral Mesting vy beld Informzd o the shareholdes

on farroary 3, 200 s decispee ol
themestingaes juhlishein Aomik
Aithiven nanonal defly neswspaner
dated Febmumry 4, 2024 Al and atso
uploadedinwebsits forinformation.
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OEFORATE CONVESNANDE

{b) 1§ the information bas not been made public orif it has been prosecuted by the Seouriti=s Board and other agendes

due wother reasons, the information thereof Noo

{c} Date of last annual and extra ordinary geneml meeting: Twenty-Third Annual Geneml Meeting, January 10,2024 AD.

5. Detmilsrelating Organization Structire snd Personnsl: Enclosed
3. Whetherthare is Personnel Service, Terms By-laws coptaining personnel structure, vacaney fulfillment career
development. training, salary, allowances and other facilities, attendance and leave, code of conduct =t or not:

Frtlﬁ_fm
b, Enclose orsanization structure: Enclosed

o Nome; scademic qunlifications and detnils of experence of the personme] at high leve] monagement

1 Niraj Subedi CA:19 years

2 Retra Prasad Timsina, Law Graduaies, 25 years
3 Nabin Upadhyaya: MOA 18 years

4 Jeevan Fanday, FOTA 12 years

5. Anjali Shrestha, MBA, 7.5 years

& Nisho Mirauia, Mosser's Degree in Law. O years

7. Heshav Sigdel. Bachelor's Degreein Law and Manageiment, 12 years
d 'Other details relating personnel There are 257 employees and workers Hll mid-July:

Whethervamncy has been flfilled according to the
structure ornot

Digmne srrording 10 necessity

Procedures adopting for fulfilling new personne]

Advertisement, done through internal and extemnal
human resouroe related organizations

Total number of employess (TH mid-fuly) 257

Hoe of personmel under management Bl

Whether sucession plan of the personns! has been made or Yes

ot

HNes.of ratning given to the personnel and nos. of personnel 37 rainings; 364 personne]
participated for the fiscal year 20732024 A T

Par<onnel tainingexpenditure for ficeal year 2023/2024°A.0. R& BG547HES

Percentage of personnel expenditurs in total expenditure nsn

Percentage of trmining sxpenditures in tota| personnal 045

eypenditure




a Details relating acronmt:

Whether the financial details of last fiscal year of the

ingtitution has been prepared aceordimng ty NFRS ar ot

Hnot, reason thereol

Frepared

Datz of approval of latest financial detnile approved by
the Beard of Directors

December3, 202940

Gate of publication of quarter end financial details

Mov 10 20234 0
Feb 11,2074 A0
May 3, 20244 D,
Aug 14 202440

Dat= of completion of last Amlanditing.

December3, 202940

Date of approval of financiz! details from the Geneml
heeting

Jamumry 10, 2024 AT

Details regamding the intermal audit of the metitition:
ikan internal audit is dofhe or anexternal expart is
appainted
ii} Petails of the extermal sxpert. fappaint=d

Pone by appointing external expert
SAR B Associates (for fisedl year 2080/081 (2023/024

i) How often are internal nudits conducted Chaarterly
{quartedy, quartedly or semi-anmually}
b. Detnils relating audinng:
Name. designation and Mr Shanker Baj Pandey, Chairparson
qualifiration of coordinator and Mr Narendra Komsar Bastyat. Member
mzmbers Mr, Santoo Shrestha, Member

Date of meeting convened and
nos of members present

September 2023 AD. 2 persons
Movember 24, 2073 A D, 3 persons
December 27, 2023 A D3 parsons
March 10, 2024 AT, 3 persomis

Moy 28 24 AD 3 persons

Allowance permesting

B+ 2000000 (Incloding tax)

Thedate on which the Andit
Commmittes submitted its report
of liz functione to the Board of
Directors

L

[

Om the date Augusr 15, 2073 A @ decision made by
the audit committes after reviewing the internal
auditor's report for the for foarth quarter period

of fAseal year 26222073 are recommerndded tothe
Bpard of Ginectors for disodssion, Tiscuss{on held on
annual business plan of FY 202324 and new projects
surh as esmblischment of plant automation, zem
tiquid discharge and malt spin

On Novembet 24, 20234 D, after the review, directed
ey sulimit the audited financial statements of the
company including the subsidiarss for FY 2029/23 10
the Banrd and recommendad G Poudyal & Associates
as the smtutory auditor for Y 202324 after
disCussion
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OEFORATE CONVESNANDE

3. Om the dat= December 27, 2023 AT decision e by the
andit ecommitiee after reviewing the internal auditor’s report
for the first quarter period of fiscal year 2023/3024 has been
submmitted to the board of direcior=

4_0n the date March 16, 2024 A D discussion made by the audit
committes after reviewing the Imernal auditer's report for
the second quarter period of fiscal year 20732024 has been
submiitt=d to the board of directors

5. O May 29,2022 A D decision made by the audit committes
after reviewing the mtemal auditor's report for third quarter
period of fiscal year 2073/2024 has been submitted to the
board of directors.

7. Other Details:

Whsther the ifistitution Has talen any credit or
barrowings or money in any form from the persord,
bank and financial Institution having financal interest
ofthe director his family members

Mot taken

Whether any person, firm, company, employee, advisor
or consultant having financial interestin a listed
ingtitution othar than the benefits or facility received
ag i comrpany ditector, shareholder. employes, advisor
or consultant have use the propesty of the Instfutionin
othier manner

Mone

Whether the directives issued by the reguintory body
whil= issuing license has been complied or not

Done

Whather the ifistructions given to the institutiort by
tha regulattry body whileregulating, Idspecting or
supervising the organimtion have been fnllowsd oroot
If there s 2 court case against the instinution and
director. details thereof

Mo direction has baeri obiained

Signature:

Name of the compliance Officer Neta Prasad Timsina
Designation: Compliance Gfficer

Date: December ,2024 AD

Seal of the Instintion:

Signmture of Auditor

Seal of the Instituticn:

Report approved dote by the Board of Directors: December 8, 2024 4D
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The Hithalayan Distillery Lid eaiméd the esteeimed Gold Award in the "National Best

Presented Annual Reports Award 2023" in the Manufacturing Sector, acknowledging its
exceptional presentation of the 2023 annual report. This recognition; bestowed by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) on july 20, 2024, emphasizes the
company’s excellence in transparently and accurately communicating (ts linancial data and
strategic accomplishments within its annual report



OEFORATE CONVESNANDE

Internal
Control

INTERNAL CONTROL MEASURES.

HOL has established & strong internal contmol
framework 1o ensure ransparency, efficiency, and
compliance: Regular internal audits help identify
risks and |mprove operational processes, while
mxternal andits provids ndepandent revisws to
enhance trustand accountability. The management
team enforces these controls, allgning them with
nrganizational goals and regulatory requitements,
while tha Board of Directors oversees goveimance
and risk manisement Comprehensive intermal
pativies further guids opemtions ensuring

ethiral standards and complisnce Together, these
measures demonsiate HOL s ommitment (o
operational evellence and accountabiliny

INTERNAL AUDIT

A cormmersione of HDL's success i fte mbust control
system and metimlous internal auditframeswoark
Conducted quarterly by SAR Associates Chartered
Accountants, these audits are followsd by detailed
dizctesisng on the reports submitied by the

Internal Auditor The Audit Committee provides key

recommendations and forwards them to the Boad
of Directors for review, The andits aim to ensurs
the pompany's processes are etficient, efective,
and compliant with intemal control polices

and natlohal and Intermationial regulations The
intermal audit function also ensurss operational
and financinl effidency. aswell as legal and
regulatory complionre, supporting robust
coTpommie governance and sirong mtemal contmol,
This approach helps HDL proactively address
potentizl weaknesses, mainmin high standards

ol transparency and accountability, and enhance
operational integrity and reputation.

MARKEET AUDIT

Marlet audits involve an in-depth and mdependent
evaluation of an organizations markel - related
expetiditures: HDL's expansive and well- integrated
network of distribuators, wholesalers and retailers
hayplayed a pivotal role in boosting the company's
natinnwide sl HOL conducts comprehensive
market sudits 1o ensure acconntability and
effectiveness: These audits include systematic
verification of trada and promotional sehemes for
s nisiness partners. along with monthly cheeks of
their sales performance and stock levels Mareover,
marie: oudits assess promurtional activities for
HDL's brends, examining venue bmnding, product
placement, use of prometional materals, and the
exectition of murksting campaigns: To maintain

g competitive adge. market auditorsalsa carry

ot detniled competitor assessments. enabling
HDL to monitor and respond efectively to marhest
dyrmmics.




ISO Audit &
Certification

HDL prioritires compliznce with IS0 (Intermatinnal
Drganization for Stomdardiration} standands,
viewing 150 audits and certifirations a= esssntial
Indicaror= of itz dediratlon to quality, =aiety,
emvirommental stewardship. and adberence
toint=triational standards. The company
possesses Ave 150 certifications: [0 90012015
{Cnanlity Menagement System), 150 140012015
{Emviranmenial Management Systamy, 150
450012016 {Occupational Health and Safety
Mimsgement System), 150 20002018 (Food
Safety Management System), and a Green Buiiding
cerndification,

FTurthemmore, HOL hos consolldatesd thres [0
sindards—OMS. EMS and OHSMS—intaa
cohesive fromevork known as the Integmted
Managament System ([M3)], This system aims to
erihance management processes and ensure the
effective spplicetionof 30 smndards Additionmily,
HDL bas achisved certification for foor 150
stanidands throush DNV (Bet Norshke Veritas),a
globally recognized independent certification
body renowned for ita rofe in facilitating global
t=nsiommatione,

To maintain high camplianc with 1SO.and Green
Building standards HDL regulady conductswmnious
activities to evaliiate, confirm, and verfy its internial
processes Key activities melude:

= Annuat Risk Manngsment

= Anmua: Review of Obiectives

® Legal Complisnce Beview

= Evaluation of External Providers

= Consltation and Participation

w CUstommar Surveys

= Training and Awarenes

= Good Mannfactiring Practices Awdit
= |ptermal Audit

® Maonageiment Review Mestings

= Parformanés Ewiluarion and Review
= Regular Pxtarmnal Surreillance Andits

Creen Bullding prctices {oois on creating sustalnable
tonstroction that minimizes evironmental impact
while promisting oocupant health and well-being.
HDL has achisved Green Bullding standards (LEFD

V4 BRELAM) under the Gresn Existing OSM mating
syst=m from Otabo Certification Limited (UH),

garning & Green Bulding Goid certification. Key
artivities supporting compliance with Green Building
reguirements include:

= Efficient Energy Usags

= Eﬂi_::iﬂm“ﬁtﬁr Usags

= Resmuirncs Conservation

= Indbor Dnvironmental Quality
» Site Sustuinability

& Health and Well-baing

n Adzpmbillty and Resilience

& Carbon Footprint Reduction

= Waste Beduction

e Grean Infrastmicture

» Community and Social Benefits

rreen Existing Bmilding Certificate information:
Certificate Number: 601010517

Imitial Certification Date: May L 2017
Validity: March 13 2024 - March 13, 2076

QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM IS0 9001:2015:
The Quality Manapement Systemprovideza
stiichired approach to etisure quality management
ocross all organimuons! operations, fboising on
meeting mnd excesding rustomer expectations. Key
artivities conductad by HDL to enhance compliance
with 1SD 0012015 include

= Customer Satisfaction Surveys

= Prcess Improvemenl Initatives

= Consisteney and Standardization Fiores
= Lezal and Regulataory Compliance Chesle
& Risk Managsment Strotegies

& | esdership Commitment Initiasives

& Emploves Invalveiient Programs

ANNUNLRERORT =5 6l



OEFORATE CONVESNANDE

= Fesource Optimization Pacrices
= Evidence-based Becision Making:
= Contnuons Improvemsnt Eiors

IS0 80012015 Certificate Informat far:
Certificate Number: 173250-2015-A0- [NI-Fvi
Initial Cortification Date: Map £ 2007
Validity: May 4. 2024 - May 3, 2027

FDOD SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM SO
22000:2018:

This standdard provides a comprebensive frmmewmrk
for ensuring food safety throushent the supply
chain enshling HDL to strengthen it food

zafety culhure. Key complisnre aritvities for (50
ZHO018 nchide

s Food Safety Assurance Measiares

s Comtamination Preventicn Stategiss

= Legal Compliance Dffors=

= Risk Manogement Frotoools

= Troceability end Transparency fnitintires

= Fesource Optimization Technigues

= Opemational Control throwgh PEP, Hammed Analysis
HACCP Plan and OFRP Flan

= Continuous Tmprovemsnt Practices

ED 20032018 Certifimie [nformation )
Certificate Number: C615749

Initial Certification Date: February 27, 2009
Validity: March 19 2024 - Fehroary 25, 2027

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM IS0
14001:2015:

This intermational standam outlines a fremewark
for effective environmental manasement,
aiming to minimize emdronmental impact while
demonstrating commitment to sustainabifitg
Eey activities for compliznoe with 150 14001205
include.

= Envizonmenital Performance Improvement
Initimtires

= Leznl Complisnee Checke

= Pollution Prevention Stmtegiss

s Resource Efflcienioy Measures

& Stalcholder Engagement Effors

a Tromsparency and Accountshility Practices

& Waste Reduction/Mannpement Tnitintives

& Cootimions [provemeat Smieges

150 140013015 Certificate Information:
Certificate Number: 1737562015 AE- IND-Fva
Initinl Certification Date: April 16, 2009
Validity: April 16, 2024 - April 15, 2027

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM IS0 45001:2018:

This standsrd provides a frameworh for protecting
employes health and safety by identifying and
mitigating ricks. Hey compliance activities for IS0
450017018 incinde:

e Occopational Health and Safety Risk Management
® Waorkplace Accident Reduction Strategies

= Employee Well-being Initistires

= Qocupaticme! tlness Prevention Measures

= Stakehnlder Engagement Activities

= Leznl Complisnes Cforis

= Contimous Improvement Pritices

150 45001 2018 Certificate Informiation:
Certificate Number: 100004368760-MSC-Fva-IND
Initial Certification Date: Ap:il 16. 2009

Validity: April 16. 2024 - April 15, 2027
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Sustainability
Measures

TREE PLANTATION

This year, HDL plamred en additional 1650 treesat
its factory premises, adding to the trees planted
lastyear These trees, in variolls species, provide
multiple etwironmental and economie beneflts
Stratepically placed trees reduce energy costs by
providing shade, cutting down on air conditioning
nepdsin hot months Expanding tmee covers around
induistrial sites hedps reduce mrbon fbotprints
and supparts mstainability goals This lnitiative
comtributes to dimate regulation and strengthens
the ecosystem, benefiting both the ervironment
and the community

INDUSTRIAL WASTE REDUCTION

HDLi=z installing a zam lauid dischargs (700)
system io better manage its industrial wastage,
demonstrating its commitment to sistainable
operations. Studege generated dunng the distillation
process will be conwerted into dry cakes, which

will be sold at 3 highervalne than untrented

slidge. contributing to an increased sles revenue
Additiomally, the ndustris! waste cumently
processed through the Efflnent Treatment Plant
{ETF] 15 targeted 1o be elimunated. This mitianve will
significantly enhance the mdustry'’s Environmerntal
Performanie Index. aligning with HDL's goals

of smvironmental stewardship and operational
effirisnoy,

REDUCING GROUND WATER INTAKE

HDL has implemented o zero igud discharge (ZL0D)
system, reinforcing fts commitment to sustainahle
and effic=nt apemtions This system enables ths
recycling of water, whirh canbe resmed i indiestrial
processes such as cooling towers and also inthe
gardening and plantaton, reducing groundwater
mtake by approximotely 0%

-~
1IN PROCESS WASTE RECYCLE

HDLactively incorpumates sustainahility inm

its operations by using recycled bottles and

sefling serap mesterials to generate sdditonal
tevenue Thess Initintives notonly contribite to
resource optimization but also playa s L
rale in reduring environmental pallution. By
pootiring recyding and wioste manasament, DL
demponstrotes its commitment 1o emvironmental
responsibility white creating economic value from
materals that would otherwiss be diccarded

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMURNITY

HDL s dadicated 1o zwing hork w the coommurnity

through a wide range of Corporate Socinl

Responsiniliny (CSE] initiatives. These effors foos

ort ey areak such as edoeation, haalth & wallnees:

sports, support foreligioe 6 olltiral activitles 4
and o on Through these mitiatves HOLatms to
uplift communities, promote well-being, and foster
holistic development, reflecting its commitment
tosorin! responsibility ond sustainable growth:
During the feeal pear, HOL contributed about RE
84 million In the CSE activities The detailed report
for the C5R scowities done during theyearcin be
frund in the CSR seciien of thisrepor
Turthermore, the company
provides direct emoplayment

to mare than 200 local peaple
or a regular basis in addition to
ths jobs provided indireetly on
adailywazes basis
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An orEanization is exposed to s series of rishs
throughout 1ts business journey. These mak
areas are spread across avariety of functiorisl
areas of the organization and they often coma
with drverse and often severe implications
This hasmode it inevitohle for any husiness
crganization o emphasize risk management
regarding its business operninns:

Risk managemeit can be defined asa
systemmtin process that oos=s on the
identifimtion. assessment. ang prioriteation
of 3 series of risks to which an oroenization

15 expased. It involves the collaborative and
economical application of availabie resources
to monitor, minimize, and contral the impact
ofthese varmmie categonies of rislke Hisk
manageEmert stands as one of the crucial
aspects of decision-making and plannimg for
any organizotion throushout the courseof 115
business:

HDL, a thriving business organization is

also =xposed wvanons impllcit and explicie
implications of risk management As such,
the ceompany has underiaken a system-based
approachto identify inherent and potential
risks within and beyond the company and
implement mitgation megsires (o redonee the
impact of surh nsks on the profitahility and
sustainability of the company, The vanous
categories of risks that HDL is exposed 1o
aloriz with the miechanisims to curtail them are
highlighted beldur

FINANTIAL RISK:

Fmancial risk can be defined as the failure

to achieve expected financial returms on

an investment or in the coursz of business
operations. It has an oreanization-wide impart
with a dirert threat (2 the so=tainabiliny and
survival of any organization

BIER FEVIIDN

HEL has in place a system-based rish
management philosophy which acte as the
basis for (= policies and procedures and
imternal financial controls that are forused on
the identification. evaluation, and management
of the cuicial fimanrial rigkes of the company
including but ot fimit=d 10 market fshs,
credir rsks. and Hguidity fisks These policies,
procedures. and CoNtrois aim o minimize and
pentmalize the probable consequeanics ereaied
by the financial risk variables in the comparsys
usiness operatsns as well asinve sting and
finanring artivides

In addition to this, HDL's Tisk management
framework also prioritizes ensuring
uncompromisad and comsistent management
of financial risks n ln= with the sreepahle and
approved risk parameters of the company as
wellas the standands set asde by natlonal and
miernationnl regulations.

MAREET RISK:

Market rizk refers 1o the potential flucfiations
in the fair valus of fiture cazh fiows from
financial instruments due to changes in market
prices, such as interest rates; foreign exchonge
rates, and sguity prices Thessfluctuntions

mn impact on the Group’s income or the value

L,



al

nfits finapcial holdings. The group's exposure
B0 changes in market interest reies primarily
steme from ite short-term éemand Inans with
varmbie int=rest mtes A theend of the vear,
the balanee of term loanswas Bs NiL(2079-50
Fs. i), with short- termand demand loans also
atRs, Nil {2079-80 K= Nil) To manage imterest
mtenisk: the Group actively monitors cash fows
and negotiates favorabls borrowing and dapesit
matex [fmimestEtesweremriseor fall by5a
basis poimte while kesping all other varubles
constant, the profitbefore tax for the year
wiould decrease orincresse by R 96 i,‘i[l??- B
Hs:1.69306) - Additonally, the Group engages in
trangartons primarily deromitated inIndian
Fupees, which mitigatessxposure to sxchange
rate fluctuations The Group does notactively
irwest in equity markets.

LIQUIDITY RISE

The Groupscarreit assets total Rs.
2668252 295 (2079-80 B= 3,059215611),
which includes cazh amd eash equivalents
alongwith other bank halnnces amounting 1o
Rs. 2240050121 (2079-80; Rs 54 65.57.780),
This s against the total current Habilites of Bs
239298752 (2079 -30: Re 2879 B4.354) which
includes term loans maturing within oneyear
totaling Rs Nil (2079-80 Re. Nil).

Funiermaore, the Group has access (o undrmwn
oorrowing facilities from benks amiounting

to fis. 375,000,000 (2079-8( Rs 375,000,000) as of the
reportng date, Given these circumstances, thers 15 no nisk
of Hguidity that wonid prevent the Groop from meeiing {is
obllgationt as they come due.

Credit risk represents a potentinl financial loss to the
Groupif o customer or counterparty fails to fulfil] their
conimactual obligations Thisrisk primanly arses from
trade receivables The Smolp extends tredil o lts custbmiers
based on lis business intersis in acoordance with is
credit polloy, Any exreptions are manasged and approved

by designated authorities after careful considemtion of the
counterparty’ s credentials and financial capacity nswellas
prevaoifing business conditions. As of the reporting daie, the
Groups exposure net of loss allovwance was Bs. Nil (207980
R= Nilh,

Additiomally, the Group holds other fimancial assets such as

bank balances other bank balonces and recervables. Bank

deposits are maimtnmed with reputables commerciat banks

ket fior thedr strong financial pesttions; therefre, basad

on histarical expenence and corrent assessments, the

conmErprty risk assoriated with the=e as=etsis deemed
imal
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RISK MANAGEMENT ethirs, and risk memagement practices wizch
AND CONTEOL ENVIRONMENT bas enabled the company to have a strong hold
HDL has in place well-manned committess at in the competitive Hguor industry of Wepal
the board ofdirectors’ level which assists the
company In crailing its expasure to various The following section highllphts the purpose,
forms of hisines=s opsmtional. fmancial, and frequency, and composition of the Board
market risks, HOL's board of dirertors arestrong Mestings and other Commities Mestings are
champion of corporate governance, busmess mizhlighted below:
LIABILITY MGMT.  COMMITTEE oF
COMMITIEE (OMMITIZE DIRECTORS
Total No of Meetings 1 i 5 1
dlhilbwior Prassd Smyh, i:_ll.‘H.Ll'PEEiJ.[I u

Ml Burar Basiyyal, Director

3 16 - Abesnt in TEOD Mesiling
Shatiluy Bl Fandisy, Dlrociog 5 i
Sanitno Shresiha, Bireciof 1 1 5 10 Abeeni lnn 1 BOD Mewl g
Vanglils Sherps Rl Dieelor & Abwsonl 05 BOD B e ATCD meisking

Pragash M Ghomre: Indepemdent Direstar 1 1




Board Level
Committees

HOL has three Board- level commmitiees
each with 1ts own well-defined purpose and
clearly demnrcared responsibilities that hawve
enahled the eompany to further solidifyits
intemal control measures and to ensure

full eomplianee with vanous mational and
imternational regnlations and standards

AUGIT COMMITTEE

HDLs andit Committes offers intemmal
Hrancinl management guidance to the
company and condieets a thommigh Teview
afits intermal audirs, oversees and evaluates
the appointment of external ayditors tothe
Annus! General Meeting. and Monitors and
ensures legal and rezulatory eomplianes of
all the alidits of the organization. The Audit
Commitites = camposed of three members as
follows:

= M1 Shanker Raj Pandey, Chairperson
s Mr. Narendra Rurmnar Basnyat. Member
= M1 Santoo Shresithn, Member

The major fumctions, duties, and authority
of the commitiee in accpriance with the
Companies 40t 2006, Sub-section 3).of
Sertion 162 are:

= To teview the internal finaneial control
system and the risk management system of
the company.

= Toreview the acoourts and financz!
statememnts of the company amd ascerain
the-tmith of the facts mentioned in such
Statements

= To supervise and review the imtemal suditing
activity of the company

= Torecommend the names of potential
auditors for the appointmeantof the auditor of
the compary, fix the remuneration and tetms
and conditions of appointment df the auditor,
gnd present the zame in the sensral meeting
for mtification thereaf,

= To review and superyvise wneiher the anditor
of the company has observed such ronduct.
standards, and directives deternimed by the
competent hody purseant io the prevailing
w s required w be ohserved in the oourse of
doing suditing work

= Based onthe conduct, standards. and
directives determined by the comipetent body
put=suant to the prevailing law, formulate
the policies required 1o be ohssrved by the
company with respect to the appointment and
selection of the auditor

= To prepare the accounts-retsted policy of the
company dind enforce, or ciuse the cametobe
enforcad,

s Where any regulator body hos provided for
the |ong-term audit reportto be set out in the
audit report of the company, to comply with
the terms required to prepare such repore

= To perform other functionsas preseribed
by the Board of Directors In respect ol ths
acounts, financial mansgement. and sudit of
the compry,

ANNUOAL KERQRET 21225
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The Commmittes met five times this fiscal year

and discussed the following activites:

» Beview of guarterly mtemal audit reports
provided niecescary recormmendatione to the
management and submitted it to the Board
For it= review and appraval.

w Detalled disrossinn an the annnel business
plan prepared by the management After
o demiled discussion, the Committes
recommended the Fusiness Plan for FY
202324 for submiszion to the Baard for its
approval

w Presentation on the annual finandal report
and statitory audit report. which were
thoroughly reviewed during the mesting and
were recommended fot the board’s approval.

s Recomemendation to the Board for the
conttmstion of orent intemal auditors and
statutory auditors for the Y 202324

RISH MANMAGEMENT COMMITTEE

HEPLhasin place a dedicated Risk Matngemient
Commmittes that Identifies, minimizes, and
eliminates the company's rizhk exposinces

to diverserishvarisbles inareas ke

pioysical nssets, legal povernance, human
resgurees; technology. financind planming,

and implementation: The Committes is

also responsible for the preparation and
implementation of a omprehensveTisk policy
and risk management plan.

The Risk Management Committes has three
members:

s Mr. Pralmsh Mani Ghimire. Chatrperson

= Mr Santoh Shresthm, Member

= Chief Bxecutive Officer, Member

Tts functions are:

= Towork to eliminate and mintmize poteritial
Tisk= of the company includmg the eompany's
physical assat=risks, business strategic nisks,
technology risks, and financial planning and

BIER FEVIIDN

implementation nsks

= To formulate the fsh management palicy of
the company, to make a nisk management
plan, toapprove it and to svaluate, manitor,
and review [t periodically.

= To study the polloy directves and suzsestion=
recefved from the reguistory body, to respond
of provide nformation to be submitted on
behalf of the company depending on its
implementation or requiremient

= To formulate and Implement policies and
procedures related to the risk mansgement
process, development, and operation method
of fiskcomtrol ormitigation strucrs, to
periodically evalunte, assess, and review it

= To adopt contingency fund mabilization
methbds for fisk managsment.

& To take appropriate nitintive for the
identification, evaluatinn, SEpervision review,
comtral, delimitation, reporting. et of the
mnin sk aress and to formulnte policies and
procedures ak per the requireinent.

u To wark with a plan to prevent and minimize
the rapidly developing mfrrmertion
technnlogy and cyber serurity risks. To
prepare good governance methods and
poiicies for the company regarding risk
managsment, and

s To formulatea Hsh management plan and
to g=t approval a5 required, to submit it for
the approval of the Board of Directors, and ta
EnsHre its implementation.

The Comtiittee met one time this ficeal year

and coversad the follewing activities:

& The CED updated the committes membersan
the legal and regulatory complisnce status of
the company in the FY.

» The comumities members held o
comprehensive discussion regarding the
potentinl risks and mitigation messures
relnted to legal/regulatory rishs, operationl
risks, environmentsl risks, market risks, and
financial rsks



w The Fisk Management Commities reviewsd
all the aspects of Legal/Remilatory Rishs,
DOperational Risks, Environment Fisks,
Morket Risks. and Tinancial Ricks, having
endorsed the sameand recommended that
the same be submitted for the Board's review,

AS5ET LIABIITY MANAGFMENT COMMITIEE
HDL's Asset & Liahality Committer oversees
senind inspaction, supsrvision, and
management of iz assets and liabilities The
Eommittes 1= alep responsiblefor ensuring
capitul adeguacy through the developmant
and implementation of relevant suategies
and courses of achon (o miGESie market Tisks;
including Houidity rick

The As=et Management Committes |5
compaosed of three members:

= Mr Santgo Shrestha, Thairperson

= Mz Yangloin (Sherpa) B, Member
= Chief Pxecutive Officer, Member

Themajor Amctions of this Committes are

presented below

= To properiy manage the assets and lobilities
of the company and contribute towards
achteving the goal of lving maximum
retumm. To have the assets and llahilites of
the mmpEmy imrspected and supervissed,

= To prepure ar supervise the st=tegy
and procedures to be adopted by the
management of the company and the
palities tabe formulated. focusing an the
arhievement of the goals set by the Board of
Tlrectors. the level of risk to ba taken by the
company, and the standard of opesation.

» To manage and mohilize the capital required
to achieve the goals of the company.

= Tooet the information of income and
expenditure of the company and to
sipervise the statEmeEnt

= Tomake effective smh=mtion and
monitoring pf the sk and liguidity of

the company, (o formulats policy regarding
the ssurce and managementmethods of
Hmuidity msk management, and to monator the
Hnpiementation

= Topregare for miarkst risk management the
structure of the above-mentinned Information
system, periodically svaluastss, approves, and
reviews the liquidity and fund menagement
policy.

= To determine the method of formilation and
operatioh of contingency fund plan. and to hove
it reviewed

= Tomaie the operation of assets and liguidity
tr fuilfill the ﬂh.ﬂjr and contingznt capital needs
and obligations

The Comenittee met once this fixeal year and

disrmssed the following:

= Beview of the ns=ets and Habillity position of the
company with a major focus on profitabilivy
and financial ratios Durng the meeting, it
was imghlighted that the comentassets of the
company covered motethan twicethe current
lahilities of the chmparny, mdicating that the
eompany fas adequate liguid assets

= A review of contingent liabilities ofthe
company and the progress on the litigation
statis was also brisfed by the managemant

= Presentation of progress of investment in
capital expenditios n the year including
progress of new projects such as Terp Tiquid
Discharge & Plant Automation Project and
installation of Malt Distllation Unit
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Focus on
Customers and
Consumers

HOL has always emphasized on ensoring
[ntegrity and transparency inall of i
imteracions and relationships with i

with safe. reliabie and qualitutive prodicts and
services, [thighly prieritizes dissemination

of acoumate InformRaion 1o 1ts COsI0mers and
constmers o as to assict them In making
infirmisd decisionz HDL always makss sure
that its product labels advertisements aswell
a5 commercial messares ane arcumste, clear,
and not misieading ti its customersas it highly
abdes by responsible marketing of its market
offerings:

Conduct Business
with Integrity
and Fairness

HOWL has always been conducting its business
activities {n a fair and transparent mannsr and
(o due adherence with relevant naticnal and
international. laws, regulations and snidelines
with an intent 1o abide by the highestethical
standards of conducting bukinessin the
dymarnic aleaholic beverage Industry of Mepal
It novt ey ensures thatits corpomate sctvities

are fairand tmnsparent butalso pays attention,

ta the fact that the Company’s actvities are
respectiol towards varnous relison, cutture,
custois dnd traditions in all of the countriss
where it condurcts its businesy operatione,

CORPOEATE SAOMMAL BEEPOMENMLITY

HDL does not chase profit by resorting
tounfair or legal practices and ic highly
commmitted Lo condueting bosmess
undertakings based on the principlesof free
and fair competition The Comoany haszero
tolerance for amy form of bribery, cormup:
pructices, money [sundering activities or
atherillicit practices in bur mansuvers or

with amy person or company. [n adedition

to this, HOL al= diligently abides by all
applicable [ows and regulations resarding
gifts; entertainment, chantable donations,
and pelitical contributions. The Company has
always prioritized upholding and disclasing
its finaneial and business-related records as
pET paTEmEters and requirements demarcated
by all the applicabie laws and regulations so
thatit can precisely reflect the true stateof its.
bosiness oparations.

Conservation
of the
Environment

HOL has highly emphasized adherence tp and
maintenance of the highest emironmenial
and safety standards with anintent te

ensure that the Company's operations do not
result in any harm to the commumity and iz
ST ing SvioTeTnt

Asnresultof this. DL 1s on the path of
ambarking ona profect with the aim of
achieving Zero Discharge from its distiliation
plant 11 is alen on the verge of Initiating a
project for complete Plant Antomation to
achirve mnproved efficency throush a data -
dnven decision-making process that has
comparatiely less monua) interyention amd



thataiso enables the company to achieve
consistency in quality of its market offerings.
The Company has always pleced uimost
EmphEss o7 nstEnt mprorements of =
envirenmental performance and has already
implemented various megsures on this front
sochastheuse of recycled bottles, mveilabitimy
of efflusnt reatiment of planis, management
of industrial yaste through selling of
packagine mmterials and plantation within the
periphery of its factory to reduce the fevel of
pollution resulted by the faciory opemtions

Contribution
to Society

HOL = dedicated to have meanimgiul

s well-thought -out Corporate Spcial
Responsthility initiatives. 1z passionately
supports diverse set of mdividunls and groops
who ire committad to meaningful canses
including but riot limited 16 multurs, gender
equmlity, sorial nclusion, edueation health,
poverty allsviation, community support and
natural disasters o name a few.

CSR Policies

Az par the Industrinl Enterprise Act 2075,
Section 34, anymedium/large-smle
industriss/domesticiamall enterprises with
an anneal tumover ol Bs. 150 million and
above are supposed to aliorate st least 1%

of their annual profit for Corporite Social
Fesponsihility (CSR) inthiatives Inaddition to
this, Industrial Enterprise Regulation 2078,
Rule 43 has clearly demarcted the corearsas
inwhich the CSE fund can be utilized. In
compliance with these provisions, Himaloyan
Distillery Limited has allorated funds available
unides the heading of C58 in theTollowing care

areas in the review perind:

AN COREARFAR N ALTOERTTON
1 Affoclod Areae To be furher =1} §
aul-altoesied ag por enb patlsearie?- 6
2. [h=ssing preveni o aiid necu 25%

rebatugd setbyliboe
3 Healthand rebsied moiivlies 10w
4 Fresarval et and comsenation of L7 §

Megealh g, o liural hesitage sl
mthanls

5 Shill deyleereit 2o oeom 5%
guneralion aviivilies

&  FEdusitloonal asliiies 10%

7 Envbupnumntal activitbes 5%

8  Socigl Avamreness gid relaled arelvilles 25%

% Physicalinfrestrurture Jor Spcal 10%

WirtFspe (o ladire ropuir and
malleranae] - demnldog water, oade
draisippe sports arenuly pellgio sitime
cxipnrin by bailid v jeanlufing e old
apu ofphamags, medios i, fe<| b=,
bt el e wie
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HOL also has inploce a dedicated TSR
committes {6 effectvelytilize the £58 fomd
with following members:

R COFMITIES MMETR

1 M Wirn) Stbedt, Chlel Paoculive Officer {CEQ)
2 My Nizha Nimuls Compaty Sacnetary

3 M Toruan Puardey, Manaoer (Operation)

4 M Alina Shreetha Barager (Fiiaron)
5
{5

My Aniel Shreeths Mansser (HR)
Indepondeil [nvilos

The Committes i responsibie forapprovl
af the himd 1o be dishir=ed forwmous TSR
imitiatives and artivides. Inwses where the
percentage of fund allocated is msufficient
in any particular areq; the Commities has
the authority to decide to allozate a higher
percentage by carving an amoiumt fom

an area wher= a |ower allocation has been
made provided it iswithin the rotsl CSR
budzet availabie for the year The approving
muthorities for the some hiore been highlighted
inthe follerwing tabile:

Proposed by Manaper Finance ]
Becvarmmemdded by Compsany Secrstary
Apiproued by Chdaef Expnrvikiue Officar

CORPOEATE SAOMMAL BEEPOMENMLITY

CSR Overview
& Activities

1 Nepal Rasiviva Adharvat Vidhyalaym

In the neview period, HEL has contributed sn
amount worth Bz 260,000 1o Nepal Bastriva
Adbarnet Vidhyalaya for disbursemetitof
salary of the Sthool's teathers.

2. Ezasy Hoaltheare Foundation (EHF)

in the revisw pezind. HDL coniributes a total
of BS 1,000,000 to Tasy Healthcare Foundation
(i) for fulfiliing theirinent o to esablish
healtheare services and facilities in every
warn of Kethmando THE isan institution

locat=d in Hothmandu with the primary
obiective of providins esssntial healthcars
seryices o nungmalizead, dissdvaningad,
and impoverished citizers {0 the country,
especially sentor citizens. EHF intends

to use the contributed amount owards

the implementation of a comprahensive
healtheare assnmane scheme covenng
primary, secondary, and tertiary healthcare
BEIVICES.



3. Pabiira Prithvi Samaj (PPS)

in thereview perind. HDLalso offered
assistance of B= 700,000 to Pabitra Prihiv
Samgj (FPS), Timtnagar for provinding one
automatic wheeslchairond auto-adiusmble
beds to fonrindividunls with severs
disabilities. PPS. Birmtnagat, vas founded

in thefear 207188 with a cor= migsion of
as=isring individials with disabilities, the
elderiy, and those faring econormic hardship
and vulnerability PFS 15 also actively engaged
N OTEENIZINE TAININE SESSI00S and owWareness
programs tn beneft the commmanity,

4 Bireunj Metropolitan Office (BMO)

Inthe same period. HBL alsoprovided
financial assistancs worth B5. 997920 o the
request of the Birgunj Metropalitan Office 1o
atddress crdical infrestrocnre needs in various

commuaity schools within their hurisdiction.

The oomributed amount was utlilized for
purchase of eombination of 100 desks and
benches and two laptops

5. Shaleti Yova Club {S¥C)

HDL commbuted a roal of Rs: 60,000 to Shakt
Youoth: Club, based inParwanipor Ward. forits
anrmial foothall svent with an Intent (o support
the physical well-beine of local youth Inthe
fi=al yeap 2023724

6. Terni Youth Samudayik Sastha (TVSS)

In the review period, HDL offered assistance
of 50 dusthins worth of Rs. 187,500 to Terai
Youth Samudayil Sastha (TYSS) 1o ensure
properwaste management infrestruciure in
Patel Nagar Villsge TVSS was regisiered inthe
year 2079 BS and it identified the scermrio of
mse in improper disposal of sarbags leadins 1o
o deteriorating envimnment and @ substantisl
immpact an public health in Patel Negaramea.

7. Harmali Reginn Tenrism and Coltoral
Reservation Center (RRTCRC)

HOL contriboted a total of Bs. 100,000 to
Ezmali Region Tourism and Cuitural
Hesarvation Center (KRTCRC) ln the review
pericd to assist e scholarship program for
stndents from govermment srhools in Kalikot
el 10 other districts who bhave conmlsted
their SEE exams but iack the financial means
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to pursue further edycation m Eerthmandu. The
program tHrgsis marsinalized | economically
disadvantaped disabled and mdividuals affect=d by
war arnatural disnste=rs A total of 25 studenishowe
been benefttt=d from thisinitistive in the Fscl Year
AR

B. Hatha Nepal

HDL also made two separate contributions of B
450,000 each to Katha Nepal for supporting 18
schools in Birgunj under its “Matri for 30 schools
at Birgunj Municipality” project on the request

of Birzun] Metropolitan Office. As the project

hiay becomz hups success in Birgun|, BMO had
requested HPL for support through Katha Nepal of
Matris content for grade D and 10 of govemmment
schools Parsa ata cost of R= 25000 per schodl per
year for same 20 schools.

The project hasintroduced customired audibvisual
teaching materials specifically designed for the
Nepall subject in grad=§ allgning with thentional
curmioulnm

%.Open Eyes Nepal (0EN)

OEN, Is an organization that supports children and
families In Wepal groppline with Retinoblastoma.

4 form of childhodd eye cancer ks core objectives
mchide misine mwareness about the conditinn,
frrilitatine affordable access to treatment, and
establishing sustainable support networhks for
affected children and their familizs Thetreatinent
for this diseaseis prolongsd. costly, and Gifficalt,
often necessitating financial assistance for

CORPOEATE SAOMMAL BEEPOMENMLITY

famnilles taveling from cutside Kathmande:
HOL contributed a total of Bs. 500,000 for
supporting this canse in the FY 2023/24.

10, Ealitpur Metropolitan Office

Himalayem Hstillery 1td. haghesn
contmunsly conrdinating with Lalimpor
Munkciplity Gifice for the inaintenance af
Iavalakhe! Circle Traffic Island smee the
Nepalese Year 2077 BS Marking the day

of the TBhotoiatra Testival” HDL sopported
the plantation of trees for environmental
ConS=rvALIoN S el B imintename of
physical infrastneciure for social welfare

as per the company's C3R Folicy, HOL has
been regularly supporting the maintenance
work of the traffic islnnd for whichit has
contributed Rs. 1,114,434 for maintenance of
J-Circle in FY 2023/24.

11 DhangadhiSub-MetroPalitan Office (DS0)
HOL made a contribution of Bs 525000 to
support 100 students at the costof Bs. 5,250
per student to Dhangadhi Sub-Metropolitan
Bifice (D50) in the revisw period mlmmcha
progmm to provide free sshool uniforms to
students in commmity schools in Dhangadhi,
funded by the Mayor's Bducation Improvement
Fund The mitintive sims @ sepply uniforms,
bags, snd other materiils to commimity
schoolt In Bhangadhi

12 Sambhabya Foundation (5F)

Sambhabhya Founcdation bas been
implementing ‘Schoal Mental Heaith Program
threnipgh a comprebensive eurriculom with
componsnts afmental health hteracy, Social-
Empotipnal Lesrming (SEL), digial ctizenship
and comprehensive sexnal reproductye
eduraton ICSRE) ineovermment =chools
poross Mepal since 2018 Tt has also mitinted a
protect emtitlad "Wellness for Al ina total &f B
srioolt In the Shanlamapur Municpality and



5 schioli in the Kageshwori Municipality HDL
made 4 contribution of Bs. 615000 to support the
School Mental Health Program for & schools in
Shankarapura Municipality in the review period
for the construction of 8 connseling roone

13 Mugling Highway Hospital (MHH)

Mugling Highway Hospital (MHH) has been
dedicatedly offering vital medical seryicesto the
lpcal community and addressing the significant
oooarrence of toad accidents dlong the Nmibise-
Paldhars-Mugling highway The Hospitil has
outlined several fufure Initiatives, Inciuding
expanding U= capaeity o dsecommodate 160 beds,
establishing 3 pre-hospital care and twauma
CENET (D assist survivors of moad acodents witha
pure intenton to morove scoess at the grassroots
leval to treatable and diagnostic hedlficars
servires, which lsvery much n line with the
healtheare objectives <=t by the Government of

Nepal

HODL made a total financial contribution of

B= 300,000 in the FY 2023/24 at the rate of

Rs. 100,000 each month, beginning from Mid
April 2024 for the salary disbursement of the
doctors and nurses employed at the institution,

14 Ek EE Paila Foundation (EEFF)

HOL contributed a total of Bs. 500,000 to Ek El
Faila Foundation (CEFF] ELFE in collabomtion
with the lom| povemment, plans {o condusct 3
health clinic ar Eold, Bajura District to address
the lackof health sermeesin the region:. As part of
its fye-year stmtegic plan, EEPF provides snma)
&ye. &ar, rose, throat, denstal. and gynecological
screening and prevention, pregrancy and
postpartutn care, lactation and family planning,
screening for prolapse and fistula, other
Eyoecclogical exmminations. post: 2bOTHion Care;
and minorsurgeries (biopsies).

15. Birgunj Metropolitan Office (BMD}): For Lab
equipﬁ:mt at Lipanihirta Health Poest

HDL contributed a total of Bs. 500,000 to
Lipanibirta Health Post for the purchase

of lah equipment at the request of Birgunj
Metropolitan Office (BMO). BMO had
reguested financial sssistance for the
insinllation oflab equipmentat Lipanitirs
Health Fost &t Parwanipur 21, Lipanibirta:

to promate physical fitness among locat
COITHTMTTTES:

16 Lifeline Health Home Care: HDL also
comtriboied an ameount of Rs 175,000 io
Lifeline Health Home Care for conductine
nealth camps and symiposiyms 10 different
cormmumities of lnlitpur doring the year
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Whisky category of Nepal Further, its constant focus tiwamds product
quilitative product variants namaly Black Cak and Siiver Ouk. Esch

of thess Oule hrands eaters to distinet constimer sepments and have
besi abile to create s favorable mutket response outperforming the
competition
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Every new group metnber receives a clean
ari] particular actvity description. This now
niot handiest enables them to apprehend

their roles and respansibllities however

alzo affords a foundation for nomal oreml]
performance evaluations Our employment
guidelines are emnployes-targeted and strictly
adhere to Nepal's Labor Law, meking sure
fairness and eomplianes.

We cost a wholesome paintings-Tifestyle
balance for all our personnel Foremmple,
we offer extro breastfeedmg time for nursing
mbms with infants beneath six months and
paternity depart for fathers. These profects
reflect our dedication to assisting both the
non-public and professiomal ves of oamr

group individimls

HIFMAN RESOUETY MAYACEMTNT

To help our team grow end excel, we've
implemented robost MR policies and pravide
ample ttaining opportunities ‘Tach year,

we prepare and review a training and staff
devalopment plan to guide these effarts
During the lasy revisyw period, we condurted
25 training sessions, enhancing the skills

of 335 employess—all fully onded by the
COTNRPany.

At HOL, we strive to be a himan-centric
organiznticn, even in Nepal's highly
competitive Higeor industry, Below are some
of the #=y HE policies that malke this possible;

= Transparent and fir recruitmearndt
processs=s

= Clear job roles end responsibilities with
regular performance evaluations




= Employee-friendly benefits, inclndmg
support forwork-iife balance.

& Arimial training and development plins to
erhanre staff skills and career growth

These policies and practices ensure that our
team remams motivated, skilled, and ready to
drjve the company forward,

EQUAL OFPORTIFNITY EMPLGYER

At HM we are proud o' be an 2qual
oppoTtunity employer dedicated o

imparting an inclusive place of job. We have

o coverage of no longer tolerating any form
of discrimination based totally on face,
ethnicity, eplour, faith. sex. age, or disabilliy—
whether ornot overt or subtle Employess are
strongly encouraged to file any insmnces of
discimination to their supennsars,; malnng
muTE hal concemns are addressed throogh the
organisation’s proceedings process

Ouir rerntmEn E EnneT i overseen by

way of a comumittes that ensures that each
hiring selection 15 truthful, cransparent ang
benefit-primarily based, Candidates mndergo
a rigorole evaluation teehnigne conbisting of
mformation and skills assessments, pracical
assessments and benchmark cherks Onee
on beard, new employees will take partina
complete arientation softwore to familiarize
themnselves with HDL's imaginmtive and
prescient. challehes. oparations, codeof
omduct and workplace way of lil=

At HDL we trustthat the fulfiliment

of any enterprise relies upon on the
competencies ond in shape of it team: To
hold this wellkmowri. we behavior guarterly
performance apinions These appramsals
na longer only degree real employee
perfornance towards expectations

bust alsoidentily opportunities for

schooling, reimbursement, mentoring or
merchandising HDL's Promotion Commities
coniducts those opinions, making sure thit
each one personnel provide honsstand
constructive remarks

HEATTH AND SAFETY

The fitness, safety and micely-being of our
personnelis o top precedence at DL We
provide Personal Protective Equipment

(FPEL) to pesonne! working in exres=ive-
dangerarens and ensure that every one
safety reguiations and techniques are strictly
followed 1o save youimunes or accidents
Compliancs with those protection measures
is talren critically. and corrective movement is
taken whees vital,

GHRIEVANTCE RANDLING

AUHDL, we accept as true with that
addressing employes worties is ey to
improving our administrative center and

guldelines That'swhy we hse aclearand

powernul complaint dealing with manmer in
region to ciear up troubles quickly and pretry.
Our Grievance Hendlmg Committes inciudes
the CEQ. Grievance Handling Officer, Heed
of HR. Head of Legal and the Department
Head of the employes elevating the concEm.
Employees can publish their grisvonces
thru a straightforward process, with clean
timelines set for resolving each case

I any employes isn't satisfi=d with the final
results they could talie their atttaction
without delay to the CEO. The cholce mada
with the aid of the TEQ s very last, ensuring
every complaint is addressed transparently
ond thoroughly:

Al HOL, we are dedirated to developing a

supportve workplace where anybody el
heard, reputable, and valuad
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HIFMAN RESOUETY MAYACEMTNT
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However, the premium segment faces

MOFE unfenainiy in the upcoming year

as well as the disposable income levels

of its consumers are not expected to rise
significantly in the near future. Despite this
overarching challenge, HDLaims to deploy
strategy innovations throush new products
and marretmng efforts within the premium
catepory so thatit can mitizate the decline
in-demand. It is evident that in the year
2024, HDL wili need tocontinue adaptngits
product portiolio 1o the evolving consumer
landscape as weil as tiie gvemll financial and
ECONOMIC ENVITIOMENE

Overall, HDL 15 well prepared to-navigarte

the challengesand opportunities of the
perimd 2023-24 and 5 driven by o strong
focus on sustamnahility, affordability, prodoct
imnovation, and adaptability in the ever-
evolning economic landscape of Nepal,

Bottling Unit

The company 5 distillation and bottling takes
placeat the factory in Birpunj, Parsa Districk
All productsat the factory are manufactured
under the supervision of an Dxcise Inspector
All products are tested at the company's
labomtory prior to sending them to the

markes.




FRoDUCTE R STNVICER

ARANGE OF CUSTOMER ORIENTED,
HIGH VALUE PRODUCTS AND
SERVICES AND A STELLAR BRAND
PORTFOLIO

The ligust industry's business i Highly
mfluenced by consumer-centric trends
particulary changing consumer preferences,
values. and behaviors. The ever-changingeet
of conmimerexpectations makes it inevitable
for iguor manufactarers to be innovitive,
adaptive, relevant and competitive inthe
matksts that they serve.

HDL being s customer oriented and dytiamic
businese drganteation always einphastres
and imsplemenitea progetive approach to align
ite products and productbrand experences
to effectivaly mest the sver-changing
demands and preferences of ite diverce vet
salective audienre.

Further, the company iscommitted to
stayaltune toits consumers needs and
thig hag beeh remarkably justifiad by its
varions continions product devslopment
ani dssign Improvement initiatives. This
aricompromisable cusinmer centric
approdch hasempowered HDL and its:
products by meet the customer needs. paiet
custamer loyalty and alzo achieve stiatsgic
advatitage tn enhance it= competitivensss
and sustairmbility in the morkst:

HDL's thoughtfully tailored product mix
caters diverse consumer segmeants and
gquanches their diverse prefarenices. HDLs
Golden Oak & tnuch-loved liquor brand in the
tountry s ableto establish itzalf as a reputed
choice for its custormer segments wha
appreciate the finer things in life and have
anunyielding passion fbr exceptional tasts.

Similariy, its Black Oak maroets mdividuals
pursuing perfecton inavery moet of their
hves and whoare meticulous about their
wark and their craf Blue Gal; a howry
offertng of HDL targets those consumers who
value the are and the extaordinary.

HDL has maintained 115 strategic foous to
develop and implement effective marketing
efforts fotusing to enhance the premium
imaze af s brand. Az a result of this;

the cpmpany has made wisihle efforts o
enhance the visual and aesthenic aspects of
its products, thepeby, uitimately enbancing
its brands’ identity and crestion of "brand
equity” through impactful advertising.

HDLs holistic marketing strategy
encompasses & range of carefully integrated
marketing channels and platforms to portray
aconsistentand premiuwm brand image, It

15 the resuit of this strategy that HDL boasts
astrong digital presence. consumer-led
activations through outiet-teve] promotions,
and various impactful regional events. HOL
aims o create g harmonious and memaorable
experience forils consumsrs (o reinforee
their confidence inthe company’s brandsand
product pertfchio and to create and sustin

a fovprabie brond image. Henece itisan
undenmabie fact that HOL'S customer-ceniric
business philosophy 15 strongly reflectedin
all of its products and marketing efforis. In
the present context of evolving congumer
preferences, the company 15 committed to
stay nail= and creative and it looks forward
{0 & Promising journey of growth and
transformation in the days ahead.

Some of the major product brands of HOL and
their stary has been presentad below:
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Our Products

GOLDEN OAK

STEENGTH-34 2% Vv
S 750mi - with tamper-procf dlomire.
375ml - and 180m] and alas sold with with

EEY SELLING POINTS

-Iihha:lﬂlﬁ'l.fhﬁm.ﬂﬁ
-i‘&r@uallaste
o S

‘Golden Gﬂkuamm;:lﬂi:h‘.r uriguE mixture of
premium malts and Nepaless grain spirits, matured
in American oak caskes Its rich aroma of drisd end
result. toasted vanilla, and smoked cereals gives
ready 10 embody new demanding sittations, Golden
‘Dalk represent=s surcess and generosity. Whather
=erved neat. at the rocks, or with mixers. it's perfect
far creating memomble moments.

As Nepal's satisfactory-prometing liquor lnside the
40UP segment. Golden Cak comesm 180ml, 375ml,
and 750ml bottles, presenting premium taste st an
amazing price Its upgraded packaging with mono-
carton instances. a polished label and cap design
ad&snmud:ufeltgammakmgkhestfnrfﬁlnah
‘Golden Galrkesps hnﬂ:fmuldfnrfntmm
combined malts.

MARKET SHARE

+59%

1 ] LT et Fnml

MITIRLST [T
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BLACK OAK

TYPE: Premium Blendsd Malt
STRENGTH-34 IR v

SHi: 758 ml - Sald in a canister with tamper
- proof clesure. 375 ml and 180 ml also sold
with tmmper - proof clomure

EEY SEELTNG POINTS

= Extra matured inoal cashs

s Blended with Nepali grain spirs
s Smoliey and Oakyiast=

s Freminm packaoms

@/Emz/g

Black Dale is crafted to have fun sueress This
rematkable whisky, double-matured inchidred
sherry salCachs. pives a cultnred palate 6f nutty,
wioody Azvorswith a velvety smoly finish. Designed
fm' perfectionists, Black Oalk's top rate packaging
miTTors its sophisticated esceice, makingitan
|deal eompanion for lifestyless milestones.

Available n 180ml, 375ml. and 750ml bottles (with
theiatter encased n a'styllsh canister), Blark Oalk
Iz a preferenice for follis whi fesl refinement and
achispement With itsvich person ang styllsh mir of
serrecy, Blark Caltis morethan a whisle—it'san
experience for achisvers

MARKET SHARE

T
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SILVER OAK

STRENGTH: 24 X% viv

SHI: 75m] - Sold fnamono carion with.
tamper-proof closure 375ml - and 180ml
closre

BEST SERVERD: Served <trnight or withire

HEY SELLING POINTS

» Blend of pure Artesian Himalayan TN
watsr b carefully selecied gmins

= Premium pal:hagl ng

Silver Dak reprasents inncvation and parity,
blending premium grins with Himalavan
art=sian water This spirits smooth finich
and sasy-to-cpen premium capofferan
clear, transpazent bottle reflects the brond's
comEmitiTent to quality and visoal appsal

Crafted for the modam drinker. Silver Oak
delivers 2 hanpover- free experienice, whether
enjoyed straight or with fee_ 43 premium taste
and hassle-free packaging make it a sandoms
choice. especially for those seeking a refined
white spirit.

MARKET SHARE

+12%

{ vl a1 T ki
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BLUE OAK

TYPE: Premium Biended Malt
STRENGTH-34 3% v/v

SHIF 750 ml - Solid in 3 cmisterwith
tamper - proof closyre 375 ml - and
188 ml aiso 2old With tamper - proai

closure

EEY SELLING POINTS

= Matured in Charred Shemyand
American Oak casts Blend ofthe
mmrest malte dovhl=smoled and
(Taly laste

= Fremiuim packaging

o W

Neat or on the rocks:

Eite Oak iz a bold and complex blend. double-
srnohed incharred shermy and Americar oak chslies
Its peaty aroma and hints of bialed fruitsand
ipices rrente a lixnmious driniing experienre A5
you savor 1L, the rich smelgmilt ubfolds layers of
character and compleaty.

Available in 180m]. 375mil, and 750ml bottles

[with the latter emcased in premium parkaging),
Blupe Oak is designad for special celebrations and
triumphs 1t's a pinnacle of hixory, crafted for those
with a taste for sophistication and edromgance

ANNUOAL KERQRET 21225



HIMALAYAN AILA

STRENGTH:485% viv

SEL: 750 ml

HEY SELLING POINT: Nepal's ariginal
taste. perfect blend of art. tradition
SERVING: Neat

Himalayan Aaila it a tribute to Nepal's cultural
beritage, erafted from fine basmati res and
offering a robust 48.5% dlcohol content. Presentad
i o frosted battle, this spirit stays trusto the
traditional Newari “Afla", knows for its purity and
strength.

ldeal for traditional feasts or rintale. Himalayon
dellvering a thniling and authentic sxpenence
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ROYAL TREASURE

STRENGTH: £28% viv
SKU: 750m) - Sold in 3 mono earton
avaiighle in 375ml and 180ml

HEY SELLING POINTS
= Desp and smoath tasie
= Alended with handpicked grain
spirits and imported Seottish malts
® Taste of royalty from stait to finish
® Premium packaging

Meat, an the rocks or azswhisky cockitails

Royal Treasure Premnom Whishy iz a smooth.
complex blend of golden Scottish malts and
handpicies grainspiri from Nepal Thissa
delicious smoky bouqust with a tich ereamy body:

ANNUAL RERQRET 2=
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ERAND PHILOSOPHY

At Himalsyan Diszillery (HDL), we recogniz=
the evalving preferences of Nepalese
consumers. Gurproducts reganate ywith
|ocal values, offering premivrm guality smned
mnovition. Throush desipn enhanrements
nd thoughtfol packagine. we alizn with the
needs of a dynamic marks?, ensuring our
brands remain relevant and desired

Dur Gak Series—Golden Oalk, Black Oal,

Biue Qak and Silver Oak—caters to diverse
@stes, providing premium options for

every ocasion. Froun festivals to personal
milestones, our spirits restememaorakie
sxperienres. Over the years, gurfocus on
premiumiratinn has strengthensd our brand
identity, backad by engazing advertising and
vibmnt community participation

MARMETING STRATEGY

Colden Cak stands as a trusted companion
for life’s oplden moments with the taglineg
*Sunaulo Pal Ko Sathi* Farticlpating in
cuftural celebmations like Lhosar, Thary, and
Maghi festivals, Golden Cakconnects withits
aurience through mezninzfm| experences.
Blatk Ok embodies ambition with its teline
*Safalte Ho Ssatii”™ {"Companion of Surcess",

Galchem Dk DV Lisk

Through aspimtional storyizlling and
presence at reginnal evenss, ItVs positionsd
a= the whisky forachievers celebmting thair
milestonez

Silver Oak appeais to a youthfil demographic
with it= promis= of "No Hang No Lyang”
offering a premiuim, hangover- fres
sxperience iz smoaoth taste and sleek design
make it 3 standout choire atvibrant ew=nts
liteHoll and { hos=ar

PRODUCT INNOVATION

Unniovation has ahway= renmined as aley
driver for HOL's gronwth. fn 2023-24 1t
lmmchied a new and fresh 40 UP vodka
variant. These additions reflect modern
tast=s_ [Eatmring refinsd ingredients,
advanced techniques, and slegant packaging
Our fierative design approach emsures
products svnliewith marie! trends,
mEmRming consistEnoy and quality

Folden Oak recently adopted 2 new Gunla
cap, wihilleBlack Qalk’s transparent black-
tint=d glase enhoneesits distinctive appeal
Blue Oak will ales s== design updates.

LNE ETSCOTING O COMImIthent (o contimns
ITpTOVETETL
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By mntegrating conswmer fesdback we
create spints that resonate deeply with our
audience. HOL remains dedcated toleading
Wepals spinits market, offering exceprional
quality and experences thot celebrote life's
fnestmoments

NEW PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT:
EXPANDING INTO THE PREMIUM AND
#0UP SEGMENTS

HDL' s innovation stmategy fortheyearin
2023-Z4 geared towarnds adaressing twis
critical opportunities: First. the company is
planning to enter the premivm segment.a
catepory in which i currently has limaed
offerimgs: Fecognming the demand for
higher-guality, refined spiniis, it is developing
a new productamed 2t msteful consomers
who priontize guality and craftsmanship

in their alcoholic bevernges. This premium
product aims to showcase the finest
ingrecients, advanced distillanom technigues,
and refined packasing to compets at the top
end of the market. 1t will cater o conmumers.
seeking a sophisticated drinking experience;
marking a significant step for HOLino
expanding mio this competitive segment.

Simuitanesusly, the Company isalso
capitalizing on the growth of the 40UP
segment, which continues to show SIong
demand as consumersexplore new favors;
and expenences in the whisky category.

As such it plans to introduce o new 0UP
whisky vanant poriraying modemn 1asies
and preferences, offening a fresh take on
traditional whisky with.a distinctive flavor
profile This product aims to appeal to both
the existing whisky enthusastsand the new
COMSUMETS in search of newness inthair

[TERATIVE DESIGN AND
CONTINUOUSIMPROVEMENT

HDL' s commitment 1o itierative demen s
evident in its ongoing product enhancements.

Tor nstance Golden Ook recently underwent
a packaging transformation with the addition
of o new Guala cap, enhancing its premium
imagery. Similatiy, Black Oak now features
atansparent black-tinted plass bottle,
reinforcing its distinctive chamcter. Onthe
other hand. Silver Oalchas been introducerd
with strilune packaming designed to enhanee
the brand's preminmappeal.

These physcal improvements are partaf
HDLs broader stmtegy o ensure that its
product presentation matches with the high
quality of the final product. This approach,
combined with its focus on continuous
improvement, allows HDL to matntain brand
consistency while adapting to the dynamic
markes mends.

CONSUMER-CENTRIC INNOVATION
HDLs innovation efforts have abways been
firmily rooted in its consumer feedback.
Through sampling campalgns and consumer-
lec activations, we zather insighi= mito
chaneing tastes and preferences, which
suide our prisduct development. This synergy
between consumner input and HOLS internial
expertise ascerinins thet it remams at the
forefrent of the industry, offenng products
that alion their nesids and wanis.

THE PATH AHEAD

With the launch of 3 new product in the 40
UP Vodka segment and a fresh offenngin
the 40UF whisky category, HDL is geared up
toexpand its market presence and iap into
new consumer bases. These new sdditions
have also helped the Company to reflect its
commitment to innovation and adaptebility
inthedynamac alcoholic beverage industy
of Wepal Moving forward, HDL aimis 1o
CONTNYE 10 115 quest to explore new frontiers
inthe aleeholic bevernges industry while
engsuringits market leadership bath inthe
brown spirits segment and in the evalving
Wilie Spirits category.
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PERFORMANCE AND MARKET SHARE
Industry: Overall Liquor Industry

Industry Valume 2079/80: 1,793,678
Industry Volume 2080/81: 1682071

Gislden Oal 603205 §15 407 4%, 3%
" Black Caik 105 825 20157 £% 7%
il 16.588 o% 1%
Blue Dal 343 44 o% 0%
:.#m.li 77 150 0% 00 %
Total 720065 es2553 P 39,

Between last yearand current year HDLs Golden Oak's matket chare decteased by 3% in the reviaw
period while {ts total volume has dacreased by 1%. The overall Indistry volume in the same period
decliried by 6 percent siprialling an overall declinesin sales of aleohiolic bevetages.

[ndustry: 40 UP Whisky Category
ndustry Volume 2079/80: 924 088
mdustry Volume 2080/81: 877,985

Gitlduit Gal BO320% 515, AG7 RS 59
Hiach Ouk 115536 120152 =34, 1%
Blue Ol o3 EE] o 0=
Total 719984 B35515 TEY %

in the 40 UP Whisky Category, HDL s brand velime fell by 72 for Golden Oak this year as compared to
last year while its overall share decreased by 6% where the market share of Blork Cak increased by 1%,
The ayerall industry volume declined by 5%,

Industry: 40 UP Vodka Category
[ndustry Volurmne 2079/80: 101729

[ndustry Volurme 2080/81: 141,022

Silier Cak 16288 L 2%

in the review period. Silver Gak recorded o markst share of 17 indts segment.

{ihato Sossisd on Enarmed Sarevy)
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State-of-Art
Distillation Unit

Himalayan Disdilery Limited (HDL) is among
the few higuor producers in Nepal that features
both o state-of-the-art battling facilityand o
world-closs distillstionumt, whichis designed
for fiture expansion if necessary. The 30 KLFD
distillation plant. cafted by KATZEN (USA),
has the copability to produce six million liters
of Extra MNedrrsl Alcohel {(ENAY The distllation
process fokows o soentific methodolegy

thmt begins with the proper storage of graimns,
followed by pre-cleanimg and goality testing.
After milling the grams into flour, the process
continues with {igoefactionond conversionof
the shury into sugar. which is then fermernted
to produce aicohol

Lo ks for
il fiar forthes

Filgala =i ]

Y=t prophEation
B fermsHEOn
PiisEss |4 exirres
gl e Naa) plg ey

syt o glanhal

* ML proguces na s state -of the- ar 30
HLPL distlilgtion plant desigr by KATIEN
(5A) for Righ quality potabls ENA
Capacy: & millon Utems

* StringeEnt qualiny control & petiormed &t
miultiphe l=vels theough differsnt lak
enalysein g highiy sdvasiced laboratory.

HDL's distillation process includes.a stnct guality
control sysiem that mvolvesa senes of sample
tests to confirm that the final prodoct 1s markst -
ready. The company alss operates amodem,
wedl-eguipped labomtory that serves as the
central hub for these guality assessments:

Additionally, HDL has mage significant
vestmients this year in automating 1ts
distillation plant This sutomation will improve
operational efficiency by minimezing downiime
and resource use, resulting 1n substantial

cost savings. 1t allows for precise contmol over
processes. enhancing product quality and
conmstency while reducing human ervor, The
upsmader safety features will mitizate hazards,
and tive system radaptability will enable guick
TEsponses o market demands. Overall, this
automaiion is expected to enhance profitability
and susmimability in HDUs distillation operations,

Ready fermisgiathn Fusthe tras
difTemnt distalatinn T WEtE m
aliisii i =i
FHR
P e
_ Whas
M SR
h=uli—
- -
2019-2¢) 3059 gag
202031 Lo i
202122 aom s
2OFE-T3 2450 485
2073-24 1207 sl







AUTOMATION & QUALITY CONTROL:
A Iﬂumey 'Df A modermn auiomation system ensures seamless

operations, whie anintegmied guality control dab h

Innovatiﬁn and_ upholds the hishest product standards,
Sustainability The malt spirit froam this feility will be ased forat

least three years o produce premium single malt
witisky, reducingour reliance on Scotch whisky
HOL s thrilled toanmounte important impartsand setting anew standard for guality
advancements throughout our operations, and inmoyvanon in the spirits mdustry,
reflecting ourwillpower for sxellence, e
sustninability, and growth. Here's a picture of '
HOL's recent jmtistives:

MODERN MALT

PLANT INSTALLATION:
We gre proud fo onveil our pewly instelled
malt plant. 8 comempomry focility designed

to provide top-first-mie malt spirits effectvely
and sustamably This marks o sizeable step
forward in oor adveniture to creale premium
spirits by biending the murrent genemmtion with
traditional information i

= Mash Tun E Lauter Tun:

Advanced equipmient ensures precise -k . ¢ il Tl
tempemtare control for optimal starch ; _ i l l_ "
comversion and efficient wort extraction, U] . .|

setting the smge forsuperior fermeninon A -.- _!__" ‘- .
= Fermentotion Systarm: ‘
Stainless stee] fermenters with mutomoted
tempemtare control and aerEtion
techmigues ensure consistent fermentation;
resulting in rich flavor profiles ¢

= Distillntion Tnits:
Custom copperstills and precision-
enginesred distillation colummns create high-
quality; complex spirits:

= Encrgy Efficiency
Ensrgy-seving systems ke steam recovery
end heatexchangers reduce envitonmerntal
impact whil= mamesining high prodoction
standards:






New
Projects

SPIRIT MATURATION
WAREHOUSE

To support our malt producton HDL i5
Inniding 5 dedicated mmumtion warshouse
inside the Himalayan Region. selected for
it perfect weather for geting aged matured
spirit The focility will age maltspintsfora
I O 3 YR ars, enhancing their taste
and being first-mte This mitistive will assis:
15 ik

= Reduce dependence on high-priced
Imported malt spariis.

= Lower production costs whilst reraining
superior first-class quality.

= (penopportimities (o prommote sales of aged
=piris ocaliyand acmss the world,

By maling an investment in this warehiouss,
HBL isstrengtheming its posilion as @ muain
producer of premicr spirits, paving e way

for extrn efficienoy and new sales siveams

CONCEIT IMALGES



ZERO LIQUID DISCHARGE

(ZLD) SYSTEM

As g part of our commitment o sustamability,
weve mounted o Tero Bquid Discharges (Z1.0)
systerneat our distiflation plant This present -
day-system eliminates iquid waste by
changmg it intostrong "Dry Cakes,” which can
bie-spld at'n higher price as the raw muaterial of
cattle feed

Benefits of the 7LD System:

& No igmid waste discharee, enhancing oor
emvirommental performence.

= Diry Cakes generate betterseles than
conventional shodes

= Suppor:s glolialnstainability dreams even
as bogsting our gpermtionsl ferormance.

This inmovation is s win-win for boththe
ENVIIONment and curenterprise; reflecting
HDL's management in responsibie
production

VENTURING INTO

THE FISHERY MARKET

HODLis incrensing its orizons by way of
coming mbo the fishery markst through a
subsidiary arganizntion: With land aiready
obmined and feasibility research confirming
theumdenaking s capacity. we are mmching
& piigt segment bo malke sureof a sucoessiyl
roiont

WHY THIS MATTERS:

= Meets the growing call forregionally
souriced fish decreasng relianceon
Impores:

= Supports loca! food safety and creates
process opportimties in neary
COTMmmithes.

This new challsngs aligns with ourvision
of diversification and sustamaoble sTowth,
promismg 1o maske a fmgh-guality effectson
the local sopnomic syster:

At HDL we stay Commmutted 10 imnovation.
exceptionalism, and sustainability Thess
projects not oriy beautify oor operations but
alsc Srengiinen our position as an entetprise
teader Thankyoufor joimng uson this
HTETESHNE jOUCNEY 05 W CoImte 1o push

- limitmtions and create sxcellant products;
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Director's
Report

23" Annual General Meeting

Dear Shareholders,

We warmiyweicome all the shareholders m
this 24th-Annual Gerieral Meeting of Hirnalayan
Distllery Limited (HDL), We'shall b= takins

thiz opporamity to present HDU's financial
statenents inciunding balance sheet, profit and
lossacrount. cash flow statement for the fiscal
wear 2073/024 for your dus spproval, Wewould
aleo liketo reguest you to thoroughly discuss
and approve the agends presented m thiz
MESTing:

Moving ahead, on kehalf of the Board of
Drectors, we would iike to present a brief
review of the majer activities of the company
tast year and iis futire programnts:

1L Overview of business for the fiseal
year 2023/2024:

A brief descoptiopn of the business done by the
company in the financal year 2023/2024 isas
follews.

hicd Sales 20891495598
Gross Prodil LTI PRR a2
Gross Dpersiling pealit 483 F20OR
Non Operaling 1neome B6 384 021
Frofil before provisin of incomes tay 435077231
Profetaler provasion pf oo 1y J63048.730




FINAMTIAL FTATEMINTSE

L Although the contrbution of the "Golden Cak”
brand has been significant in the company's
business over the past few years, wecan
abserve a declina in it contribution recently.
Wi have already initiated various strategies
anid eforts in mimimize and prevent firther
decline inits sales and distribution At the
same time, we hove alsp pricntized its brand
diversification. In the review period we have
introduced the "Silver Oak” brand in the
market However, HDL's "Blus Oak™ hasnot
besn ahie to establish tmelf in the mariet
strongly, We are committed to ensuring the
safety of investors' funds and providing high
PETUMS 0 InVestoTs. A such we are confident
thatwewill cottinue recetving direet and
indirect support from our Iniestors in

this endemmr, Wewoald lke to inform that
producing brands that are well aligned with
our consumer preferences and incTeasing
COMPENY TEFenile DEMEINS O Lo Priony.

ZWe are alsoworking on prodiscing high-
quality Uguarin new segments to fmther
diversify our business. to cater to our
changng consumer preferences, and o
mcrease gur overall revenue by enhanong
our brand portfolio

3 In the review period, HOLU's producion

and sales have declined due o unhealthy
commpetition in the lquor industry of the
country, lock of conmumer awaremess about
brand idantity. annual increases In excise
duty leading to higher product prices. educed
COsnmEr purchasing power, and decressng
market demand: This hos led o a dediinein
the rompany’s revenue aswell

4 HELs premium products. Golden Oak and

Elack Oal, have been counterfeited by certain
industiies ogain short term financal
benefite They have been producing and
distributing low-gquility, Imwer-swength. and
lower-priced liguor m bottlés that are similar
i these wo branids and hove misisading.
names to deceve consumers, We hove already
filed complaints against those industries with
the relevant authorty.

5 Since advertisement of lquorproducs

is prohibited, ithas become challenging

to introduce new brands to consumers
Additionally, the reduction in ongoing bmnd
awareness programs for established brands
has made it inereasingly difficult to mmmian
their recognition in the minds of chnmomers

& The restrictions on bmnd promotion activities

forvariops progducts have al=g resulied
additioral challenges for future brand
promction effarts.

7, During the review period. the company’s

net sales have declmed by approxmataly
30 compared to the preceding fiscal year
This deécresss can be stiributed to ecobomic
recession unhealthy competition In the
liguor Industry, lack of consumer nwarensss
about bmand identity. osing exwise dury and
producsion costs creating higher product
prices, reduced conmumer purchasing
caparity, and an declining sverall miarket
demand Despite the decline in net sales HDL
strategies which has enabled it 1o generate
anet prefitof s 36 3048 73000 during this
period.
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2. The impact of the national and
international situation on the

business of the company:

= I11 the review penod, the ciobal economy
aleo showed signe of stagnation with visible
impacts in the Nepalese economy. Mest
activities atmed at revitalizing the country’s
economicmomentum remained lsrgely
stognant and this contraction in economic
actvities inevitably alse affected the guor
industry. Challanges of difficdlties in
moblliring working capital due tolack of
huosiness growth, decrease incomumers
disposahle income, Auctuating interest
mtes imdermining investor confidence and
intense and unhealthy market competition
have collectivelylad to a decline itn ovarall
industiial snd busingss tmnsactions

» The ahmial increase in sxcise duty by tha
Government of Nepal, increase in foreign
exchange rates, fluctuations in fusl prices,
higher transportation costs, and the rising
cost of rov mnterials esed in production have
cantribiit=d to inrreasedd production cosis,
resulting in Emnﬁpﬂnﬂﬂgﬂﬂ imthe price
of limeors marmfacmired. The sgnation of
INEoma-gEnNEmINg ECOn0mic activities has
further redured the salesand distribution
of liguar. Moregver. the econonmy has not yet
Rully normialized dueto challenges such a=
luck of enough econpmic activities, dengus
cutbreaks and the migmation of active labar
o foreign countries, which have continued to
impact the overall business aperations inthe
review period.

® Similar to the previous year, the industry’s
production of spirit faced challenses resolting
from the sxpart banon its primary m=w
materials, broken rice by the neighboring
country India. This has led to significantly
more expensive procurement of broken

rice from iocal morket. mnce they canonly be
collected during specific periods and thisin tam
has increased production costs substantially

» Varjous restrictions imposed un the production
and distrbution of lguor through fermal
channels have ied to the suoplyof iquor
through ihformal sectors leading to o direct
advers= impact on the bisiness of the industty

s Despite operatioms| challenses, HOLs
management hiss been efficiently running the
Company and has been ensuring the sales and
distribution of itx produets with a hightevel of

professional competence

3.0pinion of the Board of Direciors
regarding the achievements of the
current year and the future up to the
date of the report:

s There has been an merease of 49 perrent inthe
sates yolume of HOL in the first three months
of the fiscal year 20242025 as compared to
the preceding fiscal year Further detnis of the
same are as follows

L= NPE
Husrh Y 20237024 v TAEDS
Asenset bn (NFH)  Arsocost bn (PR

A0TINANGE00 T34 544 £0 00

Shrawa (July/Augiul) Lo
Axlvein (Bo plusribes! Gictober)

# [he= 1o thie high cost and delays ssocated
wiith the impor ofmalt spirts from sbrooad.
the compamy hasinitmted the establishment
of o rmalt spirit production unit within Nepal
to further streamline production. By the end
of the revisw period, an =xpert consuliant has
besn selectad. and with their direct suppart,
e comstroction work: has already been
completed. and the unit 5 currentiy in the
process of triol prodoction

= HDL has purchased land in high himalayan
tegionand is in the process of designing
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the architect of necessary infrastnichure to

achieve itz aim to produce high-guality liguor

that aligns With consumer preferences by
mEturing spirits In the future, afterselling
matured spirits and introducing prodocts
made with its own matured spirits o the
markst; 1t is expected that oor production
costs will detrease and thiswill lead to an
improvement in HOL's overal| profimbiliny

= We have prioritized the principle of effective
implementaton of legal standards inour
opemations The grain sindge genemted
during our epirtte production ls currently
processed in our Tifluent Treatment Flant
and {5 zold, contribuding to the HD|'s reverse
generation Inthe future, by drying the groin
sludge into dry cakes and selling them, we
aim to further increass our HYemne SiTeam;
enhance the efficiency af our Industrial
wiste management. and fmprove our
enmvimonmental sustainability indiators To
achieve this dream, weare inthe final stages
of the installation of necessary machinery to
advance gur Zero Lignid Discharge initintive:

We have already completed ourplant
automation process o reduce production
costs, enhance prodoctivity, and ensure
consisient quality in spirit production The
prodoction has already begun; and weare
woirking on plans to sell the high- quality
spirit produced underthis project to other
indusiries based on the quality and quantity
of the produce.

= Additionally. HDL is also expioring wmrious
mwestment possibllities and strategies to
enure aptimal utilization of its retnined
earnings and mavimimmtion of reums. We
are in the stage of preparing a concrete plan
for this and we are hopaful to fmalze and
impiementitwithin tis fiscal year:

= Toincrease the marketshore of the HDL's
poduct=s, 4 sperial attention has been given

1o pUr market management and promoton
initiatives A stody and andbyic for the same
has besn condurtad o cover markets arross
Nepal, Including the Himaloyan, Hilly, Tem,
Kathmandu Valley, and Inner Madhesh
regions. Based on this, we have aleeady
appoimted distrimorars in all these regions ol
the end of mid October 2025

s ImpovemEnt in prodoctwity can only be

achieved by maintaining harmony and
operational unity betwesn workers and
management To enable this. we have
conductad several programs including but
limited to training sessioms, gathenngs, and
recreational events (like picrics) to further
enhanre soliderity and mefvation Qmong our
empioyees

a From the provisions for CSR mada il

lustyear. the company spent a total of e
£4.348 854 00 under the headine of Comporats
Socinl Responsihility (CSE) within the legal
framewnrk The company will contnue s
CER activities inthe current fiscal year as per
applicable laws and regulations.

4. Relating industrial and commercial; -

= HOL will continue its Corpommte Soctal

Responsibility (CSR) activities in the current
fiscal year as well By carrying oit USR
activities within the famework of laws and
regulations, we gain both satisfaction and
strengthening of gur relationship with the
beneficiary institutpns. They alsp enable us o
foatertrost and confidence v the company's
reputation among stakeliolders 'We shall
cantimus to prioritizs thess activities ln the
future aswell

= HDI 15 continuously working to strengthen

s relntionships with various national
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distributors, distribntors, wholesalers,
resmilers, and consumers through well
-pianned scoia, coiral, and business
partnerships. By conkistently efsuring ctrict
adberetice to mlevant lmve and resulations
and maintaining transparency, we bave been
ahle to establish harmonicns relationships
with the repulatory bodies inchudine but not
limited to the Department of Industry, Inland
Bewetiue Departinerit) Inland Revenue Offices,
Customs Pepartment, Ofice of the Company
Registrar, Nepal Sscurities Board. Nepal Stock
Exthange Limited as well aswith banksand
fnancal mstitutions and other stakeholders
of the company. HOL is committed to making:
theee relationehips sven tnore fruithil
trustwortiy and strong in the foture.

= We have entered into different agreemiants
with suppliers of essential rmw materialy
and packaging tems; ensuring that the
opemtions are conducted under the sparifisd
terms and conditions. Farther, to prevent amy
dizruption in the supply of rmw materals and
packnging gocds, HEL is arthiely seeking new
and alternative suppliers 1o add ag partmess
o fs supply chimin: All of these agreemernts
are entered following strict professional
procedires, considerng the quallty and price
of materials Toensure long- t=rm benafits
HE hos alsp developed o system that foouses
on supply chain efficiency and guality, taking
nto account the Fedback and reguiremanis
of internal departimernite This approach
hasled to the adoption 6f a systemstic and
comsultative method of operations.

® We are alse coordinating with various
associations, eroamzations, and government
agenties 1o support business growi
Te erhance emplovee development and
foster enthusiasm in their world HDL
has been actively imvolving employees in
seminars, workshops, training progmms,
and discussions to ensure their skills
enhancement and relerance in the market.
Acdditionally, we gre dedicated to contribute to
the development of mdustry-friendly policies
with umwmering commitment similar o
Previous years.

5.Change in Board of Directors and
Reason thereof:

Mo ary changs has besn made in Board of
Direciors during the review period

6. Main matters impacting the
transaction:-

® Theimpact of forsign cumrency reserves
ohesrved in the bankine and finometal sector,
coupled with economic slogpishness in
Dmness ransactions, nstabiin i interest
mates and rising codts of fisl, transportation,
and mw materials, hat led o an increase in
the gvemsll production costs of the Company,
In addition 1 this, instability in global
geopolitics, growing marketcompetiton,
and adverse efferts of natural disasters such
as flopds and laridslides hove also nepatively
affected cur production and dismbation
of liquor We sxpect that these impacts will
cortinue o persistin the current fiscs! year
aswelk
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» Unfair competiticn, such o5 the count=rfeiting
and sales of HOL's brands with the imtent
o deceive consumers. hns dinrupted our
bukiness operations.

@ Theintrodurtion of mimerous new produds
by warious lquor industries has heightenad
the risk of iniense competition in the marke:

a Gorermnment'’s incrente inexeise duty mtex
has created an imbalance between our
product pricing and consumer purchasing:
power, leading to 5 noticeable decline in our
Hognor sales.

a Fraguent changes in policies and regulations
regarding liquor production and distribution
harve miade {t difficult to mise our brand
BWEIETIESS ATIONE CONSUIMETS.

& AsmOst raw moterials and packaging:
rnaterials for ligonor production are
unavaitable domestically and need @ be
importzd, the associated high mats for
imports hove adversely impacted our
business operations

7.Remarks on Audit Report, if any--

W= would like=to ket you know that thereis o
comment as remarks in the Audit Report

8 Recommendation for Distribution of
Bonus Sharesand Cash Dividend:

W= propose15% bonus shares (15 bonos shares
forevery 10 existing shares) 1o be distmbuted
tocur shereholders alone witha cash dividend

af B= 133 626 16575 (One Hundred Thirty Three
tiillom S Hundred Twenty Six Thousand (ne
Hundred Sixty Five Rupees and Seventy Five
Paisa guily) at the mite of Be:5 per'pald-up share
(intlissive of dividend tax purposes) from the
net prafit and retained esroings for the fiscal
year 2023-24. The Beard of Directors requests
approval of this proposal from this Annua)l
Goeneral Mesting for the distribution of bonus
shares and cash dividends.

AsT drmw toa olo=er, | waonld like to express my
hope and confidence that HOL will continue
to Teceive valuable support and suggestions
from its shareholders in the days to come. On
behalf of HDL's Beard of Directors, [wanld

lilee to etend heartfzlt gratituds and sincere
appreciatnn o HDL's momagement {eam;
employess, suppliers, distributors, conspmers,
ghareholders, security personnel, welb-wishers.
and represeniatives {Tom various Sovernment
agericies of Nepal fortheir presencEin today's
Anmual General Mesting.

Thankyoun
Chairperson
On bebmif of the Board of Directors
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INDEFPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HIMALAYAN DISTILLERY LIMITED
Reports on the Audit of the Consalidated Flnancial Statements

Opinlon

We have nadited the consolidated financial statenients of Himalayuns Distillery Limited (heremaller referred

fiz s “the Prremt™), and its subsidisriey {the Parent and its subsidiaries hereinafter referred 10 o8 “the Group™), which

comprises the comsatidaed vintement of financial position as a1 Ashadh 31, 2081 (comesponding 1o July 15, 2024),

the cansolidited sttement of profit or lom and other comprehentive income, the consolidatod statement of change

in equity, the conoliduted stiwtenient of cash flows for the year then ended, and ndle to the consolidated financial

stulements, tncluding u summazy wl signifeant sccounting policies.

In our opinion, the accpmpanying consolidaicd Anancial wtatements present fairly, in all maserial respect, the

financial pasition of the Group as at Ashadh 31, 2081 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year

then ended in accerdunce with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS),

Bashs for Oplolon

Wi conductied our sudil in scoordmee with Nepal Siandiirds on Auditing (NSAs), Ouir responsibilifies under those

sturdarcs are further described m the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the sudit of the consolidaied finnncial

statements section of our report, We are independem of the Group tn accondance with the code of ethics for the

professional accountant sued by The lnstiute of Chanered Accountunts of Nepsl together with the ethical

requirement et s relevant to our audit of the consolidaied financlal stements under Uie providons of the

Company Act, 2063, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responaibilities by sccordince with these requi

und 1CAN code of ethics fur professonal sccountanis. We believe thor the sudit evidence we have obmined i

sulficient and =ppropriate fo provide basis for our opinion;

Key Audit Matters

Key sudit maners are those matiers that, in our prafessional judgment, were of mos significance in our audit of

the comolidated financial statements for the foancial year ended on Ashud 31, 2081 {cormespanding to July 15,

2024). These mafters wiere addressed in the cambext of our audit of the consolidated financial siateménty as a whole,

anid m forming owr opimion thercon, and we di not provide o separm: opinien on ivese matters. W have determined
matter described below to he the ey matter 10 be communicated in cur report.

Kmlﬂhhthr [Hm-urmdlt addressed the key audii matter

ue Recagnition
Ljrrﬂm {13 "Revenne” and Newe 19 of the fIndncinl statements)

Revonue from the sale of products{hereinafier refened
0 us “Revenve™) is recognised ol o point in time when
contral of the products is trensfermed to the customerand
there s no unfullilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptanice of the products., which malnly
upoa defivery, the amount of rovenue ean be meamred
reliably and recovery of the considerntion is probable,
The timing of revenus recognition & relevant (o the
teported  performancs  of  the Company. The
munagernent considers revenve ot Key mewsure of
evaluation of performance, There i & risk of revenue
being reardered  before  performunce  obligation
antisfied.

Our audil procedures including following:

authorities, tested the tming of the recagnition

Assesied the Group's sccounting policies on
revenue recognition in lise with NFRS 15
{Revenue from Contrucr with Customer) amd
tested thereod,

Evaliated Whe intogrity of the Geoup's general
information and technology control environmenis
and tested the operating effectiveness of IT
application control over the revenue

Performned detalled analysis of revenue, analvtical
testing with monthly sales informelion fled with
moothly siles informution filed with tax

snd accuracy of the amounis recognised snd

verification of the supporting information of the
Reveaue trananctions

Tested the supporting documents for sclectod
sample of sl tinsactions recoded during the
perind claser to the yenr end and subsequent to the
rwmﬂmnu&;ﬂmhﬂmlnmw
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adit Matter

| How our audit sddressed the key andit matter

I entviry Valwation

Refer Note 1.7 “irveniories™ and Node 015 af thie Tnansibl stalemns)

The group deals with varvous types of bulk matcrial &
Finished goods such as Spirit, Liguor, Grains, ete. The
group has inventory of Finished Goods & Raw materials
a1 varhous locations, Invemories valualion snd existence
has boen determined 0 be @ key asudic mamer e
imventocies may be held for loag periods of time o

Uit audil Tocused on Whesher the valuation of year |
end lovestory was [ sccordanie with NAS 2
‘Inventories’. This  included challenging the
judgenments wken regarding the obsolescence and net
realisable valae of invenitory and the appropriateness
of provivions for such Henss, We canled aut the

vaitious Jocationd before being sold and thus makes it
viingrable 1o obwolescenee.

This could result in an averstatemeant of the value of the
invesloeies if the cost s higher than the net realisable
value Furiber the mesiurement af these invenlones
involye! ceruin  esfimatonsiasunption and  siso
inverlved volumerie meamrenenty,

following procedures ih ausesting the appropHstenes

of the valuation of inventofien:

= obtamed an ynderstanding of the relevant controls,
which included 2 meview of the inventory provision
recorded 8t @ banner level by membeny of the
finamce twam and assessed invemiory conmols in the

group's most sigaificant locations:

« acmsed the group’s nvenory provisioning
policy, with specific consideration of ity onguing
lﬂpmwmnihli;hlufw:mﬁcbuﬂnﬂ
and the macioeconomic environment, the risk
profile of inventory and comsideration of any
expected clonrmnee activity:

s pxvessed the existence and condition of taventory by

anending a sawple of inventory counts throughoul
the your scress all in-scope componmis,
» checked the value of a sumple of inveniory to ssscss
whether @t is beld m the lower of cost and net
realinnble walue, through comparison to vendor
invoices and current sales pricey, and

* in addressing the fraud risk, we re-miculaied the
provisicns recorded 1o evaluate whether they are in
line with group policy and NAS 2.

Information Chber Than the Consolideted Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
The management of the Parent s responsible for the ather information. The other infirmation comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not included the consolidated financial statements and our
muditor’s report thereon, '

O opinion on the consolidated financial Niuniments does pol cover die other information und we do not express
any form of asaumnee conchusion thereon,

In conpection with our audit of the consolidared financinl stavements, our responsibility is to read the ather
Informatim and, in doing so, comsider whether the other information (s materially inconsistent with the
eomsolidaed finsncial statements, or our knowledge ohiained during the course of audit o ptherwise uppenss 10 be
muterially missted.

If, basied om the work we have performed, we conelided that there i & muterisl misstatement therein, we are
vedgiized 10 report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regand,

Responsibilities of Mapagement and These Churged with Governance for the Consolidoted Financial
Stalements

Management of the Parent ks responsible for the preplmtion snd falr presentation of the consolidated financial
siatements in sccordance with the NFRS, and for sugh internal control 2 management determines is necessary to
emnble peegarition of ihe consolideted finoncial stuternents that are free from malerial missiiements, whether dos
o fraud or eror,

in preparing the consolidared financial statements, management ks respunsible for assessing the Parent’s ability to
continue & & gobig eoncern, discloaing. as applicable, mistters related jo golng concern aml Wsing golng concem
basls of accognting unless management either intends 1o liquidate the Parent of to cense operufions, of |iss no
realiaic slierpative but to do o

Thiose ehanged with governance are reiponsible tufmm;ﬂ:dﬁmupiﬁnﬂummﬂuprum

.L“':‘i

Audiinr’ Responsibilithes for the Andit of Camsolidaied Finanelal Statements
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(Hur objecivis dre to obiain reasonuble dssurance about whether e consolidated Msdncial stalements us o while

are free From materiil misstateinents, whether due 1 fraud or error, und 1o B3ue an suditor's repont diot includes

our pgunion, Reasonable novorance s o high level of sssurance, but is not guarutee tiat an sudit conducted in
accordimes with NaAs will always detect @ materdal missiaement when if exisis Missiniements can arfse foom

Iraud or error 2nd are considered materinl if, Imlividually of i aggregate, they could reasonsbly be eapeowed 1o

influrnce the econotic deciinns of users tkien on (he basis OF these consolidaied finaneinl stsements

As part of an budil in Sccordante with NSAs, we exsreise professional judgment and maintain professione

lb.-pm:lw throughout the sudie, We also:
lenify and assens the risks pf material misstntement of the consalidated finaneial siements, whether due
16 frane or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 10 those risks, and obtain sudiv evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide u busis for our oninion. The risk of not detecting & manerial
missiaternent résulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from eror, ax fruud may invelve collision,
forgery, wienliono) omisions, misceprosentntions, or ihe dverride of inteemal control.

* Obtwin an understanding of intermal control relevam o the andit in order bo design audit procedures that dre
appeopeate in the chroumetunces, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the efectivensss of the
Pisrent®s intersial contrt,

*  Evaluate the appropristencss of sccounting pelicies used and the ressonnhlensss of agcounting estimates und
relnied dizclosures made by misnagetment

*  Conclude ve the appropriateness of mansgement’s use of the going coneern Basis of accointing and, haked
on the audit evidenoe oblamed, whether a marenal uncemainty exists relmed 1o events or conditions that miy
cast significant doubt on the Parent's ability fo continoe s & going concern. I we conclude thar a material
uncertaiity exisis, we are requined o desw attention in our suditor's repon to the related dissloiire in the
conselidsted finmcial statement or, iFsuch discivsure are inadequate, o modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are bused on the sudi evidénce obtined up to the date of our suditor's report. However, future events o
conditions muy cause the Parent Lo cense 45 8 golng concern,

*  Evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements including disslosures, and whether
the conpolidated finmiial ststements represent (be wnderlying tranaaciions and events to a manser that
achleves fiir presentmion,

We commumicated with those chirged with governunce refiarding, among otber suters. the planned scope and

g of Uhe audit and significant gudit finding, inchiding any significant deficienciex in intemal eanal thal we

identify during our sudit,

Report on Other Legal und Regulatory Requirements

O the hasis ol our examination, we would liks w sepon that;

8. Wehave obtained all the infarmation and explanationy, which were necessary for the purpase for our mudit

b.  The emclosed consolidated statement of Fnancial position, statement of profit or loss and ofher
comprehensive mcome and saement of cash low hive hean prepared as per the Company Act, 2063 are
n agresment with e books of aceount mainmined by the Group.

[ In ot ofpimion, proper hooks of accounts as required by low have been kept by the Group, 3o far as appears
fremiy ol exaministion of thoss bovks.,

d. I our opinion and %o the best of aur infarmation ahd sccording 1o the explanations given to us and from
wur exaination of the bBooke ol accoudt of the Group, we haveé not come across the cuses where the Board
of Direciors or any member thereof or any vmplovee of the Group his dcted eomrary 1o the peovishons of
law or caused hﬁﬁlﬂtmm'ﬁmp relating 1o the accounts of the Growp,

Dtj‘“*‘“'ﬁ'fﬁ urmm}

o Pty L\ A

UDIN: 241217CA0038761658
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ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
ud Properly, plar end wyulpienl 34 20095514 A5Z807 512 4B BT ERA BS54 872
b Caplial work-in-pregress = 1450554 34743 1 450 <54 34743
o) tntangiblo sssnts 3C 105557 LOO6I64 1085 gy LEs 253
o Beigghad 4o e mscsils 30 ZE35108 Pl | [ 35105 ZAETIH
o) Tl s i 10100000 WLIN0OEE.
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o Oithet s erarpenl petils 46 /AT 42 2p90c0 43747324 42 809060
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b Floa tocist ey
Trads receivoliles &8 216302 LOG2ITESTS 216303 1962176573
Gy ] ek s bvaleils L] 1240060171 AT 1739907 57 AES 591315
Gitier Bank Balamres 815 LOCO U000 TBAZEDO] 1000000000 76 ASE007
Cher Flnancial assels = H MnAss e A392488 14485817 4392488
o) Oitbier curment agssis 46 BIIT T 59554515 Figra s HO3TE330
Total ourrent assets 26682922595 3059515511 2667435099 3063629973
TOTAL ASSEFS LT IRAY TE0ETEA 429 TEII 66 1569308100
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EQUITY AND LIABILTTIES
EQUATY
&} Equity
Shtecapilal 101z 2ETZE2335 2425566650 & ATZRIT IS 2479566650
b) Ober ity
foseres sl wirplis 113 EO2ATOSET #54,668 250 £ 894977 2EAT7IED
Tatal equity I27SITMITE  32B4734940 3IISSAISAL 3,354,803 810
NON-CUREENT LIABILITIES
a) Flreancos! Babilnwes
Borrewings 1214
Bt Dy bl 13715 12402264 1742797 12405200 174297
b Deferrenl e Uabilinlos s IESgz G 26577334 e 843482 IBEFISEE
Total non-current labilities 41348696 21,565,135 41348696 31,565,135
CURHENT LIABILITIES
a) Flreancos! Labilities
Bt 12
Lozl Plyshlgi BTy 1281373 araany 1281373 G728
Trade payahles 1517 30699488 15207794 30699488 145 307754
Other Financial liabilites 16118 FhazE0sS 15570508 GEIZTOTT 19575410
T} Cther ctirroad Uabliijes s 136 160,659 13429037 BE157297 43461502
€] Curpremal tas bl iUes (ney) 1820 113573 3563763 113573 3959763
Total current Hahilities 239905377 2B2.984,354 235496588 282,939,155
TOTAL EGUITY AND LIABILITIES E Ly aerl e ] 31538784 479 IEI2IE3 00 3664308100
TheesccomEnyieg notes sre an frpra| part of the somsolidsted Smancelb s s s
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Forthe vearonded Ashiac 31 MH0 july- i HEX
At fra
GEOUF CDMPANY
1Ol THE YEAN CNGED FONTHE YLAREMGED mmmifﬁ?ﬁ; FONTSHE TLAN ERTIED
NUTE GREFER ASHAD I 2081 ASFAD I 2Ta0 ASHAD YL FEG ASHAD 31 2000
DECCRIFAONME COMDAMY (ruLy is, sooal Ly s, 3o Lruny 1%, 2628 (TORLY AE, S0y
Fuvenie froin gperations 1 4155536997 =SES47E7 598 43155735993 5554 7ET538
Leex gupive dulbos 2OTITIREAS 2580 ITAAD3 2g7iTRSSas 2584774403
Mot salis reyenus ZpE14ne50 25705555 2081456958 270502555
Fesy costof goods sold 70/22 TIT 06102 1032022081 TIFO51029 LO3Z0F3058])
Lo pimeanss (R BT sapssg 2133 1Z2E157.047 HE0IL3IE 121157007 E3021316
Gross profit 1723788922 1769463198 1223788927 1769463198
Tobsl incorne frum opersibons 127 788577 1769463158 127378850 LI65E463198
Ermprloyes bl xpensis 224 18003358 H0A66395 120533596 IAB6E, 39T
Administeation arid olher pxperises 23735 77343 73541 TS TED T3AIETO0
Salling and distribuion expenses 2426 ATHS03ET2 SE6ETITIE 78,503,632 26 EIITEE
‘Operating profit 483017341 938,307,670 483229974 938,527,381
Mon Ogerrating Tontme 2527 STFEEIE0 508372 6EIE402 10508372
Dveprrmicbist iop el syt Lsail e Ly k=S i) ‘snaEsnen L ks 28 o) SO ASE 06D
Fintithes oosts 26728 134365 4510304 1243866 4510304
[Tty exX e
Curtuinl Lx 27/29 1ROFTaOTR FIDE5TE0F 130F70079 A3DESEE03
Dot il B 723 (8TE.:84E) (e {B7E 48] (2575377
Prier Pellod Tax Expunies LE37759 5433740 LET7 265 SATEIE
Profit e the yesr 356,174,536 €sn304119 365,048,730 €40 523 230
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activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  iorthe yoar encodastad 51 J0E0 (i 1 20200
S R
GROmP COMBANY
FORTHEVEAMEN(ND [OF THETEARINGED FORTHETIARENOED  FOR THE YEARENDID
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CISCRITTIONS (FUEY- 15 ) (UL 85, =R {yonE s, 20340 {JLIEY 35, 202Y)
A CASHFLOW FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit bifare tax ' Ag720 538 YT ATESS 436077231 694037365
Adiustmonts for-
Pepreciatinn and-smortisalion 52193007 58455080 52153307 SOAEEDED
Asral Write OfT BA3E3D
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Adjustments for:
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B intanuible seesiy
Sals of property, plant and eouipment L5667 20743 10323052 IETEATI
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES TN EQUITY 5o (10 vias £r0e[iaskan o1 0088 (10 15 sl

| Tt
CROuR COMPANY
EUTTY AND BESERVES TOTAL EOMNTY AND FESERYVES TOTAL
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Finaf tlividdene peid (151;B47 916} (151897.516) (151:847516)  (151847.916)
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GROUP OVERVIEW

Himaloyan Distllery Lid. (heremafter refémed toas"the
Company’) is a public imited compary having its registerad
office ot Ligani Birta. Parsd, Nepal The Company together
with ite subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively refered to as
“the Group’l iz engaged in production and distribution of
Hauor.

These financial shtements are approved forissue by the
Companys board of directors on 08th December 2024

1. SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Thik tote provides a listof the significant accounting policies:
adopeed in the preparation of these financial statements.
These policies have bean consistently applied to'all theyeare
presented, nnless otherwise stat=d.

11 Basis of preparation of financial statements

a.  Statementof compliance
Thaseflnancial statemenis have been prepared in
all miaterial aspecis in stcovdbnee with reguiremenis of
Company Act 2063 of Nepal atid applicable Nepal
Financinl Reporting Standarde {NFRS) and the relvant
presentation regquiretnents thereal

b Historical cost convention
Thaseflnancial statemenis sreprepared in agcordance
with the Ristorieal cost convention. excapt for certain
iterns that ate meagured at fairvalues ac sxpliined in
the accountng policies below.

c. Current VS Non-current classifiration:
All ass=ts and Eabilities have been classifisd a5 cumment
ornon-turrent as per the Groops normal operating
cyele and other critetia setout in NAS 1 - Presentation
of Financial Statemarits based on the nature and the
time betwean the acquisidon of assets for processing
ant theirrealiration in mch and cash sqoivalents.

The Group has classified the assets as ciorrent when:

s Expected tohe realived orimended to be sold or
consumed Innormal operating tycle

s Expected o be realived within twelss Momth.

s Cash and cash equivalent uniess restricted from being
sxrhanged or nsad to settie a labllity for at least tweive
months after the reporting period:

s Held primarily for the purpose of the trading.

All other asssts are classified as non-ourrent

The Group hae claszified the Hability as carrent whan

It expects 1o be seitled in normial vperating cyele:
s [tisdu=tobesettied within twehe months after the

reporting pariod:

s Thereis nounconditional doht to defer the eettlement of
the ligbility for at lsast twelve months after reporting
pertod:

s Held primarily for the purpose of the trading.

The Group hae claszified all othier labilities as hon-corrant
Deferred to gooetsf linbilitias are classified 2 non- current

d Funetisnal and presetitation currency
The financial statements avepresented in Nepalase
Rugse [Re), which is the funetlonal and presentation
curfency of the Grotp. Ambunts in the financial
stat=meniz are rmiinded off to the nearest fupes.

1.2 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiari
Subisidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
ol The Group amtrols an entity when the Group

in exposed (0. or has rights to, variable returns from its
immlvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
retarns through fts power to direct the relevant activites

of the entity. Subsidiari=s are fully consalidated from the
date o which comtrol |5 transferred o the Group. They am
deconsolidated from the date that comtrol ceases.

The Group combines the finantial statemenis af its
subsidiarias line by line ddding topether like temns of assets,
liatillties. equity, Income and expenses. All intergroup assets
and lahilities, equity, Inoommse. sxpenses and cash fllows
relating to transaction between companies of the Group

are sliminated m full or consolidation Unrealzed gains on
transartions between Group companies are aliminated

Non-contmolling isterests In the results and equityof
subsidiaries are shown separotely in the consalidated
staternent of financial position, consolidated statement
of profit and loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated siatement of changes In equity respectively.
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1.3 Property, plant and equipment

Froperty, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
depreciation, and impairment loss. {f any. Cost tncludes
expenditure that {5 directly attobarable to the acquisition of
an item of property, plant ond equipment.

Subsequent cogts are included in the asset’s cammying
amount or recognised as s separate a550t. as appropriste,
omly whenit is probahble that fimre econcmic benefity
associated with the ftem will flow 1o the Groupand the

cost of the item can be mensured relinhly, The carmying
amount of any component acrounted foras & sepamte
asset is derecogmised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance expenses are charged to statement of profitor
loss during the reporting periad in which they are incurred.

The cogt of praperty, plant and equipment which are not
ready for theirintended use till the date of statement of
finamrinl position, are disclosed under capital work-in-
pregress

Anitem of propernty, plant and equipment (s dertecoenised
upaen disposal or wehen no future economic benefits ame
expected to anse from the contiming use of asset Any
Zain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment {5 determinedas
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carmynng
amount of the property, plant and equipment andis
recognised in the statement of profitor loss

valoe

Depreciation is calculated psing the staight-Ene method
crer theirusefnl lves The estimated useful lives of property.
plant and equirment i= as follows:

Assris Useful fives (years)
Rupti e POC frame simotiee B0 e
Ruptiings other than ROC fame dmetups 30 v

Factry it ing= 30 e
i — Syeirs
Chers {Inchating {empaany Smetr=] 3 years

Lez==hold Improvemeni=s B0 yeirs

Compusars F-&yeans
Cifice equipimeny = -0 e
Electribal ingdallatons D e

Tumimees aned fodures D e

Vehicles = -0 e
Froduction phms 20 - 30 yedrs
e macdunery and equlpment 3- 15 e

(iher assets SyeEirs

Freehaold land is not depreciated

Residual valnes vseful lives and method of depreciation
are reviewed at sach financil yearend and sdjusted if
appropriate

Impairment

Property, plantand equipment are tested for impairment
whensver svents ar changes in drrumstances indicats

that the carrying amomt may not be recovemhls An
impairment low |srecognized for the smount by which the
ansets CAPTYInS amount excesis it reeovemble amome
The reroverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fairvalus
=3 comts of disposal and valusin use For the purposes of
assessing Impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levals for which there are separately {dentifinhle cash inflows
which sire lasgely Independent of the caih infows from
other ass=ts or groups of assets (@mih-genemating units)
Non-fimmneta| assets that suffered impairment are reviewed
for possible reversl of the impalrment at the end of each

An intangible asset is recopmised 1 it Is probabile that future
economit bemefits that are attributoble to the assst will

Aow to the Group and the cast of the as==t cn e measur=d
reliahly Intangible asset acquired separately are measured
at cost Toat includes sxpendiure that is direcly attetbutnhle
to the acquisition of an it=m of intangible assets Following
imitial recognition. ntangible assets are corrjed af cost [eas
accumulsted amortisstion and scoumulated impaitment
losnes, [Famy,
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Subsequent sxpenditure = apitalised anly when |t
ingreages the fiture acmmomic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to wich it relstes All othersxpendinire|s
recognised (o statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Derecognition

Intangihle a=ets are derecognised upon disposal or when
no futire economic beraflte are expected fromits use.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the as=et &=
recognised in statement of profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised.

Usefol economic lives and amortisation

The us=ful ecomomic e of an intangible asset s

cons{dered fnite where the right tosuch asset s limited tn
aspecified period of time by contrmct or by the likelithood

of technological ohsolesr=nce Intangibls assste with finkte
lives ate amaortised using the straight-line method 1o writs
down the cost over its estimated ueefu| econnmic lives and s
recognised in statement of profit or loss

Capitalized software and websites are amortized overa
perind of fiveyears. a5 estimated by the management.

The amortisation methad, us=hi| lives and esidual values
are reviewed at the #nd of each frmndial year and adjusted
APpTOPTELE.

Impairment

At each statement of financial positon date. these asset=ars
assez==d for indication of impairment. Inthe event thatan
ass=t’s carrying amoimt being evceads than its egremble
amount the assets are considersd to be impaired and are
written down immediately,

1.5 Non-Current Assets held for sale

Mon current asssts are classified agheld for sale if the
carrying amournt will be recovered by the Group prinetpally
through 2 sale transaction rather than through continning
usa This conditon [s consldered to be met only when the
ass=t [savailnhle for immediate slein li= present condision
anad the sale = highly probahle

Mon current asset clnz=ified as held for sale are mensured
at the lower of the carrying amount and fatrvalue [es
costs o 52l Impairment loss is reoggnived for any imitalar
subsmeqitent write down of the asset to fair valus |ess costs
tn s=11. Gain due to any subsegiient increases |n fair wlue
less costs to sell of anasset is recognised, but riptin excess
of any cumulative impainment loss previously recognised.
& gain or loss not previously eeognised by the date af the

sale of such non-curtent assets is recognised at the dat= of
de-rempnitiomn

financial liabilities

Tinancial szsets and finoneial Habilities are recopnis=d whan
the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of
the relevant Instrument and are initinlly measured atit=
fairvalue plus ar minus, in the co== of financal axsets or
Hahilities notat fir value through profit or loss. trmsaction
coats that are directiy attriburahle (o the acquisition or issue
of fimaneial sssets and financal iabilitles.

Classificati
The Cmup dassifies its Aimmcsl asset= in the following

measurement ctegories:

= thosetn be measured subsequently at fair value (either
throirgh other comprehensive meome. of throush profi
arloss), and

s thosemessnred at amortsed cost

The clas=ification depends an the Groups husiness model
for marnmging the fimancial asset= and the contractnal terms
of the cach Bows

Tor assets measured ot fair value gains and lossesare
gither recorded ina statement of profit orloss or other
comprehensie inemme.

The Sreup reclassifies financal assets when and only when
it= busins== model for managing those sssetschanges

a Financial assets

Timancial assets include adwmess, trade recetvables and
cash or cash equivalents and otherbank balances Such
ausets gre iniially recognized at tmnsactinn price when

the Group becomes party (o aontractmal obligations The
transaction price includes tmmsaction cost=unless the ass=t
is being measured at fairvalue through statement of prafit
orloss and ogther mmprebensive income.

Timanrial azsets are subsequently messured at amartised
cost, fairvalue through other comprebensive income or
fEirvalue threnghpmofit or loss on the basis of both {a) the
entity’s birsiness model for manngmg the fimncial assets
and (b) the contrartual eash fliow chammsteristies of the
financial aecet
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Financial assets areclassified 7= those

i Measured at amortised cost.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost, {f it {sheld
salely fir collection of cash flows arising from payments of
principal and interest. '

Advances, trade receivables and eash or cash equivalents
and gther ek balanres are classified formessurement at
amortised oost

ii. Measured at fair value through sther comprehensive
income (FVOCT)

& financial assetis measured at VOO, if itis held with

an ohjective o cllect contractual eash fows and selling
such financial asset and the contractual each flows are
solely payments of principal and intersst an the principal
outstanding, It = subssquently measured at fair wlis
with fairvalue movements recognised inthe other
comprehensive income (OC]), except for the ecognitionof
impairment gains or losses, interest revenes and forsign
exrhangs gains and lesses which are recognised inoprofit
orloss When the firancial asset {5 derecognised the
cummnilative gain or los previmsly eoeniced In S0 s
rectassified from equity to profit or Joss md recognised in
othergains or les=es Interest income from these finomncial
ass=ts |sincluded in other non opesting neome nsing the
effective interest mathod '

iii. Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
Assets that do ot meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCTare measred at fair value throogh profitar foss.
Interest income or forelgn exclunge gains or loss from theke
finanial assets |sincluded in other opeating income

Impairment of financiai asseis

The Group asssss=s at each reporting datewhethera
Hrnanrial ss=et (or 2 groip of inoncial sssets) held at
amortised cost and Ananeinl sssets thatare measared at fair
value throngh other comprehensive income are impaired
based on evidence orinformation that i ailablewithoot
undie cant or effort. Cepected credit losses are asses=ed
and lo allowances is recognised if the credit qualliy of the
finaricial asset has deteriorated significantly since initial
recognition Losses arising from impatrment are recognised
in the statement of profit or los=

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial asssts are derecognissd when the rght o
receive cash flows [rom the n=ets hos sxpired, ar has besn
transferred, and the Group hias tmnsferred substantially all
of the risks and rewards of oymership.

Interest income is recognised in the consolldated sistement
of profit or loss using the effective interest method

b.E ljlllﬂall' -.

Borrowings, trade payables and other finenem Habilities are
imitially recognized at the value of the respective contractual
obligations They are subsequently measured at amoriised
cost. Any distount of premium on redemption [ settlement
i= recognis=d in the siatement of profit or loss as finane
cost over thelifs of the lability using the effective interest
methed and adjusted to the lmbility figure disclosad in the
statement of fimamerml position.

Tinancial lizhilities are derecognired when the Hobilitg s
extinguithed, that ls, when the contmonal obligation is
discharged eame=lled or evpired.

Tinancial szsets and finoneinl linbilities are offest. and the
et pErant |5 reported nthe ststement of financial posision
if there is a onrently enforceahle Jegal right tn ofs=t the
recognised amounts and there [s an intention to ==tile an
anet basis, to realise the azsets and s=ttls the lahilines

17 Inventories

Imeentories are siated at the lowsr of costand net malimble
value Cost of inventories is detsrmined on first-in frst-
out (FITO) basis. Cost compris=s all casts of purchase. cost
of version and ather costs inourred in bmnsmg the
imentoriss to their present lomtion and condition. Net
realizable value represents the sstimated selling price for
imentoriss less all ectimated msts of ompletion and cost=
necessary o makethasale

Raw mmteral, packaping msterals and boitles stores and

spares:

Costinrindes enst of purchase and other cost mrnmred
in brmging the inventories in their present location and
conditions

Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and
proportion of manufsciuring overheads based onthe
normal opeating capacity i excludes deprecmtion on
plant and mackinery.

Costinrindes enst of purchase and other assst= (nrnrred
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in bringing the inverdoriss (o their present loration and
comaditinm.

1.8 Trade and other receivables

Trade recervables are amount due from customers for
goods sold or servires performed in the ortinary course
of buzin==s These are clazsified a5 carrent ns=ets (f
collection is sxpected within twelee months after the
reporting period. Where the collection s expecied
after twelve months after the reporting perind, they o=
presenied asnon-cumentassets

1.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Far the purposs of presentation in the siatement of ash
Aows. cash and cash equivalents includes eash inhand.
balances with banks that are readily convertible and
Hixed deposttwith original maturiy of lessthan 3 months
to lnown amomts of cash and which are subjecdt to an
insipnifirant risk of changes n value

Bank gierdrafts that form an integml part of the Groop's
cach mummgement are inchuled as s component of cazh
and cazh equivalent for the purpose of the satement of
cash flow=s

110 Gther Bank Balances

Other bank balances include hank deposits with an
original maturity af less than 12 months but more than
2 months, Bank balances on corrent se=ounts towards

Borrmwings are initially recommized at fair value et of
transaction osts incurred . Barrowings are subsequently
measured ot amaortised cost Any difference between the
pracesds (net of transaction costs) and the repayable
amount is eopgni=ed in smtement of profit or joss over
the period of the borrowings using the efective intersst
method

112Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Groop priafr to the end of firancis! year
usirally paid as per credit period. Tmde and other parablies
are presented as coment labilissunless payment lsnot
duswithin 12 manths after the reporting pesind They are

recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently
measimed atamartsed oost using the effertive mterest
m=thng

113 Revenue

Bevenue = measured at the fairvalie of the comsidemtion
received or recsivable net of returns, discounts and

value idded taves Revenue from the sale of productsis
recognised at a pomnt o tmewhen contro| of the products
ix transferred to the cosomer and ther= s nounfulfilled
ohlization that could affect the custimer's sccepitance

of the produc= The groas revenue of the Groupincdudes
ecize duty bt mecludes value addad toy (VAT] collerted
an the behalf of the govermment and net revenue sxchides
duties collected an the behinlf of the sovermment.

Sale of producis

Revenue from sale of prodortsis recognized at the
paint of tims when the significant risks and reward of
ownershp of the preducts has been tmnsferr=d to the
ciistomser, usnally on delivery of the produrts and thera is
no unfulfiled ohligation that could affect the customers’
arceptanr= of the produrts Net Revenue from saleof
produrt s mesmred ot the smant of trenssction price,
net of returns and allowances, discounts and valus added
i {VAT),

Royalty income

The Group provides a license to manuficire i product
in exchmnge for a ropalty fee which s based on sal=s made
to the rustomers. Royalty income s recognised in terms
of the respeciive contmacts uyponsale of products by the
{mnchisess

Interest Income

Interest income fom {nancial assetsis recognized when
itis probable that the economic benafits will fow to

the Group and the smount of income can be m=asured
reliably, Interest ineome 15 Included under the head "non
operating inrome 0 the statement of profit orloss,

Rental income
Policy for recognition of evente from opersting leass s
despribed innote 114,

114 Leases

Leases are classified as finonce l=ase whensver the terms
of the lenss tmansfer substantially all the rishs and rewards
of ownership to the lesses. All ather leases are classifisd

s operEing leases
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Group aslessor

Bental income from opemting lease is recognised an
sizaight - line basts over the t=rm of the relevant leaseunless
the receipts are stmctured = increase in line with expac=d
general inflation to ompensate for theles=r's sqpect=d

Group aslesses

The Group, asa lesses, recognizes a right of use as==t
and z lease lmbllity for its leasing armngements, a5 the
eomitrarct conveys the tight to control the use of an |dentifisd
as==t The contract canveys the right to canirol the us=of
anldentifled gmget, gz it involves the uss of an identified
as==t and the Group has substantially all of the sconomic
beniefits fram use of the asset and has right to direct the
usa of the identified as=et The cost of the night of use a=et
shall comprise of the amount of the |nitial measurement
of the Ieage liability adjusted for any les=s payments mads
at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct
costsincurred. The rght-of-use asets = subsequently
measured at cost less any acoumulated depreciation,
amumnlated impEinment losses, Fany and adjosted for
any remeasimement of the legs= linhility, The right-of use
assets |5 depreciated nemg the straight -linemethnd from
the commencement date gver the shorter of lease termoor
us=ful life of right-of-use ass=t. The Gioup measures the
lea=zetinhility at the present value of the |ease payments
that ar=not paid at the commencement datz of the |ease
The lagse paymenis are discountad using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, (Fthat mte can be readily determined.
if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Groupuses
an incremental barrowing rate_For shart-term and low
value [eases the Group recognizes the |ease paymentsas an
opeTating expenss on a systematic hasis gver the lease term

In addition, the carrying amount of the 1eas= liability is
remeasured {f thers s modification; a clange in leass term,
arhangein lease paymenis in caze of sy terminastn

of thelease, the Group derecoonize |ease Hability and

BOU Assets to reflect the full termination of the lease and
recognize gain and loss on the termination of the |eas= in
profitand ipss arecime.

115 Foreign currency transactions

Forsign currency transactions are transkated Into the
bmetiomal corrency using the srhanges rates at the dare
of the transactinns Forsign=xchangs gains and losses
from the translstion of monetary ss=ets and labilites
denipminated inforeign comencies at year e Schangs
rates are Tecognised o statement of profit or loss

116 Employee benefits

a. Short-term ohligations

Expenses in respect of shart-term benefits are recognised
on the basis of the amoamt peid or paysble donnes which
services are rendered by the employees Liabilities for salary
and sllgwances that ave expected to be settleq wholly within
tweive months after the end of the fipancia! year inwhich
the emplovees render the related seryices are recognised in
respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
penod and ore measored ot the amounts expected to be paid
when the linbilivies are settled.

b. Defined contribution plan

These are plans m which the Group pays pre-defined
amonnts to publicly administered fonds as perlocal
regulations and does not have any legal or informal
oblisation to pay additional sums, These comprise

of contribations to the serial security fund with the
eovernment on account of provident fund sooal secoernty
fund and gratuity, The Groups payments to the defined
contrbution plans are recopnised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due.

117 Barrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are direct|y atrdbumble to the
acquisition, constructon or production of & qualifying asset
are rapitalised dunne the penod of time that |s required

to complete and prepare the asset forits intended vse or
sale, Cnmlifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of Hme to get ready for their mtended use
o sale,

All other bormowing costs are recognised in g statement of
prefitor loss in the period in which they are mcarred.

118 Income tax

Income tex comprises of corent mxand defermed tax.
Current tax i the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehenaive income is provided as the amount of tax
payabie in respect of taxahle mcome for the period using
tox rates and tax lows applicable during the period, together
with any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years

Deferred income @xis provided in fill using the liability
method, on temporery differences arsing between the tax
bases of assets and labilities and their carmying amounts in
the financial statements, Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates that have been enacied or substantially
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emanted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply wher the related defered incoms tax
ass=t [= realized or the deferred income tax liability is
settled

temporary differences and unosed oy |esses anly if 2 s
prohable that the future mable smounts will be sailable
o utilise those temporary differences and lnsses

Deferred taxassets and labilivies are offset when thers is
alsgally enforceable rght to offset coment tax ass=ts and
tiakilities, Current tax assets and tax liahiliti=s are affs=t
where the entity has a legally enforceasble risht o offset
and mtends either to seitle ona net hasic or to realiss the

Income tax, in 5o faras it relates o tems dsclosad under
other comprehensive incoime or equity, are discloned
sepamtely nndesr other comprehensive ncome or equity,
asapplicable

119 Dividend distribution

Dividends paid are tecognised in the pericd inwhich the
interim dividends are approved by the board of directors
orin respect of the final dividend when approved by
shuimahnlders

1.20 Earnings per share

Easic esnings per share s clonlated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to erdinary sharehalders of the
Grewip by welphted average number of ordinary shares
out=tanding during the financisl year, adjusted for bonus
elements |0 equity shares issied durinog thepear

b. Diluted earnings per share

Diluted eamings per share is determined by adjusting
the profit or foss atribatable to erdinary shareholdecs
and the weighted svemage number of ordinary shares
out=tanding for the effects of all ditutive potential
ordinary shares, which comprise of shars options
granted on comvertible preference shares, debentures
or = employess Smee_ the Group does noy have any
comwertible instrument and has not granted any options
o |5 employees, difuted eamnings per shareis comsidered
the snme as basic earnings per shars

The Group is engaged in the business of manufacture
and sale of Hguor The sxpcotive committes of the Group
(being the chief operating decision maker) assesses
performance and allocates resources for the business

of the Group as awhale and hence the management
considers Group s business activities as a single
pperating segmentand no segment disclosures have
beenmare in these financial statements

122 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group hasa present
legal or constructive obhliootion as a result of past events,
and it is probable that an cutfow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. The camrying amounts of provisions
are reviewed at sach date of stotement of financim|
position and adjunsted to reflect the current best estimate.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
management s best estimate of the expendinme required
to seitle the present cblization at the end of the reporting
penind

A disrigsure for contingent liabilitles is made whers

there is a possible oblization or 2 present ebligation that
may probably not reguire an outflow of resources or

an pbipation for which the future cuteome carmot be
ascertained with reasonable certainty, When there isa
possible or a present obligation where the Hkelihopd of
outflow of resources is remote, nio provision or disclosure
is mmde.

2.USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The prepamation of financisl statements m conformity
with NFRS requires management o make judgements
estimates and assomptions that affect the application

of the accoumting policies and the reported amoeunts of
assets and linhilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and fHabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reporied amounts of Tevenues and expenses during
the year Acmal results could differ from those estimates.
The estimates and cndedying assumptions are reviewed
o0 an ongong basis Revisions o accountins estimates
are recogmsed in the peniod in which the estimate s
revised if the revision affects anly that period, they

are recogmised inthe penod of the revision and forgre
peninds if the revision affects both cirrent and foture
pernds.



FINAMTIAL FTATEMINTSE

The followings are the key asmmptions concerming the
future, and ather b=y =ninres of extimation (\meeT@iny at
the end of the reporting perind that mmy have a significant
risk af causing 3 material sdjustment to the caTying
amounts of assets and linbilities within the n=xt financial
year

a.Usefullives of property, plant and equipment

As described in the significant accounting policiss, the
Orrip revisws the estimated nseful lives of property, plamt
and equipment and intangible as==t= at the end of each
reporting period.

b Leases

The Group determiness the leace term as non-cncallable
term of the l=ase, together with any peneds covered by an
option to extend the lezse if it is reasonably ceriain 10 be
exercised, or any periods cowvered by an option to termimte
the lea=e, ([t = reasomably cerminnogt to be everrized The
Grewip applies fudgement mnd considers all relewmnt Bctors
that creats an econmmme inrentive in ewliating wherher
itis reaszmably certain o exervise the option /o Tensw or
termirmte the lease Aftar the commencement date. tha
Orrp reassess thelease termif there is a significrant ewent
or clangsin cicumstances that iswithin {t= control and
affectsits ability to esemize or not to sxercize the aption o
rensw or terminate The Sroup cinnagt readily determine
the interest mteimplicit in the Jease. therefore, ituses

its Imeremental borrowing rate ([BR) o measure lease
labilities Th= IBR is thetate of interest that the Group
would have topay to bormow over a similar term, and with a
similar s=cnrity, the funds necessary to olsimin anassetafa
similar value @ theright-a0f- 3= aseet ma amilar sconomic
environment The IBR requires estimate when no observable
rates are avallable orwhen they nead to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lesse. The Group estimmmtes
the [ARE wsing nheerrable inputs {(such a5 marketinterest
rates), when availahle and makes entity-specific estimates,
wherever required.

Signifirant management judeement is required 1o
determins the amonnts of tax contingenoies and provisions,
including amount sxpected to be pald feroverad for

Investments carried at cost and non-financal assets
such ax property, plant and eguipment are smlimted for
recoverability whensver svents ar changes in drumsiances

indicatethat their carrying amounts mmy 7ot be reeovwerable.
A signifirant manssement jodgement s required ©
determitne the recoverahle amonniand the impairment Inss,
if amy,

The meastirement of sxsperted areditloss reflectsa
probability-weightsd outrome, the time wlue of monsy
amnd the best avallable forward-looking informetion. The
correlation between histarical observed defanlt mies,
forecast eronomic conditions and sspecied creditloss s

a significnt estimate The amount afexpected credit less
iz sen=itive to changes in cdeumstancss and forecasted
economit conditions The Group’s historol credit loss
experience and forecast ofemnomic conditions may not be
representative of the actual default in the future The Group
has not provided any provision for expected credit lesson
trade rersivahles
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS,

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 5 RIGHT TOUSE ASSETS  rocthievedr cno Achiad 20 200 (faly 18 2ooa)
GROUP
COST

FASTITHLARS CPENING ARNTIDES WITHDRAWALS AL AT ASHAD T 360

BALAMCE AMD ANTUSTMENTS (LY 1A 2 ETE
T4 Property, plant and squipment
Frochals! lansls T7915586 Z1500L000 63415506
Licubhipled Lmpavace nenls AFFOEEF A 70557
Buildings 202558539 1Azl 2084842 rivyder ® vl
Cofsmilin 8300045 5572535 154,673 13,697 EOB
Office by MDA 3247 26T AMFITZ W O66R 515
Elecerical {nstallaiinns 262572050 497447 6 A F6A73057
Fuurtiitiie and falbiires 1752015 3025457 257513
Vihiclen 15096838 20534074 4683507 3L237166
Pleret sanet rrspedrirnery BG5S IHT TrBIEdG ZOEA 3 1514571
Other Aueals 197780 132060 A7II 2061539
Tolal 1215 813,979 72175504 125597532 123133981
38. Capital work-in-progress 34743 3131395811 311.430.554
3C Intanglble assets
Brand Soflwars 1000060 10000
Mimble TME Sofiwre 500 FE000 75000
HDL Servst Soflwaro 240000 20000
HOEL Websile AW 560 G500
B [P Flrewall Livenss 200000 S00000
ERP SOl lwate TAT1A38 24T 438
Fined Azent Shiflwsame 100,000 180000
Total 3790538 315,000 - 4105538
30 Right 1o Use Assets 6073374 1242615 16383 18489206
CONSOLIDATED NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS,
INTANGIBLE ASSETS & RIGHT TO USE ASSETS 1o ot akad o i [y 10 oo

ChuE
COST

PARTICULARS OPEMING ADOITIORS WITRDRAWALS AS AT ASHAD T3 3079

BALANCE ANT ADJUTSTHMENTS IV 16, 3T
24 Property, plant and equipment
Erecdiold lenids 479155086 ST 550G
Buuifding I9EATOAEE A23H 130 02658599
Crumputars TE31LE3 13279 379 2305545
Office i 13500320 SITT0E u0Ems
Electrical {nslafiarlang 2495635 1325674 26292050
Frroikire and fxlires 3IBE OIS 47000 3332015
Vichizdes 19908326 LHB3NE 5,557,169 N 026,398
Pland amd machineey FEIANLIA0 2183 116238 96315167
Othir Ashels 1934 760 a1p00 1560
Total 1211,073 664 12088271 7347556 1.215. 8135979
3B Capital work-in-progress - 34,743 - 34743
3C Intanglble assets
Erajid Sollware 100000 {ooooo
HDL Wohsiie 319,500 319,500
BIG T Firewall Lirssge BO0O00 BORT00
ERF Saltwure TA71438 2471418
Fivesl Aseil Shftiwane 100000 {oooon
Total ‘3 4TLAIE 319,500 . 3790938
30 Right to Use Assets 14,734 528 - 8,655,454 6,079,371

B STHALT A (RIS LIMTE
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Lrmpip nf = e

I]'EHEE.&]'- ; .I-DPI

CAORTINEC AMOTINT
CFERING TOW THE ¥E&8 ONWITEDRAWALS =~ TFTOASHADTL 705  ASATASHADILI0BD AS AT ASHUED JZ.Z07H
BALANLUE AMD ADTUSTHMERTS (TULY 18, 3007) ULy 1A 2E runy s 0=
69416556 ATIE506
. An g3 A0 47374527
9BSAR Y TTIRITT LageFN 104 B461T 97.398051 TR E
rac B L) LIF4.516 R4 664 6,249,333 T EATS 3050 AGA
551530 1630953 3199734 8843458 STEOAN 3066107
HEETI2AST Bl a5t 261 450 21657389 & 205065 55u0 507
ZHTH07 13824 FUISIEE 3397955 #aLp08
H3L72L533 2176726 AEETE0L TFNEST 23522308 9.874.965
SR ATLS 3GAELIES LeEnoav GOTO4ATET I AGTI00 I EH60
199g 813 EAa7 Trnn LBO3 140 1= 300 I|EAE
T2 911 464 50,040,738 n708185 FEL244,006 521095814 452 902,512
- - - - 311,430,554 34743
FEEEE] Sanan 1 1
1DEE LoeR FEO9D
16,438 15433 273562 _
res 22300 BATTS 755475 31325
6037 800G T0AT? AFOSED EIOSER
2471453 2471433 4 5
524630 20,000 TE.R30 7310 47370
2734674 261406 = 3,045,081 mﬂﬁ? Lm-ﬂ_
33963135 L890.5963 5,854,098 12635108 2116239
DEFSECIATION CABSVIMG AMOUNT
OFEMING OB THE YIAR 0N WITHDIAWALS UPTOASHAD 32 W0/ AS AT ASHADEE 2079 AS AT ASIAD 31 2078
BATANTE AND ADTHETHENTS (LY 16 2008 (NIEY I, 30230 LY 15, FE0
47915506 7915506
30,364,575 BIE3.BAT SHEBIE 10911377 plag-aapni |
5181757 751310 STATIT 5059481 2050465 2445756
3502504 1345425 10551250 3085108 1896295
13097 15T 73as POFRAS L Loa ooy LESEERT
258158 128819 2T7ET 007 445,008 LIEBST
EE e sl E) 25575 TIOSTES bl o A7 555 EAUETEA
536546 655 35 517605 20747 SPATI SN FT2 801,644 306 GEA.E0E
102066 ADAG 1835019 smE39 15
B79,299,300 A9 EDZ 4592 5990328 T22.911.464 492,902,515 SILTTA. 364
R B R 34,743 -
EEERE] gagan 1 1
175 175 319375
a7 1T EOAT? £35563 TIG 56T
2471493 2AHAT 4 4
2ea0 20500 230 a7 &7370
2,604,500 180175 - 2,784,674 1,006 263 866,938
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NOUTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS ,
INTANGIBLE ASSETS & RIGHT TO USE ASSETS o rtho v coitot achiad 00 0001 (uly 16 20

oSt

THRTICULATS (523w ACFITITES WITHDRAWALS AS AT ASIAD T, JOEL

HRLANTE AND ADIUSTMINTS (ry 35 24
3A Property, piant and squipment
Freehold lands 13 624,813 2 2060 35539 40BN
Lessebipld tipipitnestivsils 4TSS AITO 5
Busildings 203 656,530 LETO AR 208, B2 207244 178
Cotmpuiers F20954% L E7Z5E% B4.673 neorEs
Office sguipinel 1Mo1Ea3e 796D 3152772 1M.DE6 528
Elartrical Tnstailag|ote 26392050 ATTANZ 316434 2RATIO5T
Furtlbire and fatires ESzed11Lg SO ATT 635753
Vhlole 15095 598 HEa07 4583807 S TIFIEE
Plard asi] rrnehinory 896 315,167 17783506 OB 003 11514971
Other fssole pLopice=il 132000 7821 el e ]
Total 1181577 386 77,846,595 13.797,991 1246131 890
38. Capital work-in-progress 34743 311395811 311,430,554
3C Intangible assets
frand Software 100000 100600
Miredile PMS Sollwire 5% =000 TR.000
HEL Sorven Soflvear 240000 290,000
HGL Wi = 1500 15500
BIG [P Flrewall Licogizn BODODO BOOOOD
ERF Software 2471438 2471438
Eiwee] Aseni Softwam w0600 100600
Total 3,790,938 315,000 - 4,105,938
30.Bight 1o Use Assets 50734 12 426215 16383 18485206
MOTES T0 THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS,
INTANGIBLE ASSETS & RIGHT TOUSE ASSETS  ror e your ended Ackiad 31 2080 (uly 16 2009

COMpLny
CO5T

DRNTICUIATT OPIMING ADDITIONT WITHDRANALS AS AT ASHAD 3] 200E]

BALANTT ANTT AD|UFISTHMLNTS {JLLY 15 50
2A. Property, plant and equipment
Eredtold Landls 13624813 13624813
Bulfrres HEATOAEE AT D Z2 B58.550
Coumpuliss Pl v | 13522391 TR0 B309345
Office cquipmanl 15,500,330 517708 14018038
Ehectrecal Tastallat e 12965375 135674 IETFION0
Fuirrlbiive snd Haiure IR GIS 4TO00 TIEIMY
Vehileled 19806326 1746342 655776 15096598
Plerret sawrd rrsactinary B23.a11 360 I EINGS NE3ES B96 35167
Oy Axsarts 1534780 41000 LF7STED
Total 1176782971 12.088 771 7347956 1181 523.285
B Capital work-in-progress - 34743 - 4743
T Assets
Brand Soflware 100000 100000
HEL Website 319500 5500
BIG [P Flrewall Licenen BOOO00 L SO0000
ERP Suflwars 2471438 AL 438
Fimeeed Asna Software 100000 100000
Tatal 3471438 N3500 - 3750938
D Right bo use assels 14734, 828 - B.605 454 5073374

150 STHALATEN FITHALST LMD
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Antollne iH fa

CANFTING AMTINT

TEFELIATION
TFEHING R THE TTAR N WITHDILAWALS WUFTU ASHAD XL 5200 AS ATASHAD T, JOEI AS AT ASHAD 31, TDEC
EXLANCE AND AIHUETMENTS (fULY 1S 2024) ey 35 24 | 16 03)
34208574 524 813
450835 45535 4300529
EEAE T2 FA2ET 1425971 104,846,127 97388051 A0A 0T
STEHARL L7451 164 664 5245353 TANEATS 2050485
105515930 2 3198734 E842490 SoFa3n AfsE102
M TATAST 12700 281480 ZLAGTSE9 A BOSOES 5558 597
78I PO 138,245 2925955 333756 4451108
1072 o013 2ATETE 4523601 TT4 857 FISIEI0A A F74 96
SFEATASIN 3661383 L8ETD3T &OTOATETD 304 457,101 TIIEALEM
1536912 TAqT AZE LEIZ1D i5EITE ImEae
722511454 50040737 11708195 Ta1.244,005 484,887,854 458,611,622
- - - - 311,430,554 34743
5555 gn995 1 1
1068 I0ER T3 AEE
5438 15442 ke v ]
75 3800 EA0TS Lot 7 Ima0s
160437 IB0o00 320437 ATHEET 639563
1470433 ZATIAD 4 4
frocd e ] oo 72530 270 47370
2,784 674 261,406 - 3,045,081 1.0593,857 1,006,263
3563135 LES0S6F 5,554,038 12635108 2163739
DEPRACIETION CARBVING RMOUNT
OrrMNG FOR THE TOAR O WITHOHAWALS DETD ASEHADR ] J0EL ASATASHAD N 2081 ASAT ASHATIZL 2080
EASANTE AHD ATTUSTHENTS (JUrLy i, 2aza) IFULY 15 550 {JILY 1 JOIS
1624817 13674 213
30364575 BAEEAT JE 545 T2 4 noET 18055854
=176 751500 SR £35845] 2050465 24875
0 R0 504 1348425 10951930 3065108 2BGEHTE
19109772 1622735 F07ITAT 5559532 ZEREHET
2E5E15E 175845 . ZTETOO a4L008 5¥6 557
135020432 2095575 5205 785 INF21933 4,870 865 G405 28
35 546565 IS SI7605 20747 ST2ATISES IEEILEM 26664 654
1530 865 4045 . 1936812 38340 1aa4
579,2959.300 A3 602,492 5990328 TELOTLAGA 458,611 522 AT7ABIETL
- = - - 34,743 -
32939 3599 1 1
s £ TS
437 160000 10477 £3B563 FARLES
2471433 2471433 C 4 4
2630 000 52530 LLEL] 7370
2,604,500 180,175 = 2784, 1006263 He6538
33257722 705413 - 2,053,135 2116239 11477106
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aseiniint i fis

EI-RIJ'IEIT" COMEANT

A% AT AREY A% 2T ATAT
ANMADTI 2081 ANMADTL Ju3n ANMAD T 2081 AEHATIIL 3650
DESCRIFTIONG (LY 15 2024 Ly 16,702 {10LY 15 22 (LY 3, 202

/2 INVESTMENTS

INVESTMENTS IN EDUITY INSTRUMENTS

ey subsedtinry (2] cost unless otharwise stated)
Hirmalayrs Fiahirles Lindivd E1LAGDONG f1106 000
{ BI1000 nod. sl urdinary shades of
Fi 3003 cach fully paed op)

Himalayan Mulil Ao Limisd

{500,000 nos. of ordinary sheres of Re. 100 each 20000000 20000000
o a0 pald up)
Total Lo MHL000 L MO 00
5 ADIVANCE FOR INVESIMENT R
Aabvariew fnp frivetirmenl (o Bl Mults Agre 1o 10000000
(500000 nos of ondinary shanes of BS 100 such '
R 20 advarme for sham)
Tolal 10,000,800
HON-CURBENT
Audvance-for propaty, plant snd st £166.582 SI60,317 G166.582 S0
Pepivsis witl statitery suthariles - for appisk 37548142 37548142 7SAB42 IFSATHT
Total 437 724 42 809 060 43714724 a2 809060
CUERENT
Advanice for godids anl setvlces 147250 3E483F7 1447250 AGAE T
Emgloyes advances rlab] 532248 rlsbi ] £Fi348
Atvarie with statulery sulbostie TAEETIg 55T FAEBAD &5 AN IEE
TFripuid expents T4RI6E 3 HISTE6 TORBI6E 3BISTIE
Githirs 411555 ETUOE AL ol 29935 ga7
Trital ETATRI 8BS 554 50 EET2 N 3782335
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aseiniint b fis

_sroup == comeany
AN AT AL AT AN AT AZ AT
AEMADTY 2081 ANHADT] J0AT ASHADTY 2081 AEMAD 1L T080
OESTRIFTING [IULY IS =02 oy L, T {MILY 15 =02 TTOLY da, #2127)
£ INVENTORIES
Al lowwer pf coa sl gl pualishle valjs
Faw materialy E vt 104632 054 10227 est 14 532054
Favkite and ather matedaly 1506768 7= 358419 &1505 768 5355419
Seen! finlshud ot BT 6L 41306531 28382464 41306 £31
Finlstusl gesuils ES35a10 534710 535910 1534717
Slores and consymables EET4200 22 379531 25634200 I73E
Promotiomal meterals 3 4TETIA e 262 345874 ATRTEE
Total I ISS0ET 44724251 FERISEIET AFT228 1
&8 TRADE RECEIVARI FS
Unseoured, commidired ool 215303 LE62 17,573 215303 1982 17e573
Total 215303 1962 76,573 215303 15621T6,573
779 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Canh o tnd STI63 23166 5555 BIS5H
Bularres with bunbe
Inpsurrent scepunls 1A000Z 958 ATODIELGE 1F35M7. 370 469,509,355
Total 1200,060321 ATRIDETT3 LTI 07 IS5 AG3 591 315
S/10.OTHER BANK BALANCES
Fioed Berposiiswih banks 1LO0C00aE00 75000000 LODO000000 73000000
Diyicdermd ferour yrith banks 1456007 1456007
Total L0000 00 TB 456007 100000000 T AS5007
L OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
larpin depnsil 5E3IBTSE 1559287 5EINTHE I SERTHT
Sunifry dopetin, BREITH7 EFIEOL BSE7787 823201
Foswatd Conlrac THOET TaoET
Total 14 48R RIZ 4392 488 1 488 RIZ 4,392 488
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T S

f=alt CTMPANY
A5 AT AS AT AS AT ASAT
ASEHAL T, 2081 ASHAT ¥l IGE0 ASEHAL T 20 ASHATD 31 500
LESTHIFTICNT iy ps Fngal iy w8 Foo'y Ly 18 Fngdd [ty pe, o
10/1Z. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized
(03081 230000000 nee of ondinary shams 350000000 2560000000 SO0C00E 000 2500000000
of B= 100 eaxch)
L0750 - 25000000 o, of protenary shismd
of Bx 100 eash)
(Z080-81: 7673573315 new of oovdineery harey JETERIEIIG 2ATISEE550 572533315 2425560650
af s 100 =ach)
(207980 34.295 66650 nos of oodivary stanes
of B= 100 eaxch)
Subscribed and paid up
[20B0-81: 26735 73315 mwm oF ondlinzsy ikarei ERTAE23IINS ZAX0EEEE50 ERTAE23IINS 2A20EEE 6L
of s, 100 wach)
(20798024 795666 50 nos of Grdinary slhures
of Az, 100 mmah)
Totzi ZEFL AT 179 566,650 ZEFLEZITIS ZAZR 566050
& Fresne Tt aof pomber of shases oulstanding
Al thee beslining of the year U5 ESES0 1516479154 24 FUEEER G =104 791 =5
it buirie preves] durieg U poar
A boaus shires fssod dering b o 2429 56RE5 B1I0HF49 242956665 S1IOETIS4
Atthe and of the year 2672523315 24295 GEE 50 26725 23315 24295 66650

b. Rights, preference and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has one class of equity shares having 3 face value of Bs. 100 per share. Each holder of the equity shares s entitled
tn one yote per share: The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholdersin the
enmung annual peneral meetng. ewept in the case of ntenm dividend,
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T R
CEnuE COMPANY
AL KT ASAT KE AT AS AT
ASHA T 2T ASFIAD ¥ FE0 ASHA T1 2T ASHAD 31 Ed
OESTEFTICRS Ly T Pl (i 8 Fro LAy IL =] Uy e 2ol
11/13 RESERVES AND SURFLUS
12/14 BEORROWINGS
NON-CURRENT
Drue Lo barks
Term oy
Lese eurrenl mastaribies of e e
Total - - - -
CURRENT
Due to binks
Sherrt wrms and dermared loan
Eznloverdrafl
Currient pasturitlees of lermm boan
ol i i i i
13/15. LEASE PAYAHLES
NON-CUREENT
Lzl Fayaliles HEEEETT 2 471,084 BEEESTT 2421084
Lz enerpen ] mastoeites of boase payabde {1281 373} (6TEZET (1281373 (578.257)
Total 12405204 1742797 12405204 17427197
CUBRRENT
Currest paurikles of lease payabilies L2B1 T3 GTBZE7 1281373 &I5.297
e R
CEOUP COMPANY
AL KT ASAT K5 AT AS AT
ASHA 11 2T ASHAD 31, 30650 ASHA T 2001 ASHAD 31 Ed
DESTERFTIONS [ty 18 Eredl [JLILY 1. ) LY 18 v LY 18, oz
14/16. DEFERRED TAX LIARILITIES (NET
“Deferred tax abilitle:
On prmperty, pant snd soupmesd L5544 2555402 3115594 IF 9 AL
Ot Fight (o despts 32853 539641 353 530641
gt Fopeaird Contran EE7 et
34,355,364 33536043 34,355,364 33536043
Peforrod tex aemaes
O Derdvative Fhsancil Lishilily 45480 45480
DOt eorgiewepie woctal ot iy L7315 1y = ] LEFE IS 3095379
O Lease [ iability JAS00TF = e JAS0DOTF erITe
541,872 3715705 541872 3715705
Tutal 208,947.452 29572 138 285487407 2952 i
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MOVEMENT IN DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES / (ASSETS) BALANCES

= Forthe yeor oo Aahad 35 204 (july 35 2004
' et T S

’ _cEour 2 - _ COMPANT I
Dpankng Recognissd in Eecoptiized Cloesng Dpbrabtig Becogrimd it FevoEnt e Chesing
mlatnrs geradir oy beay ImQce Lolavies Balanes gl o loss inoo Balanes

Deferred tax lizbilities
Onpropsrty, plent ond equipment 329596 A07 (1 #a0.058) - SIS EAd 32996402 (LasEcn) - B1inzad
O rigit o s Ass=ts DT 2EE I 2 ey 539644 2552912 ekl ]
O Forused Contriet . 11867 nasr . 17.0ET Iaa7

Deferred tax {sseets)
O Doty Fiiemriin) Lty - {45480) . (&5400) - (45480} - (&)
{in conporte soci| responsinnty (309632 1220074 - NEE35E) | (a3 1LI00H - A
n Imise Lty [E17378) [2a7a ) el T v [BI7376] (raviTo (24000077
Rl ) — e 2 P PP = =
Daferred tax abiiisies - Mat 29802 338 {g78.846) - IRMIAT2 255223 (576 44n] - 2043457
i Forthorpesl ended Schad 31, 2050 (Tody 16, 2023] P
Cpmaing. Recopniesd in Becomizan Closssg Opaniry] Reespalesdin g re Csing
[EETITS poallior e o olanre Lty rere profii o lnes Lioei bhalsnre

[ieferred tax mnlaities
Onproperty. plentand squipment 35518268 (2 521 g5E) . 3P YOE402  I5EIAIER {252 BERY - AZOTE A0
Onrittes Asets DO LR 37001 Ee DTl M LA Gamron) 525 641

Deforred tax (zssets)
Cim Depmtive Finsrerind Fahitig (i ron ol - - {2 Yy . :
On corporsts skl Ieporsiiaty (A752585) {342.744) - @o9sE)  (27Sases) (342744) - (39309
i Lease Liztiliny Eonms) ZHBHES [T Fe)  (Ernpeg) 2503863 (6I7.F6)
Toial deferred tax {assots) (6,047 415 X330 - (3713705)  (6.047415) 2333710 - ETMEI0s)
Deferred tax |ishiliies - Mot LTI 5L RS e - 2060 T D ITSS s yry) - MU
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CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AerETnnt i R
sroUP. COMEANT
AS AT AS AT AS AT A3 AT
AEMAD T 208 ANHADT] J0AT ASMADTY 2081 AZHAD 3L I080
OESTRIFTING [TULY IS =02 ey L, T {IMILY 15 =02 oLy da, #2127)
15/17 THADE PAVARLES
Trade payables for goods and services 30675488 15303794 30673445 15303794
Toial IN6F 488 15303794 30639488 115,303,794
16/18. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABIIITIES
CURRENT
Favahle for propecty, plant and equipment 45 240m4 IIEETT 4574004 3396577
Frmmlyioe bonefits pemhln 297116 ELirer) FEAIE HOTFIT
Payabile o provident dod olber fumls 2ighdes 2051 BR3 Menang 2051863
s E306146 3104437 ES0LISH 3055733
Tofal ToS2E RS BH.570,609 62T Ha5EA0
17/19. OTHER LIARILITIES
CURRENT
Adlvance cobletvel from costnrme s 30 5FE T4 o8 snaga i Masay
Stanuory dues AT 4 748 &G4 A2B9.770 ATASER4
Ernploveii' b b LT3 el 99337 485 b Ll el 95337485
‘Sl Wellisne Py Lt | e 197LEE S v
Uripai divideod 36430088 iy = 356430088 EIsE3
Corporate socml resgonsitnlity 7358099 12 12466 7358099 A2 66
Tutal 136160693 143461 502 136157397 143461802
Frovision far income tuc BOZAITS 20655503 BOZIITS FHO5=5503.
e adeants Lie (12%134.326) {726 6R5.7A0) (12E134 326 (¥2EEE3740)
Total 1135753 1365763 1135753 3368763
Lol =aley AIFEAATIE 5579976968 AT EAT T2 5,570, 975,960
Expor] sales
Ruyally litome 17553662 ¥ BEL R0 17553662 76 561030
Total 4155 236 593 5654,787,998 A 155336 573 S G54 TE D9
2Tz COST OF GOOBS SA1D
Faw misterrialy eorbumnd IILE54 FEE S9S3E047E IILEEA TEE 595335 428
Pk snd auxiifary materals consurmued TS 445365573 EHETY 45 5EETTT
Purchmse of Swcl- in- irade
Crrst of riew rrusteria] sold 2073796 199 0737960 BLIZA 94
Chyianpye in serrmi Sindshiedd poods and finbahed podds
Opening stock
Spprs finstued goods 1306593 4716644 11306831 (AL
Finishad poaiks 153471123 100560474 153471123 HIOIEAATE
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SUTREREE T

CEOUP COMPANY
AS AT ATRY AS AT AS AT
ASFLAD TT 261 ASFIAD T I0L ASHFAD TT 2081 ASHAD 11 PO#ED
CESTmEETI0NS LULY 15 (UL 1. 2 L 16 vl (TURLY 46, 2020
Closing stnck
S nizhed goods 283424064 A0RET] 28,342 4548 45206832
Finishisd granils 13595510 153471199 13595510 Lol
132338374 194,677,354 192338374 194,677,954
Total change in permi finished gouds snd finished poods EZITU5E0 {B2.796,834) 623580 (29796, 534)
Tolal TI081 0289 1032 029 BE1 TI051.029 L0352 029.08%
Power 2nd fuel 8160507 s7EET 6160507 2 EEATL
Blemtivgz and it Cation charpis BESEZ ST 121743626 BHESER T 1 EEG
Regiair-atil maintensnte HIFI7483 18512290 HI7453 18512 290
Wages aid sorvive chunses msealnd 215124657 m5RE00 FIETZAGT
Dther expenses LI5S Fr L B
Tots] 21157047 165,071 316 2IIST 0T 169021316
Salury amd allowances 114261305 17 554115 114261506 1284 s
Contnbudion tn providen: fund and social seounily fund BBASERD 10916535 ngAs a0 516,555
Siaff vl fars oupoane 4. 6DO120 426 K30 46090120 4236630
Earned lvave 41755 3791630 4197 nog 27630
Emgliyees bunus 3815657 8933746 SENSESF 86337485
Tl 10032598 II0.866,395 90,032,538 730865395
2325 ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER EXPENSES
Annual general siellng experises Areze 280345 AP EZE 26035
Regar and mainlenance £151524 7188579 E161E TIES ST
Affire expenies- 2782218 3502946 2750554 3800034
Travelling and conmeyznie A0ZT2T IG5 98 AOET24T IES3HI8
Charity s domationy 0355 1eroid 0358 b4 Higv
Corpomte socil responabl iy mope nee 350497 6,605,223 3E5GAET 6505738
AU fopy A55300 A9% 300 A5E.000 /D000
Fuil {74 800 3331 545 1174600 333154
Rites ol taves 585 555 TANBAE 2881 w7 TG
Tipwier 2t funeed G0F5.564 S371380 6035564 3373380
Mpelipte fee 1595000 LIETO00 1595000 LI&7O00
Coimituiiics Ui, postie and tourier kvl v 1577091 3EnEF 1954591
Printing and stativtery 579741 LT 579741 LT
Professmral fnes 3537433 5,556,460 35003 5542 A60
Traiting expeéndes BEE429 136842 BEEA20 136,847
Bueurily 2nd ather sivolie expenes AE726701 10766 Tl An7z6 701 Ll ol -
impnce = 337190 SI5e 4TS S 337190 5254478
Bank chamges 53530 190553 fids3m 1908577
Gibeegt el rimin el lag7a52 2088603 lag7a52 203RR03
Labarstory sl sample egpuenoes 114734 THEBES 14,754 FSEESS
Foreinn exciunge loss 27487 396108 22557 39109
Ciseyeed
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. L1} Arrgiynl =t e
ERIUP COMFANT
AS AT AFRT A3 AT ASAT
ANHAD T 300 AIADTY Jnan ASHAD T 2081 AZHADIL 3020
DEFCRIFTIING ULy 15, TR [Ty 207 {EY-15, TR (JULYIE. 200
By lows o frrwind conlmael 1075 43545 inE7Es 43575
_Assot Weite Off ATT2 1 AT
Tetal TLTEA 352 TIESSAL FLEN 720 72435700
Trale promotion TAIBING 269507640 254383910 268507610
Marbel g pramadion IGFEOTALS 204 608835 67 BOTARS 204608825
Inuyrance el == e &412 536 el == e G BIG
Delivery expense 56224004 51,479,471 56224004 51474471
Totz) AT8 SULE32 56633702 ATBSULSIE SEETATIE
25/27. OTHER OFERATING INCOME
Fntl Inactrne &0008 E0G00 &0000 &0000
Gain/lloss) on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) TSI 7isEEs 8636535 18,665
G {heres) o Thisproysal of Fapht bo UseAssery S3E.965 598,965
Interest thctme 5L EREBO0 8715383 50, 6EEE00 EFlsiEd
Db ez inrazEs 418388 inrazEs RELEL=
Total SITZLIG0 508372 G340 I0S08TT2
Intefesl sapetice
On hunmh_.tg frem banks :ne.lhmﬂ_;lmu&uﬂ o
tjll Reryrey s
Oi=hing) form-and wirkdng camtal joan 62T 4253048 EET #3253 P48
Bt Lewae Linhiliky 137093 5795 13794493 25705
Total 1343 6546 4510304 1343654 4510 304
2729 TAXEXFENSES
AAMOUNT RECOGNIZED TN PROFIT OR LOSE
Currisnl tax
tnrame tax fop the year A IIOETS 230,655 503 {2007 B0 455503
Tocenno oy related fo grevioss yesrs 1637259 5433212 1637259 SA33 2
Toks] Current tax 11807348 23R0BSTIS 11807348 2IROERTIS
Desfirrred ke
Deferred = for the year (78446 (57577 lFm.s4a) s
Total deferred tax IaTB846) (2.575.177) [a78.846) (2.575,177)
Total ™ 028 502 233513538 1028502 273513 538
B AMDUNT RECOGNISED IN OTHER
COMPHEHENSIVE INOOME
The tae {ohangeloawdit arising oh income pnd expenses
fecogiised in other domprehensive ietme 1s 2s follows:
Oy e (bt sydll sl b peeclaesifiod Lo peofit or bics
Romeakisrermetis (of Defirod Biaofil Oldisstbdo
Total -
Cisiseed
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SRIUP COMFANT
AS AT AS AT AS AT AS AT
ASMAD T 2087 ASHAD ) 2080 ASMADT] 208% ATMAD I I080
OESCHIFTIONG (UL 15 I3 INTLY 3 2020 (LY 15, TR {JLELY B 200

C RECONETLIATION OF INCOME TAY EXPENSE
AND ACCOUNTING PROEIT

Frodid barfiyre 4B7 202 B8 EBO3 a7 LS aERgT7 9407 IES

Iorome b at the applicable mio of Z530% 14 TTL7I4 Z7EEE LEAT 594 by s L ]

Tax effect of amounts which are o dedustible

(ineluded) i caleulal g il oo

Moo deductible copese 3763300 2ETEE ITTRIES ZETSTM

Teezshlaliss not rocognised L]

Taxsbile Galn tol pecognid 2208748

Indesoat paid (7 Bl

Tormane tax recognised m prafit or los 30262994 I ERS 503 BTG 0,655,503
28730 EABNTNGS PER SHARE

The commparty disclowns baule snd diluled sgmings pur sl

(EPS) for ibs ordirssry shiaree '

Basic T2 i cabebutind by dividing e profil o loss

alirifiahip o sodinury stureholiers of e company by

e weighted sverase mumber of ordiracy shares cotdtontling.

dluiring ihe pistied

Diluled EFS iz cetermibed by adjusing the profii orlese

allrlbniable 1o anlinary shareholders sad the welghlel

gpurage runtaer ol ordinary shares owlstandog for Teoffects

af all diluntive poledtisl ordimary tharee which comprise share

optinns granted on compertible proference shates, dibonlures

or toemphkyees

Sitiew. Lhe corripany does not hawe sy comarlible sl riments

arnl hgs o gramliod sy opticrs T itsormnisoyes dilnted

EFS is cosidierid the sama as hasle EPS.

Trafits altribotad po equity lslders of the Company 35536 EEAADALE IEAET0 SE0523 820

Witlahted svenane i of shaio E67E5333 24,295,667 26725333 24295667

Basic and difiiled eamiings per shurs 133 plat] 19s8 L]

The company sued & 507767 81 rumbers of shares 3+

Fually piiel v binie shares derie (he flranclal yoar,

The pffet of b jeoie o earmlig porshiee of preiie

yer 207778 has been nestalid as follows:

Trfits alveibuted 1o equliy LuJ_'lmu of the Couripny - EEOID41E - &60573.830

Winghtad svemaee ruomber of shaney ETFIHES b 2 A e |

Tt Bawic and diltiled e pessiae 2471 24T

29. Subsidiaries
Tnesubsidmries (which along with Himalayan Distllery Ltd, the parent, constitute the Group) considered in the prepamation of
thees consolidated financial statements are:

MAHE FERCENTAGE OF OWHERSHIF INTEREST FERCENTAGE OF CWEERTHIF INTEREST
A5 AT ASHAD T1 3081 [JULY 1 3024) AS AT ASHAD T JOET {JULY 16, 2051

Himztsyan Mulll Avgo tid. jiain} 100

Hirmalavan Faliprios Ll 1m0 0

A STHALATAN FITHALST LM
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30. Dividend

For The Year Asadh 312081 (fuly 152022), the board of direciors proposed for dividend of 20% of the paid-up share capital
amounting to Bs Bs 54,5545-53 witich consists of 15% honus shares amounting to Rs. 400 87849775 and 5% final cash dividend

amounting to Bs. 133,626 165 75 (inclustve of dividend tax),

For the Year Ashadh 312080 (july 16, 2023), the board of directors proposad for dividend af 25% of the paid-up share capital
amounting to Bs. 60732165250 which consists of 10% bonus shares amounting 1o Rx 242 956 66500 and 15% final cash
dividend smounting to Bs. 364,434 99750 (inclusive of dividend tax)

31 Non-current assets classified as held for sale,

The Group has not classified any assets as held forsale in the corrent fiscl year

32. Financial instrument and related disclosures

a. Capital management.

The Groupmanages its capital to ensure that itwill tieahle to contintie a5 & going concemn =a that it caneontinue to provide
retums for the sharsholders and bmgﬁsfmmhﬂ'smlmhﬂldﬂsdnmlghupnmzaﬂmafdahtﬂndeqmwmihEEm
monitors the returmn on capital employed based onassst tumoyer and profitebiiity mtio

The Group isnot subject to any capiial adequacy nonms under reguistions presenty in forcs,

b. Category of finandal instrument
Astyived I P
AS AT ASHAD 11, 2081 AT AT ATHAD 31 2000
(nyey s, 2o [JULY 06 20)
CARATING TAlR CARRTING FAIE
VALEFF waLLIE VALTE MALLF
Finanrial asents
Meozsured 3t amortized cost
Tradi pecalbahle 25303 23903 L9626 573 196216 575
Cach and caih egbivaleos & pther Banl Bulaness 20BN 24 O0EGEN S46.557780 546 557750
Other Firmancial Asse 144, B5812 14488619 REL R 4357 488
Total financial assets 2254765035 2.2547,65035 2513126841 2513126841
Finanrial linhifities - measured &t amortized cost
Borrroodnys
Legip panpublie 13685577 SR EESTT 2471083 241083
Trade payables 305 9T ARE =206 85458 UEIEE T 1= 30T
Other financaliahiities 706,265 70628065 13570609 19570608
Total finascial liahilities 11.5034.129 11.5034,129 18.72.35487 B7295487
c. Financial risk management

The Grouphas & system-based approach mrmhnmmgmﬂm?dthpuﬂﬂesmd;aﬂcedmmmﬂiu&mul financial controle aimed
atidentification; svaluation and management of key financial risks (such as market risks, credit rishs mi:}_lim.u.ditjr rishsl that
may arse as  consequence of is business gperations as wellasits investing and financing artivities Accordingly, the Group's
risk management framewsrk s the objective of ensuring that such risks sre managed within scceptable and approved rish
pammeters in a consistent manner and in complisnce with spplicable regulation
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a fimancial instrument will luctuate because of changes in
mmarkst prices, such asinterest rate, forelgn exchange mtes, and equity prices, and will afect the Group's income or the value of
its haldings of firandial instrument=s

The Groups exposure to the risk of changes in market inferest rates relates primanly to the Groups short- termidemand loan
with variable interest mates The balance of term Joansat the end of the year 1s Rs. Wil {2073-30 Rs. Nilland shori-termand
demand loon s Rs. Nil {20729 50 Rs. Nill. The Group manages 115 interest rate rish by monitonneg and managing cash fiows and
negotmnng favorable rates on bormowingsand deposis,

¥ imterest rotes had been higher/lower by 50 basis points and all cthervarisbies were held onstant. the profit before tax for the
vearwould decreasefincrease by Bs 96 [(2079- B0 Re 169,306).

The Group undertokes transctions denpminated in foreign currency, mainly Indian Rupees which are not subject to the nsk of
exchange mte flurtimtions

The Group i fot art oetive investor in 2guity marksis

The Group’s current assets sggregate to Bs 2/66 8292 295 (2079 -8 Rs 3059915 611 Including cash and cash equivalent and
other bank balances of s 224 0060121 (2079-88 B 52,65 57780) against the aggregate current |iahilities of Re 239898292
{2072-80-Bs 28 79 84 354) including term loan maturing within one year from the reporting date of Rs Nil (207980 B= Nil),

Further the Group has access to undmwn bormowing facilities from banks of Bs. 375 000,000 (2079-8¢ Bs 375,000000) asat the
reporiing date Insuch cireumstances, bguidity risk or the sk that the Group may not beable tosettie ormeet its Habilities as
they become due does not exist

Credit rish management
Credit risktis the risk of finandial |ess'to the Group if a customer or coster party t6 a finandal Instroment Fails to meet Is
comtractial abligations and arises principally from the Groupstrade recehiables.

The Group extends credit to its customers keeping in view its business mterest in accordance with the Group's ceditpalicy
Excepticns are managed and approved by sppropriate avthordtes, after due considemtion of the coumterparty’s credentials and
finamrinl capacity, trade practices and prevailing business and economic conditions. The Group's exposure. as on the reporting
date, net of loss allownnes stood at Fs NIL (Z073-80-Fs NIL),

The Group carries other financial assets, such ac Balances with Banks and othe#r recetiables Bank dsposits are held with
commercial Banks having a strong financinl position and taking into account the sxperience of the Groap over tme, the countai
party risk attached to such agsets s considered insignificant.

d Fairvalue
The following presents the fniv value hierarehy of fnancial assets and lishifities messured at fairvalue anaeouming hasis
St in B
T YALEE A5 AT ASHAD I, 2080 AS AT ASHAD 32,3079
FTERABCHY 0TVEL) ULy 36 200 (LY pe, FE0T)
Finanrial llabilities
Measured st amortized cost
Sorpuwings 3
Legse payahies 3 tEaBESTT 24093
Toti! finsncial Babillvies 13688577 24083
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The carrying amowmnts of tade and sther mosivables, cish and msh equivalent= corrent portion of loans, cosrent partion of
borowings, trode payables and die to employess and other parties ar= the same o= their irvalues, due to their shor-temm
mEnre.

an explanation of each level 1s provided below,

Level 1: [=vel | hierarrhiy includas financa] instruments measured using quoted prices. This includeslisted equity mstroments
that have guoted price THe feir valus of all equtymstoments which 2re tmded on the siock exchanges isvolued using the
closing price as at the reporting date:

Level 2 The fairvalus of financial instruments that are not traded inan artive marketis determinad using valuation technigues
which maximize the use of observable markst dats and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. 1fall sisnificant
inputs required 1o fair valus an instroment are ahservable, the instrument is inclnded inlevel 2

Level 3: TFone br more of the signiflcantmputs is not bassd on obeervable market data the instrument i includad Inlevel 3.

32 Related party disclosures
Names of related parties and description of relationship

& Subsidiary
= Himalpyan Muln Agro Limited (100%)
» Himalayan Fisheries Limited (100%)

b. Companies in which the investor (including close member of family) has significant infiuence
= Jawalakhed Group of Industries Pet 1td

® F Distribution Pat 1tz

= Rolling River DistillersPrt Lid

= Asiar Distillery Pyt 1l

s Food and Beverage Technology Ressarch Centre Bt Ltd

= Vijay Distillery P Lad

m B & RSupplisrsFet 161

= Raj Brewery Pvt Lid.

& Majestic Ventures P, Ltd

¢ Eey management personnel
= Mr Akhileshwor Prasad Singh Chairman
= Mr, Marendra Kumar Basnyat Oirector

® Mr Shanker Raj Pandey Director

= Mr Santog Shrestha Directar

= Mrs. Yankeels (Sherpa) Fuit Directar

& Mr. Praimshmani Ghimire Independent Birector
= Mz, Mira] Subedi Chief Fxecutive Officer

ANNUNL RERORT =5 163



Summary of the transactions with related partics

Kwwset in B
FOR THE YEARERDED
ASFLAD 1, 2001 ASFIAD 31, 2580
Ly s, 2o LY M FOE)
Sale of goods
JGI Distrebutinn Pyt Lid. A TEETED SSHETIESTT
Rulling River Dustillers Put L1l 85734 505 29816350
Fooul B Brverage Technalngy Resednth Conlre Pyt Ll or: 55
Vijay Dhutifory v L S50 EN BES 4T EST S
Purchase of goods
Hoill g River Blatillers Pul Lid 55101 leg7a
Foiietl 5 Bevieragis Technilogy Researeh Canlre Pet Lid 154918107 261 E38 804
Viday Biglillory Pyl Lid 2TNTEE
Purchiaze of servires
Foped § Beveraos Toshnslopy Ressarch Coplre Pyt Lid WAE53E5 ITTOET,34M
JOT Distributing Pyt Led 383508000 FTHFI4A15
Royalty incorme | |
Feillies Rrowyr Digt{Tors Pyl Lid 18583730 A4 £21 906
Wiy Dlstllery PoL Lid 315707 Alnaroka
Saleof Property, Plant & Equipmoent
Viday Biglilory Pyl Lid TL534 131520
Humabeyan Mol Agro Lomited 100000
Fopd § Brserane Technslogy Research Contre Pyl Lid 81360
Bpimbursement of Expenses
O Distribaglimn Pyt Lad. IDAGTH A TEETEA
Advanre Given
Hirpikayan Mulil Aste Liniied (HMAT) el 177685
Advancs For Shame - HkAL 18600000
Himabivan Fisberies Limiled LR P nzza0
Purchase of Property Plant & Equipment
Wity Deutiffory (P} Lad 4,572,000
Dividend Faid
Food! & Boverage Technobogy Research Contre Pyt Lid. BT ALTE 157 04E 36T
Majestie Visrlures Pug Ll 14 A7S00 ¥ o i
£ 5 R Suppllor T Ld 729 gyl {36, 437455
Summary of the transactions with related parties AP —
FORTHE FEAR ENDID
ASHAD 7T 20FI ATHAD 71, 7080
ULy o5, = |y 3, 2o
Triade recetvables
107 Destribadon Pyl Lad e 28y 1960837505
Felliog Rrwr Dt lors Pyl bid
Tarwialabdiel Growp of Industries Pul. bid
Foiil & Buvirage Technology Rsearch Conloe P 1al {55 o207
Wijuy EHstill ety PoL Lt
Advances
Hlrrsbuyan Mull] Agro Limitsd 280054 227N EZE
Himabiy=n Fisbirries Limited 1958164 1948992

Meeting fesr paid to chaitman and dirsctars during the year amount to Bs 1595000 (2079-80: B2 11.67000). Cash Dividend of Re
1775340 (2079-80: 7.359,725) and dividend in te form of bonus shares amounting to B3 1,183,560 (2073-B0: Fs. 42 38350} were

also paid during the year.
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Meeting fees pald to Independent Director duning the year amount to Rs 240,000 (2075-80; R 185,000,

Salary and Allowance to related/key management persons

MAMES SALAEY AND OTHIR B BEFITS

Aimriratal i Fric

Mr Nin Subedi(CE0) T2

34, Commitment and contingencies

a. Capital Commitment
Amount for contracts remaining 1o be sxecut=d on capital account as on Ashad 31, 2081 (july 15, 2024} Rs 44 685748 37 (2079-80
F= i)

bl Contingent labilities

The company has received 3 demand foradditional incometax from the Large Taxpayers Office for the finahcial years 2062 -

53 and 2074-75, amounting to Be 88822492 (2079-80: R= 96141554}, and additional VAT for the financial years 2058-50 and
206869 amounting to Rs. 30458 825 {207%-30: Rs. 32,504 874) These matters areunder legal proceadings with therelavant
authorities The cormpany has deposited Rs. 37548147 (2079 -80: Re_37.548147) at part of the appeals for thess cases However, if
the derisions are nit in' fovor of the company, additional fires and interest niay be chargsd on these amounts.

During the year, the company has made provisions of B 7,319,062 and Rs 355 677 against income tax and VAT respectively, as
per the verdicts of Honombls Supreme Court for the fiscal year 2061-62 However, the company has not provisioned for potential
imtersst and fines that could arise on theze amounis,

additinnally, the company has received an order from the Labor Coprt for the payment of compensation to laborers, with the
estimated amount being Bs. 14769665 However, the company has obiumes o stay order from the Honomble Suprems Court
Funiermare, two laborers have filed petitions against their termumation from employment in the Labor Court: the linkbiling
agamnst these petitions has not been estimated.

drmmnent i Ba
WNATUNE MEALYEAR AUTHORITY &EH.&D?L'E}E‘“.E.TEI'EI_FEEIH ATHAD 11,2980 (6, JUCY 20X
COMTINGENT DCFOSIT FOR CONTINGERT
LIATTLITIEE LIKNILITIES
AT FIH ASSESSMENRT APFLALIEAY ASFER ASEFRRMERT DEFQEITTLE
ORIEEN RE) DEDER{RSD APEEAL{RR)
VAT PORRS Siptenie Court 261 G A7 91696 a7137
VAT ZOELET  Supiviie Cour - toz3non 2045959 1pE 000
VAT FNERES  Inlund Revenis IO 167109 EORE OO0 30167129 12056000
Deparimant
‘Excise 206167 Sopretns Court 2TTTTHE 2T
IntomeTax IRVEE  SuprermeTour 3559531 TEINDET 365953
Income Tax FEZIEE  Supivite Court 1159150 79620 1189450 5P E20
Tneome Tax 20747E  lund Beusiiue E7E51347 12355600 FFEEI 347 17,355 000
Dupsrna .
Labor wage 201610 Till Bate Parsa Disiret Courl 14 2555685 T2 DRES05
Total 133 551202 T e WM0T708983 37548152

35. Interim Reporting

Interim reports have been publicly reparted for sach public company in the group, in accardance with the requirement of SEBON
and NEPSE These requirements arematerially aligresd with therequirements of NAS 34, Consolidated interim results havenot
besn published
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HIMALAYAN MULTI AGRO LIMITED

Repaorts on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

wﬂ have sudited the financial statements of Mimalayan Multi Agro Limited('the company”) which comprise
the balsnice sheat siv ot 31 Ashad 2081, (15 July, 2024), the income stalement the statement of changes of equity,
siatement of cash flow for the year ended and significant ncconnting policies and notey to the atcounts,

In ouir apinion, the accompanying financial statements poesent fairky, in all material respects, the financial position
of tlie company as st 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024) and its financial performance and ity cash flow for the year
endid in aecordance with Generally Accepled Accounting Policies (GAAF).

Basis for Opinion _

We condusted vur audit in accordance with Nepal Standards an Auditing (NSAs), Our responsibilities undes those
standards are further deseribed in the Auditor's Responsitilitiis Tor the audit of financial stntements section of
our teport. We are lndependent of the Compuny in sccardance with the code of ethics for the professional
aceountint lssued by The Institute of Chartéred Actountants of Nepal wogether with the ethical requirement that
i relevant 1 our nudit of the fintncinl stafements under the provisions of the Company Act, 2063, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical respemsibilities i accondance with these requirements and ICAN code of ethics for
professional sccountants, We believe that the nudit evidenve we have oblained & sullicient and approprinte to
provide busis for our opinlen.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those marters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the finoneial statemments for the financinl vear ended on Ashad 31, 2081 (correspanding to July 15, 2024) These
matters were addressed in the context of our nudit of the financial statements as s whole, and in forming our
opinton thereon, and we do not provide a separate opialon on these matters. We have determined that there is no
ey moter 1o comeuiicated in Gur nepor.

Infurmation Other Than the Financial Statements and Auditor's report thereon,

The management of the Company {s responsible for the other information, The ether information comprises the
Hnformation iecleded in the annual repot, but docs not ingluded the financial statements and our auditar's report
Hisgrean,

Out opinion on the Minancial ststements does not cover the other information and we do nol express any form of
ussurance conclusion thereon.

In comnection with aur audit of the Gnancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing s0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the linancial statements, or our
hriowledge obtained during e course of audit or otherwise appears to be materinlly misstated.

1, based on the work we have performed, we concluded thet there is 8 material misststement therein, we ure
required 1o report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

;lmpnmihtﬁriu of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
tatvmenis

Munagement of the Company is responsible for the preparution und falr presentution of the financidl statements
in weeordanee with the GAAP, and for uch internal control us management determines s oecessary (o enble
peeparation of the (inancial sistements that are free from material missiniements, whether due to fraud or emor,
In preparing the financial statements, management ks responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as i going concern, disclosinz. as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using golng concem basis of
accountlng unless management either intends 1o liguidate the Company or (o cease opsrations, or has no realistic
alternutive bl to'do so.

Those charged with governance are respongibile for oversesing the Company's financisl reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsihilities for the Audit of Financial Statements
Uur objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurunce about whether the financial stntements as a whale are free from
material missatements, whether due to frud or erot, and 1o isue an auditor’s report that fiekides our pliion.
Reusonable sssurance is o high level of assurance, but i ot guarantee that an audit e difagaprdance with
NSA< will always detect o muberial misstatement when il exisis. Misstalements ca




are comsidered muterial (£ individually or m apgregate, they could reasonably be expected o influsnce the
geomemic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

ket

feisim theoughout the audie. We alw:

Identify nnd nsseds the risks of moteridl misstatement of the financial statements, whether due o frand or
error, design and perform audil procedures responsive 1o those risks, und obtin sudit evidence thar ix
sufficient and appropriate to provide o basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ermor, as frond may involve collusion,
forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ar the override of intemal contral,

Obtain an understanding of intermal control relevant 1o the sudit in order 1o design audit that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company ‘s intermal control.

Evaliate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related diselosures made by mansgement.

Conelude on the appropristeness of management's use of the going concern basis of aceounting and, based
ol the sudit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related Lo events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company®s ability to continue 85 a going cancem. If we conelude that a material
uncertnnty exists, we aro required 1o draw attention in our auditor's repoe to the related disclosure in the
finuncial statement or, if such divclosure are inadeguate, to modify aur opinion, Our conclusions are basced
an the audit evidence obtrined up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cauge the Company 10 cease s & gojng conces,

Evaluate the overall presentation of the financial staternents itiehuding diselosures, and whethizr the financial
stutements represent the undertying transactions and events in 8 manner thal schieves fir presentation,

We communicated with thase charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing ol the audir and significant audit findiag, including any significunt deficiencies in imtemal control that we
ident!fy during our audit.

Report on Other Legnl and Regulatory Requirements
O the basis of our examipation and explanations given w us, we would like 1o report that:

i
il
iil,

.

Plaews Kathmandy

Da

We huve obuiined all the information and explanations, which were considered necessary for the purposs
for owr audi.

Company has kept proper books ol secounts as required by law, in so far as it appears from our exam ination
af those books of account,

The Balance Sheet, Income Statement, Statement of Cush Flow, Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this repart are in agreement with the books of sccount muintained by the Company,

Pharing our examination of the books of secount of the Compiny, we have not come reross the cases where
the Board of Directors or any member thereofl or any representative or any office holder or any employee
of the Company has acted contrary 1o the provisions of law or enused lnss or damage to the Campiny.

le: 20w\ ool \&
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BALANCE SHEET - on i ashad, 2087 (15 July, 2024

J_u.tu:l.fu! I
PARTICULAR CH CUREENT YEAR FREVIOUS YEAR
Aszois
Non-Current Assets
Property. Planl & Equiprnim 1 30672000 100,000
Defrired Tisg Aewsly |
Citrrent Asssis
Cath & Cashi Exjulvalusils z 272138 438 2e4
Trade & Other Receivables
Total Cuirrent Asspis B22138. 438,269
Total Assets ILSOLI3H 21 530 760
Eqguity b Linhilities’
Eguity
Share Camital 3 0000000 000000
Share Apdicstao Money L] Aa0H00000:
Bompye B Surpduy 5 {FZ=0ET) fEI].II:ET
Total Equity 9/074m3 19239841
{mmn_'.‘.l.l.nhﬂ.ﬂ:lu
Trade § Other Fayables & 2426225 2798428
Total Current Liahilities 24763235 298428
Total Equity & Liskilijies T 501138
Siemifirant Acromnting Poloees and Notes bo Accommis 8
‘Scheduls 1 1o 8 ferman integral part of the Financial Statsments Ax i i repnrt o = dite
JEEVAN PANDAY SANTOD SHRESTHA AICHILESHWAR P SINGH FRAKASHMAN] CHIMIRE €A Arnj Enmar Neopans
FMANCE MANASGER [V HECTIE PafTHER )
. Pandyai & Associates

Chiirf=ad] Arevsiliminis



INCOME STATEMENT v ot year onded on 41 kit 2081 (16

FINAMTIAL FTATEMINTSE

Jealty, 20

_M JL_TEL
PARTICULAR scH CURBENT YEAR FHEVIOUS YEAR
Incoms
Sakes lnroane
Loy Cost of Suley
Gross Profit - s
Al
Othier [pcapmes
s
Adtniipisiral e Expensiy 7 154 828 158254
Eltanelisl Exgierisss
DepreciEliog Changss
Profit Bafore Tax {154,928} (159.284)
Critraniil Fax
Durfprred Tax
Wt Prafil {Loss) Aftor Tax [464.570) {159 254)
Significam Accournting Poflces ond Not=sm Accommis § _
Schedule 1 to 8 form an integral part of the financisl Ststements Aa per our renort of =ven date
JEEVAN PANDAY SANTOO SHRESTHA ARHILESHWAR P SINGH PHAKASHMAN] GHIMIRE CAAnoj Humar Neupans
FINARCEMANAGER CHAIRTENSON THEESTL TANTHER
© Pudial B Assodistes
Oliarters] fevsipgtans

5! -T_Enﬂlmnmin
T -iﬂinnti:erm
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT o st year cotedt om 31 Asfid, 2087 (15 fuiy, 2024)

J_t.r.l..u.uu! I
PAKTICULAR CURRENT YEAR FREVIOUS YEAR
ACash Fiow From Operating Activities
Nt Profivitoss) after Ta (164 520 {e3284)
Adib Deguresia e Chiargues
Het Cash Flow Before Changes in Working Capital (154,923) {163284)
Inis et Palel
Euisngees by Wiarklng Capisal T 176079
Het Cash Flow From Operating Actlvitizs 17797 (43.255)
B.Cash Flow From Inswsting Activities
Saloe of Fruanl Sespis
Puychass of Fized Aduiu =t inlial]
C Cash Flow From Floaneing Scibuliies
IonEredsel Doermass) in Share Cagiial
Ionkrease Decrmase) in Aldvance for Sharke Caplia! 1000000
[ncraase | Dpcrice) in Bank Loans
Mot Cash Flow From Floancing Activities 10,000,000
Net Cash Flow 363,86% (43.255)
Adil Opening Cash 5 Bank Balunce A3EI6S ABLTM
Clesing Cash & Bank Balanars B2 B8 A3BF69
Stpmifven Accounming Pellces amd Mo b Accounis 8
Schedile 1o 8 form anintegral part of the Firanois! Sistements - AspEr ouTTEpCTE O] Srendats
JEEVAN PANDAY SANTOO SHEESTHA ARHILESHWAR P. SINGH PRAHASHMANI GHIMIRE CA Annj Kumar Neupane
FMANCEMANMCES LURFETI LU FIEBE FLEr Ly f{ErTrih BRETNER
£ Peudyal & ASEOOISIEE
Chaftersd Atvaunanta

E

i

Atk October, S04
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  rortoe voar Soded Ashud 51 2081 fuiy 15 2004

Aatiiived i P
DARTICULARS EQUITY SHARE SHANT  REVALUATION ALCUMULATED TOTAL
APPLICATION MONEY HERERVE PROETTILOSS)
Bailanoe 44 on 32032079 20000000 (5987%) 19409105
Profll/ (Lo ) for s yeas (153.284) emzEd)
v of Shzre Caplial
Balance Ason 31.03.2080 20,000,000 . . (760.155) 19,239,841
Bulunce Ay on 01442080 20050000 (760159 19335 841
Profil /[ Loy | o the yous {154 9728) [164,5923)
Shre Application Money Recowed on Call I090G.000 000000
iymzeer of Sharw Capibal
Balsrce Ay on ILOTIOH] 0,000,000 10,000,000 (o5 0FT) TS
s e QU FEPOT of Sven daie
JEEVAN PANDAY Santoo Shresths Abkhitesirwar P Singh PRAKASHMANI CHIMIEE €A Anioj Eumar Nenpans
FNANCE MANAGER MREZTEA CHAMRPERSIN N EEC T PaHTHER
G. Paudyal 6 Associaies
Chiirr=rss] feeyslimanis
7z Bathmandn
CATs At Octoher: 2024

PRDPETY,PI.AHT & EQH]PMEHT For the el ahiled Gn It Aslad, 081 15 july, J024)

Arnmuint in B
PARTICTILAR RATE OFENING ADDTION DURING THE YEAR . LIEPQSAL TOTAL DEFRECIATION OLOSING
BALANCE SHRAWAN MACHTD BAISAEH BALANCE
TOPOUSHE CHAITRA TOASADH
Land TLIOGOD0 ELTE R 30573000 30573000
Tirtazl 20 30D - I G - F0ETIO00 30679800
SCHEDULE FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS = cbovoar cnied om0 dsbad D000 (00 puly 200!
CASH 6 BANK o - s
PABRTICULAR CUBRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Cashiin I—hnﬁ_ﬂaamu[l.mibvﬂmﬂanaggmr} =2 u=:
Bank Balances-
Citiesns Sank Intermmaliomal Ll 21306 AzvaEe
Tutal 2138 535265
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SHARE CAPITAL choaue = At
PARTICULAR CURREENT YEAR FREVIOLS YEAR
Authoriced Capital
2000000 oo, of shares of B 100 each 2000000 ZOC000000
1000060 nes of shares of B2 100 each 10acofoco ixn00000
Pald T Capital
S00000 nos of shans of Be 100 sach Bx 40 palid up 20600000 o oo
500000 noi, of shapes of B= 100
eath #4290 called up 10 6IH000
Lewe Amipint Fecetvod ooeall {IMDaO0nD) ;

Totul 20600000 000,000
SHARE APPLICATION MONEY - tuic 4 .
PARTIEULAR CITHFENT FEAR PEEVIOUEL YEAR
Arpoun] Becwiyvd for Shere Camilal on call 10,000,000
Total 000,000
RESERVE 6 SURPLUS Scbocule - PR
FARTICTLAR CORRENT YEAR FFREVICHIS YEAR
Profitf{Locs) uplo Previous Yeal LiFE0as9) [=90.575)
Prodit(Loce) for the Year (1 925) 159.284)
Total {225,087) {7B0.159)
TEADE & OTHER PAYABLES S edule © . )
(F]01 8 Wi e
FARTICOLAK CURRENT YEAR FREVICHIS YEAR
TS Pajable braf 300
Audil Fee Payalile 22300 72300
Oiher Payable prdy [l el 275818
Total 2ATE IS 2298478
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES oo _—
PARTICULAR CUREENT YEAR FREVIOLS YEAN
Auhit Fee 2600 2600
Lol Exprosss 8700 20003
Ntice & Publicalion Frpenges £400 11265
Othier Expnniees i 1455
Hegbitriatbon & Renowal Expesre DEITG THRO7S
Total 164928 169284
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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HIMALAYAN FISHERIES LIMITED

Reports on the Audit of the Financial Starements

D pinivy

Wﬁw audited the financial stntements of Himalayan Fisheries Limited(‘the compnany’) which comprise the
bulime sheet us ot 31 Ashad 2081, (15 July, 2024). the income statement the statement of changes of eyuity,
stnternent of cnsh Mlow for the year ended ond signilicant oecounting policies and notes 1o the secounts.

Y pur opmion, the sccompanying finaneial statements present fuirly, in all matenn) respests. the inancial position
of the company as at 31 Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024) and its financinl performance and its cash flow for the vear
ended In pecordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Policies (GAAP),

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standands on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under thuse
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the andit of financial statements seation of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics for the professional
necourtant iesued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal together with (he ethical requirement that
s relevant to our audit of the financial dtatements under the provisions of the Company Act, 2063, and we haye
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAN code of ethics for
professionol sccountants, We believe that the nudit evidence we have obtined is sufficient and approprinte to
provide basis for our opinion.

Kev Audit Matters

Key uudit malters are (hose matters that, in our professional judpment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements for the financial year ended on Ashad 31, 2081 (comesponding to July 15, 2024), These
matters were addressed in the context of our sudit of the financial statements as & whole. and in forming our
opinon thergon, and we do not provide a sepamte opinion on these matters, We have determined thut there is no
ey mutter o communicaled in our repon.

Information Other Than the Financial Statements and Auditor's report thereon,

The management of the Company is respansible for the other information. The other information comprises the
‘r’r:lfnmmlinn included in the aanoal report, but does not included the financinl statements and ouor auditor's repont
thenesm,

Our opinion oo the financial stalements does ol cover the other infarmntion and we do not express any form of
wssurance condliwion theredn,

by commection with our audit of the financial stmtements, our respansibility is 1o read the nther information and, in
dping 50, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the {inuncial stitements, or our
knowledge ohtained during the sourse of wudit or olherwise nppears to be materinlly misstated.

If, bused un the work we have performed, we concluded that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required 1o report that fact. We have nothing te report in this regand.

bwm nsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
emenls
Management of the Company is respoasible for the Fepnmlnn and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordunce with the GAAP, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary 1o enable
ion of the financial statements that wre free from material misstatements, whether due to fraod or emor

i prepanng the financial siatements, management is responsible for assessing the Compuny’s ability to conthue
as a gomg concern, disclosing, an applicable. matters related t going concern and wsing going concern basis of
a::-munt_ing l:nlm!mamgemm: either intends 1 liquidate the Company of to cease operations. or has no realistic
altermative bul 1 o &0,

Those churged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company®s financial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements
Our vbjectives are 1 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 4k Gl
miterial misstatements, whethier due 1o frand or error, and to issue an suditor's repa
Reasoninhle a<siirance is a high level of assurance, but is not guarantee that an audit ¢
NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements ean, iitis




are considered mustevial i, individually or in uperepate, they could reasonably be expecied to influence the
ectinomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticisim throughout the sudit. We also:

Identify and nssess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
ertor, design and perform audit procedires responsive 1o those risks, and obtain asdit evidence that is
sufficient and sppropridte (o provide a basis for our opmion. The risk of not detecting a materinl
misstiement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ermor, a5 fravd may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obitain un understanding of interna! control relevant to the audit in order (o design sudit procedures that are
appropriate in (he circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s interal control.

Evalusie the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of accounting estimates
and related dise made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of sccounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a naterial uncertainty exlsts related to events or conditions that may
citst signi fleant doubt on the Company”s ability to contimue us a going concern, 17 we conclude thar s material
uncertninty exists, wo are required 1o draw attention i our auditocs repon to the related disclosure in the
finnncial statement or, if such disclosure are insdequine, 1o modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our suditor's repurt. Howeyer, future events or conditions
ity cilise the Company to cease as 8 going copeern.

Evalunte the overall presentation of the financial statements including disclosures, and whether the financinl
statements represent the uiderlying transactions and evenis in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope und
timing of the audit and significant audit finding, including any significant deficiencics in internal control that e
Identify during our nudit.

Report on Other Legnl and Regulatory Requirements
On the hasis of our examination and explanations given 10 us, we would like to repon thar;

L
it
il

iv.

Plaee: Knthmandu
Date: Lox) o6 @

P‘: have obtained all the information and explanations, which were considered necessary for the purpise
or owr audit,

Company has kept proper books of aceounts #s required by law, in so far as it uppenrs from our examination
of thede books of account,

The Balan¢e Sheet, Income Statement, Stitement of Cash Flow, Statement of Changes in Equaty deah with
by this repart are in agreement with the books of secount maintained by the Company.

During our examination of the books of account of the Company, we have not come across the cases where
the Board of Directars or any member thereof or wny representative or any office holder or any employes
of the Company has acted contrary to the pravisions of Tnw or eaused loss or damage (o the Company.

UDIN Numbser:24 1006CAD1618FLQCU
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BALANCE SHEET - on fashad 2087 (15 July, 2024)

Airusinl i B

BANTICULAR 5CH CUHBENT YEAR FREVIOUS YEAHR
Asgeis

Hon-Current Asseis

Propedly, Plant 5 Equlprmal EZ518250 87519250
Defeited Tay Assets

Total Non -Carrent Asseix 82518750 82,519,250
Current Assets

Cash & Cash Egpivalonis 2 RIS T2IES
Tracte & Dumr Rpcompables

Total Current Assets 35,058 72189
Tzl Avwrts BI3H308 B =143
Equity & Liahilities

Equity

Shure Caplial 3 21100000 sL100000
Baseep & Surplus ] {=rrasy) (4RO 163)
Current Liabilities

Trede & Dliier Phy.:Lb.[rz. 1882 1L 15592
Total Current Liabilities 1982165 15971502
Total Equity 5 Liabilities B2 554 308 82591433
Smifirent Accsursing Polices=ml Neotss o Accoimits 7
Scheduie 1tn 7 form an integral pertof the Finencial Statements A= par our feport of smen das
JEEVAN PANDAY SANTDO SHRESTHA ARHILESHWAR P SINGH FRAKASHMANI GHIMIRE CihAnoj Kumar Neupans
FHANCENANMCES EREETUA CHARFERSDN SHEECTO PARTNES

2 Paudyal & Assooates
Clinrtered Avpountonks

P Hathmandn

#u7s Atk Dotober, 2024
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INCOME STATEMENT =orohe voar Snded 01 ashad 7081 (16 ol 2024)

Abiaiiisel i B

PAMYTICULAR &H

CUEEENT YEAR

FREVIOUS YEAR

Incoms
Sales lnrmine
Locy ; Cos of Sules
Gross Profit
Ak
Othier [pcapmes
e
Adsilpistrat e Evpringsy &
Flranciil Expentsss
DepreciEtiodg Changes
Profit Bafore Tax
Caifrannil Fax
Deferred Tas

27704

(47704)

50428

Rt Profif{Los=) Afber Tax

{4770

(50,428]

Significant Accounting Pobicies ond Notesto Accoomis 7
Schadule t to 7 form an integral part of the Financial Statements

SANTOO SHRESTHA
MIEECTOM

JEEVAN PANDAY

FINARCERANAGER

ANHILESHWAR P, SIN
CIEAIFENSON

FlacT Rethmandu
it Athi Oceober, 2004

Aa pesour Tepor ol =en date

VAHTRES
G Pandyal B Asgoiates
Oluartersd fessiprtants



FINAMTIAL FTATEMINTSE

CASH FLOW STATEMENT  cortne voor rte 31 2shas, 2081 (05 [y 2020

B ivered s P

PAMTICULAR CUERENT YEAR FREVIOUS YEAR
ACash Fiow From Operating Activities

hied FrofitLoss) afier Tas {47704 (s0428)

Aelib Dpmrasial bt i‘h'.u%

Het Cash Flow Before Changes in Working Capital {m:j {s50,478)

Inis et Palel ;

Chsiges iy Wiarklng Capital o573 T2

Het Cash Flow From Operating Actlvitizs (37131) {43.119)

B.Cach Flow From Investing Activities

Saledof Fived Asseld

Puirchese of Foosdl Asceds

Mot Cash Flow From Investing Activities -

C.Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Inprease{ Decrpase) o Sheene Sl

[reTeases Do e se] i Bank Loans

Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities - .

Faed Cach Fliw (3=t {43215

Al Opening Cash & Bank Balanes TIiES 15,401

Oleulng Cach & Bank Salanzre 35058 72183
Sipnifmm Accounting Polices amd Motes b Acommis 7
Schedile 1o 7 form danintegrsl partof the Fingncial Statements A= pEr o repoTi o srEn dats
JEEVAN PANDAY SANTOC SHRESTHA ARHILESHWAR P. SINGH PRARASHMANT GHIMIRE CA Anoj Kumar Neupane
FMANCFMANMCES LURFETI LU FIEBE FLEr Ly (EECTT BANTMER

£ Paudyal & ASEOOSIEE
Chartersd At mrmainty

e Eathmandn

o At October, 20594

ANNUNL RERORT =5 LTV



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ot vear et 21 Achiad 0081 115 10y 004

Annnistin B

FARTICIFLARS EQUITY SHARE SHARE REVALLATION MCCIMILATED TOTAL
PEEMITM BESERVE PROFTTLOSEE)

Balance Avon ILOZ2079 81100000 - . {425,725) BO,ET0,275
Prodit | | Loss | for the year (so478) L]
Insmnp oof Shimre Capital
falince A on 2032080 21100000 {4b0153) 50519848
Balance 4= on 01042080 81100000 - - {a20153) 80515848
1enip of Shiare Capltal .
Profii )| Loss ) far the yoar L - (474l L7 7o)
Balanre Ay on 31032051 BN D00 - {527,257) BOSTZ 147

i!grmﬂ!ﬁmmmg.mhnu and Noges Enﬂ:tq.m:i T
Schedule 1 to 7 forman integrs] part of the Financiai Suitemeanrs

JEEVAN PANDAY Santoe Shresthas Alhileshimar P Singh
FINANCEMANRGER MEECTOR CHAIRPERSOH
©we Eathmmsndn

AT dthOctober, 2024

A e ot TepoT i FeEn date

FAITHER

G Prudyal B Associates
Clartered Accpusants



FINAMTIAL FTATEMINTSE

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT  rortne vony Soces 11 Ashan S8 106 fuy 200

dosrmond e P
PARTICULAR DEENING ADDTION DUNING THE YEAR DISPOSAL TOTAL DEPNECIATION — CLOMING
BALANCE SHRAWAN MAGHTO  BASAHH BALANCE

TOPOUSH CHAITEA T0ASADH
Land B2 515750 B2E1625]) BICIBIC0
Total B2 515,250 H2.515.250 E2515250

SCHEDULE FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £ b voss frododd 51 i D061 [uly 2004

CASH 6 BANK “chrdue e
PAMTICULAD CUERENT YEAR FREVIOUS YEAR
Cash-in-Haod (s goetified by the Mamsgemes| } TG T
Clibrayys Bainke lntorpaliorm] Ll 342683 Ve
Total EiEE TZAE%

SHARE CAPITAL byl = b T
PANTICULAR CUHBENT YEAR FREVIOUS YEAHR
Authorised Capital
EA0000 no ol shures ol B2 100 sach =apoooon 150 00 0D

1500000 no. of shases of Bs 100 Each 150000000 150000000
Purldl Up Capital

211000 He ol shires of AL 100 =ach ‘100000 51100000
Total BLIDD DR BLIOD.OOD

m & smus selicdide A in R
PAHTICULAR CITHEENT YEAR FIEVIOUS YEAR
ProfitiLas) ugilo Previols Year (4801s4) laza72s)
Profivilosy) for the veal (47704 (saa0t)
Total [sZ7.857) [#BO153)
TREADE & OTHERPAYABLES o0 0 P—

PAHTICULAR CITHEENT YEAR FEVIOUS YEAR
TOE faiabie i) | 260
Andil Boie Papalale 300 22300
Olher Payalile R e 194ER92
Tatal LHEZ 186 1971592

ADWEEKFEHSES Sehnilliis -6 Astisirind s
PARTICULAR CUEHRENT YEAR FHEVIOUS YEAR
Audil Fre 2,600 22600
Legal Edpiisus 700 &000
Notice & Publication Exjenses sAM 11200
Ciher Expesises 532 1458
Beulstratlon & Reie sl Experces ST7? =5 e
WrToA 50428

Total

ANNUMLRERORT =5 9









HOL's stock price rose from Bs. 1599 in TY
2019720 1o Bs 5,512 by the end of FY 202021
when the NEPSE Index reached 2883 Even after
s sigmificant dropin the NEFSE Index o 2008,
HOL s stock price remained stable at Bs.3410m
'Y 2021122 The NEPSE Index further dechined to
2097 while HDLs stock price held st Rs: 2248 by
the end of FY 2022/73. Howsver, in FY 202324,
HOL s stock price fell 10 Bs. 1384 despite an

MARKET CAPTTAI [ZATION

HDL shares hnve consistentiy been among the
mostsought-after stocks in the market: Over
the past fiveyears, while the overall market
capitaltization of NEPSE grew fromRs:1753
billion o As 1554 billion, reflecting o CAGR

of 19%, HDL's market capifatizanon surged
from Rs.9 billion to Rs. 37 billion, showcasing
an impressive CAGE of $2% during the same

morease i the NEPSE fndex to 2240 piEting.
STOCK MARKET INDEX
= HDL 5otk Prics  w NEDSE Indes

&O00 B0

55010 f’\f L LT

SO0 N 5000

aso0 N ase

nong:

HOL ST0EN BRICE

A0 Mﬂ

4000 / b 400

3500 / \iﬂﬁﬂ 3500
/ 2348

500 / \.- zzs0 2500

e 1,59&' _ﬁ______e’;::..:-———o L.

NTPETTMER

E-"C’ FW
Y rvsiaan Fazea Fr20n 2 Fr20m 23 G R
4 KOLMarkerCep @ NEPSE Marke Cap
T ' asar '@
E- &0 3552 4oan E
] 3hini
: NIl e
' A
-—I—._-_-_'_._-‘._ "
- @ 5;\\\___5‘__ 2508
. dn = 2noD E
3n " ia00
g & e g
H 00 E
2 o o o s

YT FY 200229 rrIozea4



INVESTOS R BELATIONTHIE

CONTRIBUTION TONATIONAL ECONOMY
Ty theespevferwy periodd, HID mnde o 1omf of Rs: 2703 milticoss o o conmitnion o the Govermoient of Nepal wincnisa
I aimin e

i1 GovermmiEnt of Nepol for t

ok TEE PO TS DGO ns Thevaroms

W OIveE

WSt 5 ) veor

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL ECONOMY 11 Miflisn

EEEFTTN FTIOTe-TT FrETr-TR FITe Ty FVIgrsag FYoET-S

Total Revenie 24056 3773 4064 2971 2081

et 2384 a8 3zM 584 21774

VAT B34 g3y 75 £ 404

Clussienn it 43 100 a5

THE 35 &4 ag &0

o Tax a0 An 378 223 130

Totz] Tax 1442 4167 4 838 35630 2,703

Stiver Award-in monoiaoioring ootemony for Avenrd of Erceilerae provided Oy Modihesh
Natienial S=st Presewied Anrin By 2000 Proviree for Lawding Tew Payer 2022

ANNULML REEQET i1==5s
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Unclaimed/Unpaid s
Inthe review perod of 2023-24 o toml of 5646444

Di“idends units of HOL shares were traded in the secondary

market ina period of 223 doys in this period. the

At the enil of FY 2005224 FIDE hirid] o tata] 6f B MmamumShare Frice rempained Re 2.38% the
SEANNRELR & theurirnimed dividend which is Mimumum Share Price stood at Bs. 1140 and the Closing
i plitody of its Bezivtrat 76 Shares (KTS)- Kabil Tmest Price stood at Bs. 13824 Furtherthe trend of HDL's
Banbdne Dirpitsd funber detaild of the same nee providie 1 share prices and traded quantity gver the last five fiscal
o followine tnhle years has been presented below
Y UNBAID/UKCLAIMED Shareholders' with more than 1% holding in
DIVIREND AMOUNT (TN RS ) T
201%-16 107 00 Dhate == pfy send oF Axaifh 05T
2016-11 91244000 SHAREHELTER S NAME TOALHEDING =
201118 05303530 -
207718 [Interim) 2 EITA0L R Fahauiis Shal Slawuiiu 3R2FTIe FITR
2018-19 201005750 FL'E'J E"BIJ'-'I’.I:-E.}_&“-ETIIL[LH.LIJ'_W
2009-20 62T 57D Ruressrch Confos Pyl Lid ISEadd TR
2002- 4 D04 (1A 00 BundR ELI.I'JIJJJIH}P‘JL].LI:]. AT7889E: 1NBFOR
200 -22 3604 9071 g4 Mgty Vol v Pyl a0 B A 2815
207273 18 0 aaA S0 Ol General Public Sharebmiders 9030975 BT9%
Totml 36430085 48 Total BT I 1000TS

= U pcasmes o=y

s b Y 205 35 m Ty 200 18 e

= rEal= to liseafes fuintartie Hisd be Dsssmm e 2000
Share Frices
TLAE MAKTMINY MINLIHLM TLOmING HIFMEDR GF TEATHD THRADING TAYTS
AN MR [T NPEL [ ] THADES EMANEE OTT
201E-19 20 1197 LEAG 2813 dR6aqy 19
208-20 1589 1123 1599 I7a4h 33034149 s
20709 .2 5,516 AL 5572 noog: L4031 24%
2001-32 4938 2H2% 3410 102 867 5042125 235
207373 437 TE 2248 sk oty 5404162 234
203324 2388 1140 1382 1385349 BG4S 2208
DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION (PER SHARE) In Peresntage
g
‘80 &0
40
25
a0 10 LA 15
O - |
0
TYFIR 70 PR 20 FTa02i-22 Y232 73 TYFFI
[TOTAL J05) ITOFTAL 100%) [TOTAL-T0%] (TOTAL: 25%) (TOTAL: 20%)

* DIVIDENDPTR 5HARE I0ASHI @ DIVIDEND BER SHAREIBINDS!



INVESTOS R BELATIONTHIE

VALUE ADDED STATEMENT bk
PAFTICULARS T Eaat % Ty 208061 T 275 =Ty 2F-al
Sales (Gros: of Eacite Duty) QIS F37 EEy S 56540, TEE 146
Ly Tt of Buwphl 1o Materials G Servicm [1A05.638) (Sl {17753 (A7)
Value Added from Operations 2748539 3,854,835
Arkih Dby Leerige ab35d ZAE 10508 3%
Dress Vilue Addd 2. B4 963 10T, 3,865,314 i
Value Applied:

Tuwards Erpphnypes 190034 Th =866 %
Towards Diregiomrs 1535 1% a7 oEw
Tirwards Covermarien] LI0ATEE THE 29T TR
Tizwwareds Shareleiders 807392 1% 1OEF T35 ¥
Tuwards Pruviders of Fuunes: 1344 oo's AS1D L%
Tuwareds Erlity [190.50) il E5123) ()
Gross Vb Adided At R 100% 3 855 344 i,

Shareholders
Enquiries and
Communication

Commumication to Shareholders

HOL regularly interacts with the sharehalders
through varisus modes of communication much as ite
niotice and publications by publishing in sewspapers

and thrgugh it= website www himalsmandistillery com.

The quarterly and atrmal repart= of the company

are published in the nations] daily ewspaper and
the official website of the comipany to impart timely
information about the performance of the company
tn iis sharehalders The reporis ar=aleo repon=d to
the regulatory authorities such as Saconitess Boamd of
Nepal {SCBON) and Nepal Stock Exchange {NEPSE)

The company has appointed a grisvance landling
offirer inaddress any complaints, gueries and
correspondence related to AL Shareholders can

file amy queries at Nahil nvesiment Tanking Limited
Share Registrar ar to the Grisvancs handling offleer ot
the address mentioned balow,

Nabd Investment Bamking Lirmited

3rd Floor, Cemrsl Plam

Narmyonchanr, Naoml, Hathmando

Emailt infoimnabilimest oom np

Tel: +977 0L 4511604/07 4511733, T 17152

Gr.

Grnevance Handling Officer

Mr. Heshnb Sizdel

Jawalakhel, Lalitpur, Nepal

Emnil infoimammimmodistillerycom
POy BOX: 2353

Tel: +O77 01 522028/01 S438730

Archival
Policy

Company has an archival policy which isa set of
guidelines. procedures and practices that the
cornpany follows to manage, preserve, and maintain
ite records ond docoments of historical § legal
significance. It cutlnes the mies and principies
governing the creation, retention, stofage, retmievel,
and disposal of hoth physical and digite! records,

ANNUOAL KERQRET 21225
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INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT
Unaudited Statement of Financial Position for the Quarter Ended on 30th Ashwin 2081

Aumspunt i Be.

TANTICITLARS THIS CUANTEE TEEVIDUS QUARNTEH CORRESPONDING
AT bt} RN S e ] PEEVTOUSTEAR
DIMARTER END
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
al Property, plant and sgulpiient A7anOTL O A4 ADBARD 453 953417
b) Capits! work-in-progress £ L Tor ik sl ep/ath 2TEEATT
I ntanuible szents SELETE ETR328 =2 L v
) Etighit Ao s gispls 12183552 13835899 1055150
o) Livwersirppenin 11160 000 181,100,000 Ty Wixlalalalt]
{3 Qither nap- curmen srepis 5 553077 43TLETH 175487347
Toial Mon-Current Assets 1,015,975.110 BEL 266 320 510667354
CURRENT ASSETS
&l liwuglleries 4qn3ioas TEEELTE 34412452
1) Flesanifal sxents '
Tradi puro|vahle 11358 517 ME307 FATIEIRIVT
Cashand cash equbpleniy 1555953044 1235702005 CEL R
Clboer ke babances 1200060 000 1,060000000 7SO0 000
¢ Othwr current assots 157572 N80 1T ATE 7350157
TOTAL ASSETS 4,381203,035 3633620005 3,889,746,004
EQUITY
al Eguliy
Share caplial pEorpdoe s i 2ET2 s 2479555 550
b Okl abeyualiy
Reseriies and Spplis BEnsATISE [ aR L 1030478 551
Total Equity 3562,170,863 3343422473 346000320
NON-CURRENT LIARILITIES
al Flitgrieksl shililex
Borrowlngs
Lo frayables 2010 A5E BapeI7 1338815
1) Dol 1w lizhiliilies 2RISR TSNS 2JEEMSTER
Total Mon-Current LishiHtles A01ER 15T 24141400 42114527
CURRENT LIARIITTIES
al Flrigneksl Liabilibes
Borrowlngs
Tl payubios 40074305 TIOFTT2: =24307
Other oznedal Habillles 554 430 B4 3TLART £4 20196
Leass Payabiles 1371098 14Ra3E2 1165674
bh Dl cxirvend liablliles IS EEA06S B ETLETE gl L=l L
o) Cuargod b [ o (e | 7060838 43m 053 35 Mot
Total Current Liahilities 778,844,014 56,056,131 IRTFTITETT
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4,381203,035 3633620005 3,889,746,004




IRVEETON S SELATIONTHIF

INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT
Unaudited Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income forthe Quarter Ended on 30th Ashwin 2081
Amaunt inPs
PARTICLARS UPTO TGS UPTD FREVIDUS CORRESFONDING
GUANTER QUARTES PUBLSHEN PAEVIOUS FEAR
FUARTEE THD
Grise rowirbisi frim operations 1ABREI.5E8T 4155236993 FrLAIR 3T
Loy porie di ey THEDESBE2 20373595935 17 TOR3IAT
el sk prynne T3 544 60T 208145605598 93108048
Loy coeet of gosds aold FERISIOT3 731193605 ITe9 ERS
Loy st facl irieg expuriseg #3724 833 118615430 FROHSIF
Grosz Profit 425 566,695 1731687964 ZEBIAT. 4T
Ernplonyess hopefit pupeneeny EEETO3SE 1BETIS.EES 52206365
futrninisttke and glhor e popiges Z1B1871 Y03, B35, 186 [73TE045
Sollimg and distributiom axmeioe TANZOOBS ATAAG23AT 68792 565
Dperating Frofit 264,656,541 #65,940,591 150370273
Moo operaling incoine 7281932 BAA42963 59112e9
Drigsrmint by ne] aenae Usat jon WIS EIT S2.TE550 TR Fanans
Flasdfics oosts 326384 L3FEA2E 355 H72
Profit Before Tax 267,361 662 ATEFH.542 M3 IT4AE
[rrmirie Ly srcpdrna 68490309 23705887 37975067
Profit For The Year 196, B71L353 353,053,660 105559394
Otbhercomprehensive Income
[ (hat will ot be meclacsifing o profit or loss
(1 Rorrpsgyrpneny of Defined Benefil Ohldations
() Terormn da s credil f{chumrpe ] robsl i (o e faims
Othercomprehensive Income = - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 198,B71353 353,053 660 105199.394
Earning per equiity share
(Face valus of e 100 each)
Bazic EFS” 2977 B2 1575
Diiliited EPS” 2977 B2 1575
Other Finsncial Ratios
FE Retlin ALBE 10477 7S
Net Worth: Per Shars Ha9 12510 241
Lagesied by Raticy 432 1046 BAG
Hotes:

= Mccoantheods e been re-groupE 2 re—dissified wherrser necessnryEn g3 io ovmpdy with the Nepol Fmoncmf faprerting Stormdom= (6VFES)

= EP'S has Been arraioAretl afsveser necessary

= Corresporming Frevious Years Sesic & Diivted EPF hos Seen restoted o refTect the gffect of osunnoe of Banus Shiarss

ANNUML RERORT =5 1BV
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This zonal fremawori is designed to enhanes logistics
and ereure effective =upply chain management for HOL
products The ND collabarates with 97 distodbmtor=and

2330 wholesalers acozs all zones with the highest

cancentrations found Inzones 1, 3 and 5 Additionally,

therears 12 787 retnﬂﬂ's respansible for delivering

Operation Route to market

products directly to consumsrs. Amang all sones,
the Kathmandu Valley generates the highest sales

figures while rone 4 has the lowest A comprehensive
trezilaiown of sacrh zone can be found in the

arcampanying table

Lagtern Mepal West=m Nepal

IDNEE ValLrs TOREY & ZOWEZ  ImNE3 zoONEe mNIs zoses TOTAL
Sales Contnbillon E B S 2% Iy 4% 9% L MR
Diistribior i) 15 7 b | T +e &z a7
Whelesalors 39 463 357 427 91 AT0 153 2330
Off trage 3145 300 157 8B A 2681 =34 LOED
O brade 2978 235 G824 T35 0 118G 318 TroT
Manpower Sales 3] = 5 1] T 5 a ™

SALES 6 DISTRIBUTION EMFLOYEE

— Terntory Managers 9
Sales Txecutives 72

Totil Bistrilutor 97

Channe! Classification

W hitslusale 233D

Madetn OF Trade[MOFT) 50

Liguoe Store 3503

Tradillbeal O TeadeTOFT) gz

High End{HE) 142

‘Bar B Bstsuran(BEH] E412

Hosnililiy ne
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M ALAY AN DINTILLERY LIMTED

REGISTERED ADDRESS
Birguni Metropolian City-21, Parsa, Hepal
+0F7 051-620223

CONTACT OFFICE
Jawalalkliel, Lalitpur, Nepal

P Bux: 23521

+O7F 015472028 [ 015438234

Info@himalayandistillary com

www liimalsyandistillery com

BANKING PARTNER

_%". slobal IME Bank

STATUTORY AUDITOR:
G Patidyn! B Assnciates
Chavierad Accountanis



